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Chairman 'Statement
EERE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited (the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”),
| would like to present the audited results of the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2015 to the shareholders.

Following the successful completion of the Acquisition in
May 2014, the Group has successfully expanded (and
completed) the Group’s product/service offering chain,
from upstream processing to downstream distribution
and sales, thereby diversified and improved the Group’s
operation and financial positions. The acquisition of the
UHL Group has contributed positively to the Group’s
profitability, business and operations and resulted in an
overall improvement in the financial position of the Group
as compared to its position prior to the Acquisition.
Further, to align and optimize the Group’s business
operations, the Groups had in September 2014
discontinued its non-performing EMS Business and focus
primarily in (i) processing, distribution, sales, trading and
transportation of LNG and other auxiliary operations and
networks in the PRC; and (i) trading of oil and gas
products and the provision of related consultancy
services.

Notwithstanding, the plunged in the global oil and gas
prices since second half of 2014 (decreased by more
than 50% by year-end, compared to their mid-year highs)
has not only created immense competition between
imported natural gas players and PRC local producers of
LNG and natural gas but also challenging business
environment for the domestic and global oil and gas
players. Coupled with an increase in purchase price of
natural gas from PRC suppliers, the Group’s LNG
business had, during the year, faced hefty challenges.
During the financial year, the Group recorded consolidated
turnover of approximately RMB6,440 million (Restated
2014 Comparative Figures: approximately RMB9,991
million) with profit after tax of approximately RMB33
million (Restated 2014 Comparative Figures: approximately
RMB168 million).
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In spite of the challenging market condition, the Group
has continued to strive for sustainable development and
expansion of its distribution channels and network. The
proposed acquisition of the controlling stake in Guizhou
Gas (Group) Xishui Jingiao Gas Co., Limited* (“Guizhou
Xishui”) and the integration of the gas storage facilities
(between Guizhou Huaheng Energy Investments Co., Ltd
and Guizhou Xishui) will enable the Group to further
penetrate into the gas markets along the Guizhou Chishui
River region as well as a foundation for the future
multiple distribution mode of pipeline natural gas, LNG
and shale gas in the region.

From a longer term perspective, under the “Energy
Development Strategy (2014-2020)” issued by the State
Council, the PRC government will continue to give strong
support for the development of the natural gas industry
with annual natural gas production expected to reach
185 billion cubic meters in 2020. The use of natural gas
as a transport fuel is also expected to gain popularity in
the long run under relevant policy directives. These,
along with the PRC government’s further adjustments to
the price of existing supplies of non-residential natural
gas are expected to lead to a healthy and sustainable
growth of the natural gas industry in the PRC.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to seek and
expand its distribution network as well as seizing other
opportunities in order to enhance its overall financial and
business positions.

On behalf of the board, | would like to extend my sincere
gratitude to our shareholders and business partners for
their continuing support. | would also like to express my
appreciation to our management team and all staff for
their outstanding contributions and hard work over the
past year.

* for identification only
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Management Discussion and Analysis of

the Group Financial Review
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Group results

Since the completion of acquisition of UHL Group by the
Group, the Group’s comparative figures for the year
ended 31 March 2014 are to be restated, in accordance
with the requirements under Accounting Guideline 5
“Merger Accounting for Common Control Combinations”,
to include the operating results of the UHL Group as if
the current group structure had been in existence
throughout the year ended 31 March 2014 (the “Restated
2014 Comparative Figures”).

Since September 2014, the Board resolved to discontinue
the EMS Business. At present, the Group is involved in (i)
trading of oil and gas products and the provision of
related consultancy services; and (ii) processing,
distribution, sales, trading and transportation of LNG and
other auxiliary operations and networks in the PRC.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group recorded
consolidated turnover of approximately RMB6,440 million
(Restated 2014 Comparative Figures: approximately
RMB9,991 million) with profit after tax of approximately
RMB33 million (Restated 2014 Comparative Figures:
approximately RMB168 million). The Group’s performance
for the year ended 31 March 2015 were contributed
mainly by the production and sales of LNG and the
trading of oil and gas business.

The decrease in the operating profit for the year ended
31 March 2015 against the Restated 2014 Comparative
Figures is principally attributable to (1) increased in gas
price at the gate gas stations for non-household usage
by the PRC government during the relevant financial year,
resulted in approximately 21% to 27% increase in cost of
gas supply of the Group’s two LNG processing plants
and lower gross margin; (2) unexpected force majure
factors, such as the replacement of gas sources by
upstream supplier and increased in inventories due to
road blocks under heavy snow weather, resulted
temporary suspension in production of the respective
LNG processing plants in end 2014 and February 2015
for period of approximately one month; (3) the adverse
impact from the fall of the international oil and natural
gas prices on the PRC LNG market, resulted LNG having
less economic advantage in the PRC and immense
competition among the LNG producers. The Group, in
this regard, not only faced vast challenges in cost

[/ /
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Management Discussion and Analysis of

transferring but also threat on lower sales revenue from
its LNG processing plants.

Change of Company name

On 19 May 2014, the Company changed its English
name from “Ngai Lik Industrial Holdings Limited” to “Yuan
Heng Gas Holdings Limited” and adopted and registered
the Chinese name “TF M AIZERBER A A" as its
secondary name, in reflection of its plan to focus the
Group’s business in the energy industry, in particular, the
sector relating to natural gas.

Production and sales of LNG

During the vyear, the Group produced approximately
471,015,000 cubic meters of LNG, representing a
decrease of approximately 5,797,000 cubic meters or
1.2% compared with the last year. The turnover from the
sales of LNG business for the year ended 31 March
2015 was approximately RMB1,340 million, representing a
decrease of approximately RMB504 million or 27.3%
compared with the last year, contributing approximately
20.8% of the total turnover of the Group. Gross profit
however, decreased by approximately RMB213 million to
approximately RMB159 million (Restated 2014
Comparative Figures: approximately RMB372 million), with
gross profit margin fell from approximately 20.2% to
approximately 11.9%. The squeeze in the gross profit
margin was predominantly due to an increase of
purchase price of natural gas in the PRC, and at the
same time sales price decreased with increased
competition in the PRC LNG industry. Notwithstanding,
the management will continue to seek and implement
measures to maintain the profitability.

Oil and gas transactions

During the vyear, the gross amounts of oil and gas
transactions decreased to approximately RMB4,820
million from approximately RMB7,895 million, representing
a decrease of approximately RMB3,075 million or 38.9%
from the year ended 31 March 2014. The decrease in
revenue was mainly due to global oil prices dropping.
Gross profit however, increased to approximately RMB8.8
million from approximately RMB6.6 million, with gross
profit margin increased from approximately 0.08% to
approximately 0.18%.

the Group Financial Review
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the Group Financial Review
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Given the volatility of oil prices and the nature of the oll
trading contracts, the management will continue to adopt
cautionary steps while seeking profitable trading
opportunities.

Prospect

The Group, with the successful acquisition of the UHL
Group, has positioned itself as a provider of clean
energy, with focus on LNG and natural gas. As one of
the prominent LNG producers in the PRC, the Group has
extended efforts in expanding its distribution and sales
network as well as participated in strategic pipeline
projects in the PRC. Since 2013, the Group, through
HEMETIKREAFR QA Guizhou Huayuan Investments
Co., Ltd*, has been collaborating with local state owned
enterprises to establish EMM B (EB)VXARZ T KEE
BBRAE Guizhou Gas (Group) Natural Gas Pipelines
Co., Ltd* (“Guizhou Gas Pipelines”) and expanded its
footage into the operation, construction and management
of pipelined gas in the Guizhou Province. At present, the
pipelines are expected to meet natural gas demand of at
least 90% of the Guizhou Province, connecting Guiyang,
the China- Myanmar pipeline (R 4) and the Zhongwei
pipeline (A % # ). During the period, Guizhou Gas
Pipelines has successfully completed the development
and construction of the phase 1 of the pipelines and
commenced the supply of natural gas between Zunyi
(38 %) and Renhuai ({Z1%).

In April 2015, the Group enters into a sale and purchase
agreement for the acquisition of Guizhou Gas (Group)
Xishui Jingiao Gas Co., Limited (“Guizhou Xishui”), which
is expected to create synergies with Guizhou Huaheng
Energy Investments Co., Ltd (“Huaheng Energy”), an
indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, and
enables the Group to further capture the market share
and penetrate into the white wine markets along the
Guizhou Chishui River region.

The Group will continue to leverage on its solid
foundation to expand its sales and distribution channels
through forming strategic alliances with established
industry players/business partners.

for identification only
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Management Discussion and Analysis of

Looking forward, the Group aims to become a leading
sustainable clean energy producer, supplier and service
provider in the PRC, and will continue to develop its
businesses in natural gas sector and to explore new
business opportunities in order to create value for its
shareholders.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group’s operating results for the year ended 31
March 2015 were primarily contributed by the production
and sales of LNG and oil and gas transactions. As a
result of the Combination and the merger accounting
treatment as explained above, the comparative figures for
ended 31 March 2014 have been restated to include
results of the UHL Group for the same period.

Turnover

The Group’s turnover for the year ended 31 March 2015
was approximately RMB6,440 million (Restated 2014
Comparative Figure: approximately RMB9,991 million).
The drop in turnover was mainly attributable to the
decline in the oil trading business which reported a
turnover of approximately RMB4,820 million during the
year ended 31 March 2015 (Restated 2014 Comparative
Figures: approximately RMB7,895 million).

Gross Profit

Gross profit for the year ended 31 March 2015 was
approximately RMB190 million (Restated 2014
Comparative Figure: approximately RMB397 million. The
decrease in gross profit was primarily due to higher
production cost for the production and sales of LNG
business. Accordingly, the Group’s gross profit margin for
the year ended 31 March 2015 decreased from
approximately 4% (Restated 2014 Comparative Figure) to
approximately 3%.

Distribution and Selling Expenses

Distribution and selling expenses decreased from
approximately RMB59 million for the year ended 31
March 2014 to approximately RMB26 million for the year
ended 31 March 2015. The decrease in distribution and
selling expenses were in line with the decrease in
revenue from the production and sales of LNG business,
and at the same time the Group try to minimize the
distribution cost by passing those cost to customers.

the Group Financial Review
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the Group Financial Review
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Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses for the year ended
31 March 2015 amounted to approximately RMB88
million, representing an increase of approximately 9.5%
as compared to the previous year. The increase was due
to unexpected temporary suspension in production of the
LNG processing plants in end 2014 and February 2015
which lead to increase in repair and maintenance fee.
Moreover, relates costs (i.e. salary and depreciation etc.)
were treated as administrative expenses during the
suspension period.

Finance Costs

The Group incurred finance costs of approximately
RMB71 million during the year ended 31 March 2015
(Restated 2014 Comparative Figures: approximately
RMB46 million), representing an increase of approximately
54.3%. The increase was mainly due to the increase in
short-term trade finance used for sales of LNG business
during the year. Moreover, part of finance costs related
to construction of pipelines were ceased to be capitalized
followed by the completion of the construction.

Income Tax Credit/Expenses

The Group is subjected to taxes in Hong Kong and the
PRC due to its business operations in these jurisdictions.
For the year ended 31 March 2015, income tax credit of
the Group approximately RMB3 million (Restated 2014
Comparative Figures: expenses of approximately RMB59
million).

The decrease in the tax expenses was due to the
decrease in profit before taxation. Moreover, the decrease
is also due to the preferential tax treatment of reducing
enterprise income tax rate effected in this year and
retrospectively adopted for prior years’ profit.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

As at 31 March 2015, the Group maintained bank
balances and cash of approximately RMB26 million
(Restated as at 31 March 2014: approximately RMB322
million).

The net current liabilities of the Group as at 31 March
2015 were approximately RMB336 million (Restated as at
31 March 2014: approximately RMB393 million). The
current ratio was approximately 0.82 (Restated as at 31
March 2014: approximately 0.87).
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Management Discussion and Analysis of

Notwithstanding the net current liabilities of the Group at
31 March 2015, the management are confident that the
Group would have adequate funds to meet its obligation,
as and when they fall due, having regard to the following:

(i) the Group has a facility amounting to approximately
RMB500 million that can be extended to June 2017
pursuant to the relevant facilities documents; and

(i)  the Group expects to generate positive operating
cash flows.

The Group will further improve its financial position in
order to improve liquidity and cash flows by implementing
a number of measures, including but not limited to,
raising further medium to long term banking facilities and
rolling over short term banking facilities to medium term
when they fall due.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had borrowings of
approximately RMB649 million which are due within one
year and approximately RMB51 million which are
repayable after one year.

The gearing ratio, which is debt-to-equity ratio, of the
Group was approximately 0.98 as at 31 March 2015
compared to approximately 1.16 as at 31 March 2014.

During the vyear, the Company issued and allotted
4,283,209,057 ordinary shares at HKDO.7 each as
consideration shares paid for the acquisition of the UHL
Group and accordingly the issued share capital of the
Company has been enlarged from 1,019,592,858 ordinary
shares to 5,302,801,915 ordinary shares.

the Group Financial Review
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Capital Expenditure on Property, Plant and Equipment

Capital expenditure for purchase of property, plant and
equipment amounted to approximately RMB62 million
(Restated 2014 Comparative Figures: approximately
RMB67 million) for the year ended 31 March 2015.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had pledged assets in
an aggregate amount of approximately RMB1,053 million
(Restated as at 31 March 2014: approximately RMB1,084
million) to banks for banking facilities.

Capital Commitments
As at 31 March 2015, the Group had no material capital
commitments.

Contingent liabilities
As at 31 March 2015,
contingent liabilities.

the Group had no material

Treasury Policy

The Group mainly operates in China with most of the
transactions denominated and settled in RMB and US
Dollar. The exposure of exchange fluctuation in respect
of RMB and US Dollar could affect the Group’s
performance and asset value. However, there are no
significant differences of the carrying amount of the
monetary assets and liabilities which are denominated in
US Dollar so the Group has not experienced any material
difficulties and liquidity problems resulting from currency
exchange fluctuations. The Group still monitors the
overall currency exposures.

Employee Information

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had about 600
employees (Restated as at 31 March 2014: about 590).
The remuneration packages are generally structured with
reference to market conditions and individual
qualifications. Salaries and wages of the Group’s
employees are normally reviewed on an annual basis
based on performance appraisals and other relevant
factors.
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The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is
committed to maintain good corporate governance
standard and procedures to ensure the integrity,
transparency and quality of disclosure in order to
enhance the shareholders’ value.

The Company has applied the principles and complied
with all the applicable code provisions of the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (“Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) for the year ended 31 March 2015,
save for the deviations discussed below. The Board will
continuously review and improve the corporate
governance practices and standards of the Company to
ensure that business activities and decision making
processes are regulated in a proper and prudent manner.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own
code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions (the “Model Code”). Having made specific
enquiry of all directors of the Company, the directors of
the Company have confirmed that they have fully
complied with the required standard as set out in the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2015.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this report, the Board is made up of
Six Directors, including three executive Directors, and
three independent non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”).
The Directors are, collective and individually, aware of

TRERBE
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EERRABRENBE_T-—AF=A=+—H
HREFEAE - BETRETRMTAZAT
= o

Exg

RARERS EFEMAAREFTMANK HF
BRZAVTESLR=Z2BIFATER(SE
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BERFAEAEZET - EP—BBIUFNTES

their responsibiliies to the shareholders. One of the WABEEvE¥SHERNMEEEHZEMY -
INEDs possesses appropriate professional accounting B E=Z BREFBHNFE2E20B 2 [EEERF
qualifications and financial management expertise. The #15]—&F °
Directors’ biographical details are set out in the section
of “Biographical Details of Directors” on pages 27 to 29.
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The Board members during the year ended 31 March
2015 and as at the date up to this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Jianqing (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Bao Jun (appointed on 3 June 2014)

Mr. Zhou Jian (appointed on 24 September 2014)

Mr. Pan Junfeng (retired on 23 September 2014)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming

Mr. Wong Chi Keung

Mr. Tom Xie

The Board conducts at least four regular Board meetings
a year at approximately quarterly intervals in addition to
other Board meetings that are required for significant and
important issues, and for statutory purposes. Appropriate
and sufficient information is provided to the Board
members in a timely manner to keep them abreast of the
Group’s latest development and thus assist them in
discharging their duties.

During the year, the Board held seven meetings and the
attendance of the directors at the Board Meetings for the
year ended 31 March 2015 is set out as below:

BHE_T-—HAF=A=+—HULEFEREER
BERMZEFENER:

HITES

TRBRE(EERTHAEL)
REEE(R-_Z—NFEA=BEZE)
AREER_FT-—NFAA-_tTHBEEEZME)
BEERELEE(R-_FT—MOFNLA-T=HED)

BYFHTES
RERABL
B2 E
WEERE

BHREAREZEBUARETENMBITZA
MEFEERIN EFEEFELBETORE
e RKNBFBEIT- R -EFEXEH
SEREGSEERRRZER  NERFTH
AEBZEMBRE KMBPREFETHERBE

FA - EFQCBETLRAEH MREBEE-FT
—hRF-ZA=+T - BLFEREFHFESFS
SRZBRAEINMT

Number of
attendance/
Name of Directors Number of Meetings
HEke
EENE BERRY
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Wang Jianging FRERAE
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (FEFTHAAE) 77
Mr. Bao Jun RELE
(appointed on 3 June 2014) (R=ZZE—NFENA=ZHEZT) 5/5
Mr. Zhou Jian et
(appointed on 24 September 2014) (R=ZE—NFNLAZ+NEHEZT) 1/1
Mr. Pan Junfeng EIE g A
(retired on 23 September 2014) (RZE—NFALA=Z+=RHEMF) 5/5
Independent Non-executive Directors B ITES
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming 2EAEL 7/7
Mr. Wong Chi Keung BB EE 77
Mr. Tom Xie AR SR L 77
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Board minutes are recorded in appropriate details and
draft minutes are circulated to all directors and
committee members for comments before being
approved by the Board at the next immediate meeting.
All minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are
open for inspection by the directors.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control
of the Group and oversees the Group’s business,
strategic decisions and financial performance. The Board
delegates to the management team the day-to-day
management of the Company’s business including the
preparation of annual and interim reports, and for
implementation of internal control, business strategies
and plans developed by the Board.

The Company has received from each of its independent
non-executive directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and considers all the independent non-executive directors
to be independent.

The Board members have no financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationship with each other
except those disclosed in the director biographical
details.

RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

According to the Company’s Bye-laws, all directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual
general meeting of the Company, notwithstanding that
every Director shall be retired at least once every three
years.

Code Provision A.4.2 of the Code stipulates that all
directors appointed to fill causal vacancy should be
subject to election by shareholders at the first general
meeting after their appointment. On the other hand,
paragraph 4(2) of Appendix 3 of the Listing Rules
provides that such directors are to hold office until the
next following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.
As mentioned in the annual report for FY2006, the Board
decided to leave the existing Bye-laws unchanged given
the inconsistencies in the Listing Rules.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Wang is the chairman of the Company since 27
January 2011 and was appointed the chief executive
officer (“CEQ”) of the Company on 15 September 2011.
He is responsible for managing the Board and the
business of the Group.

Under the Code, the roles of chairman and CEO should
be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The division of responsibilities between the
chairman and chief executive officer should be clearly
established and set out in writing.

The Board considers that Mr. Wang possesses the
essential leadership skills to manage the Board and
extensive knowledge in the business of the Group. The
present structure is more suitable to the Company
because it can promote the efficient formulation and
implementation of the Company’s strategies. Through the
supervision of the Board and the audit committee,
balance of power and authority can be ensured and
there is no imminent need to change the arrangement.

CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of
the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Group. Every director is fully aware
of his responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant statutory requirements. Directors
should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant.

During the year under review and up to the date of this
Annual Report, relevant materials including regulatory
updates have been provided to the directors for their
reference and study. In addition, the Company arranged
an in-house training conducted by Hong Kong Institute of
Directors for all Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees with clearly-
defined written terms of reference. The independent view
and recommendations of the three committees ensure
proper control of the Group and the continual
achievement of the high standard corporate governance
practices.

Remuneration Committee

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration
Committee (the “RC”) comprises three Independent non-
executive directors, namely, Dr. Leung Hoi Ming, Mr.
Wong Chi Keung and Mr. Tom Xie.

The duties of the RC as per the terms of reference were
as follows:

1. to formulate remuneration policy for approval by the
Board, which shall take into consideration factors
such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
employment conditions, and responsibilities, and
individual performance of the directors and senior
management. Performance shall be measured
against corporate goals and objectives resolved by
the Board from time to time; and implement the
remuneration policy laid down by the Board, if any;

2. to consult the chairman and/or chief executive
about their remuneration proposals for other
executive directors. The remuneration committee
should have access to independent professional
advice if necessary;

3. without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing:

(@ make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all
directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for
developing policy on such remuneration;

(b) review and approve the management’s
remuneration with reference to the Board’s
corporate goals and objectives;
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determine with delegated responsibility the
remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management of the
Group, including benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, including
any compensation payable for loss or
termination of their office or appointment;

make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive directors;

consider salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and
responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

review and approve compensation payable to
executive directors and senior management
for any loss or termination of office or
appointment to ensure that it is determined in
accordance with relevant contractual terms
and otherwise fair and not excessive;

to review and approve compensation
arrangements relating to dismissal or removal
of directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms
and are otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

determine the criteria for assessing
employee’s performance, which should reflect
the Company’s business goals, objectives and
targets;

to ensure that no director or any of his
associate is involved in deciding his own
remuneration;

engage external professional advisors to
assist and/or advise the Committee on issues
if necessary;

do any such things to enable the Committee

to discharge its powers and functions
conferred on it by the Board;
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EREREE
()  conform to any requirement, direction, and ) FEEETETRETHAQRELE
regulation that may from time to time be ERTRAEHSENTFEE 2F
prescribed by the Board or contained in the AR E ~ BRI AR A
constitution of the Company or imposed by
legislation;

(m) exercise such other powers, authorities and (m) (TEZEEMEN - REREBE -
discretion, and perform such other duties, of VTRETESSETRHRAEZREKE
the directors in relation to the remuneration BLEMBAZLEEXERTAZE
as the Board may from time to time delegate BMEEFHFM o EMBE &
to it, have regard to the Corporate
Governance Code of the Listing Rules; and

(n) advise shareholders on how to vote with N BBRBETEE 2 ETREKREK
respect to any service contracts of directors REZERESRBEELD Mk
that require shareholders’ approval under the HEENMAIRE o

Listing Rules as amended from time to time.

The RC has every right to access to professional advice 7ZERABNAEZIBFNT @ HME S < H 55 B
relating to remuneration proposal if considered necessary. EZSRKEEES R - FHZEcCHEEMNE
The RC has begun to review the remuneration policy for ZERSHMEEAE Z FHEEE -

the Directors and senior management.

The RC has held one meeting during the year ended 31 #HEZE-ZFT—HAF=ZA=+—HILFER - ¥
March 2015 and the attendance of the members is as ZEGER{T—XgH KELEBRLOT:

follows:
Number of
attendance/
Name of Members Number of Meetings
REKE HERE SRR
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming RGRAE LT 11
Mr. Wong Chi Keung (Chairman) BZREE(EE) 1/1
Mr. Tom Xie HEEE A 1/1
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Audit Committee
As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee (the

“AC")
directors, namely, Dr.

comprises three Independent non-executive
Leung Hoi Ming, Mr. Wong Chi

Keung and Mr. Tom Xie.

The principal duties of the AC include:

(@)

[ e/

to be responsible for making recommendations to
the board on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditor, and to approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and any questions of resignation
or dismissal of that auditor;

to review with the group’s management and
external auditor, the adequacy of the group’s
policies and procedures regarding internal controls
(including financial, operational and compliance
controls), risk management system and any
statement by the directors to be included in the
annual accounts prior to endorsement by the
board;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standard. The Committee should understand the
factors considered by the external auditors in
determining their audit scope, and should discuss
with the external auditor the nature and scope of
the audit and reporting obligations before the audit
commencement. The external auditors’ fees is to
be negotiated by management, and presented to
the Committee for review and approval annually;

to review the annual and interim financial reports
prior to approval by the board, with particular focus
on:

(i) any changes
practices;

in accounting policies and

(i) major judgmental areas;

(i)  significant adjustments the

audit;

resulting from
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(iv)

the going concern assumptions and any
qualifications;

(v)  compliance with accounting and auditing
standards; and

compliance with the Listing Rules and other
legal requirements in relation to financial
reporting;

with regard to (d) above:

(i) members of the Committee should liaise with
the Board and senior management, and the
Committee must meet, at least twice a year,
with the external auditor; and

(i) the Committee should consider any significant
or unusual items that are, or may need to be,
reflected in the reports and accounts, it
should give due consideration to any matters
that have been raised by the Company’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function, compliance officer or
auditor;

to review the financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems;

to discuss the internal control system with the
management to ensure that management has
performed its duty to have an effective internal
control system, including the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function;

to consider major investigation findings on internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its
own initiative and management’s response to these
findings;

to review the Group’s financial
policies and practices;

and accounting
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to review the external auditor's management letter,
any material queries raised by the auditor to
management about accounting records, financial
accounts or systems of control and management’s
response;

to ensure that the Board will
response to the issues raised
auditor’'s management letter;

provide a timely
in the external

to review arrangements by which employees of the
Company may, in confidence, raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control or other matters. The Committee should
ensure that proper arrangements are in place for
the fair and independent investigation of such
matters and for appropriate follow-up action;

to act as the key representative body for overseeing
the Company’s relation with the external auditor,
and to evaluate the cooperation received by the
external auditors, including their access to all
requested records, data and information; obtain the
comments of management regarding the
responsiveness of the external auditors to the
Group’s needs; inquire of the external auditors as
to whether there have been any disagreements with
management which if not satisfactorily resolved
would result in the issue of a qualified report on
the group’s financial statements;

to obtain from the external auditors annually
information about policies and processes for
maintaining independence and monitoring
compliance with relevant requirements, including
provision of non-audit services and requirements
regarding rotation of audit partners and staff;

to discuss with the external auditors any
recommendations arising from the audit (if
necessary in the absence of management);

to meet with the auditor, at least once a year, in
the absence of management to discuss matters
relating to its audit fees, any issue arising from the
audit and any other matters the auditor may wish
to raise;
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(@ to the engagement of the external auditors to
perform non-audit services is in general prohibited
except for tax-related services. If a compelling
reason exists to engage the external auditors due
to their unique expertise in a particular area, the
prior approval of the Committee is required;

(n to review and consider the findings of internal
investigations and management’s response into any
suspected frauds or irregularities or failures of
internal controls or infringements of laws, rules and
regulations;

(s) to agree with the Board the Company’s policy
relating to the hiring of employees or former
employees of the external auditors and monitor the
applications of such policy. The Committee shall
consider whether as a result of such hiring there
has been any impairment of the auditor’'s judgment
or independence in respect of an audit;

() to report to the Board on the above matters; and

(u)  to consider other topics, as defined by the Board.

The AC is authorized by the Board to investigate any
activity and seek any information it requires within its
term of reference. It is also authorized to obtain outside
legal or other independent professional advice and to
secure the attendance of outsiders with relevant
experience and expertise if it considers this necessary.

Reporting to the Board of Directors of the Company, the
AC is dedicated to review and supervise the Group’s
financial reporting process and internal controls. The
financial results for the year ended 31 March 2015 has
been reviewed by the AC. The AC is reviewing the
internal controls of the Group.

The AC conducts at least two regular meetings a year in
addition to other meetings that are required for significant
and important issues, and for statutory purposes.
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EXERRE

The AC has held three meetings during the year ended
31 March 2015 and the attendance of the members is as
follows:

Name of Members

HEZZ—AF-A=1T—HIEFE BEZZ

BRI Redk KRENEBRINOT:
Number of
attendance/

Number of Meetings

BREKZ BRE & HERE
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming REAEL 3/3
Mr. Wong Chi Keung (Chairman) B R EE(FEE) 3/3
Mr. Tom Xie AR S A 3/3
During the year ended 31 March 2015, the AC had REZE-_T-—AF=A=+—HIEFE FZ
reviewed the Company’s annual report for the year ZEGEEHMARRBE_T-—AF=A=+
ended 31 March 2015 and the interim report for the six —HIEFEZFBRERBEEZE_ZT-—MOFAA=T

months ended 30 September 2014.

Nomination Committee

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee
(the “NC”) comprises Mr. Wang Jianging, the chairman
and the executive director of the Company and two
Independent non-executive directors, namely, Dr. Leung
Hoi Ming and Mr. Wong Chi Keung.

The duties of the NC as per the terms of reference were
as follows:

(@ to review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, qualifications, knowledge and
experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

(b)  to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and selector make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships. Sufficient
biographical details of nominated candidates shall
be provided to the Board and/or shareholders to
enable them to make an informed decision;
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(c) to make recommendations to the Board the ()
appointment or re-appointment of directors of the
Company and succession planning for directors of
the Company in particular the chairman and the
chief executive of the Company;

(d) to identify and nominate candidates to fill casual (d)
vacancies of directors for the Board’s approval;

(e) to assess the independence of independent non- (g
executive directors of the Company;

(f)  to do any such things to enable the Committee to  (f)
discharge its powers and functions conferred on it
by the Board; and

(@ to conform to any requirement, direction, and (g)
regulation that may from time to time be prescribed
by the Board or contained in the constitution of the
Company or imposed by legislation.

EEREL®RSE

RARBEFZZERERZENARAR
AEF(LERARAETRETHRESR)Z
BEASRNESTSIFLERES

MERELERE R T0R Y AR
DR IR

HEARR B IFATEST 2B LIS

REEMZETHRELZEERETHLE
ESeR TR LB &

NETHHESEHRTAARRMAME
RASSOEPIERZEMBRE ERR
B o

The NC has held one meeting during the year ended 31 #HZE-_ZT—RAF=-_A=+—BLFE REHZX
March 2015 and the attendance of the members is as BE&E 8T R&%  KEEFBERW T :

follows:
Number of
attendance/
Name of Members Number of Meetings
REKE HEXH SEHERE
Mr. Wang Jianging FRELEE 1/1
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming REREFL 1/1
Mr. Wong Chi Keung (Chairman) |mZBEE(FE) 1/1
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group and
ensure that the financial statements are in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standard. The Directors also ensure the timely publication
of the financial statements of the Group.

The Statement of external auditors of the Company,
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statement of the Group is
set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 43
to 44.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge, information and belief, having made all
reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2015, fees payable to the
auditor of the Group for audit services was approximately
RMB2,129,000.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board, through the AC, conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal control of the
Group which covered all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Pursuant to F.1.2 of the Code, the appointment of the
company secretary should be dealt with by a physical
board meeting rather than a written resolution. The
appointment of the current company secretary was dealt
with by a written resolution in September 2013. The
Board considers that, prior to the execution of the written
resolution to appoint the current company secretary, all
Directors were individually consulted on the matter
without any dissenting opinion and there was no need to
approve the matter by a physical board meeting instead
of a written resolution.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

To enhance transparency and effectively communicate
with shareholders and investors, the board and the
Company maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders mainly through the Company’s financial
reports, annual general meeting and other general
meetings.

The Company also maintains a website at
http:/www.yuanhenggas.com as one of communication
channel for the shareholders and investors. For any
enquiries, the shareholders, the investors, media or the
public may contact the Company directly, contact details
of which are posted on the Company’s website.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company
held an annual general meeting and a special general
meeting. The attendance of the directors at the meetings
was as follows:
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Number of
attendance/
Name of Directors Number of Meetings
ESHE HEREEHAH
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Wang Jianging FTRERE 2/2
Mr. Bao Jun RELE
(appointed on 3 June 2014) (R=ZZE—NMFEA=ZHEZT) 1/1
Mr. Zhou Jian ekt
(appointed on 24 September 2014) (RZE—EHFNAZTOREZT) 0/0
Mr. Pan Junfeng EEELE
(retired on 23 September 2014) (RZZE—NFNLAZ+=HRME) 1/2
Independent Non-executive Directors BIIFHITESE
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming 2GRAE LT 2/2
Mr. Wong Chi Keung B EE 2/2
Mr. Tom Xie WEFLEE 2/2

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2015, there had been
no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents.

HBERH
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for convening a special general meeting by shareholders
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary
of the Company, to require a special general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition, and such meeting
shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionists themselves may do so in
accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

Putting forward proposals at general meetings

Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, either any number of shareholders
representing not less than one-twentieth of the total
voting rights of all the shareholders having at the date of
the requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which the
requisition relates; or not less than one hundred (100)
shareholders may make requisition in writing to the
Company:

(@) to give to shareholders of the company entitled to
receive notice of the next annual general meeting
notice of any resolution which may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting;

(b)  to circulate to members entitled to have notice of
any general meeting sent to them any statement of
not more than one thousand (1,000) words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that
meeting.

Putting forward enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquires to the board of the
Company, shareholders may send written enquires to the
Company by post or delivery to the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong at Room 4102,
41/F., Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong.

[ =/
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Biographical Details of Directors

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Jianging

Mr. Wang, aged 46, has extensive experience and
business network in the energy and trading industry. Mr.
Wang obtained his Bachelor’'s degree in Industrial
Management Engineering from Zhenjiang Shipbuilding
College (now known as the Jiangsu University of Science
and Technology).

Mr. Wang was the chairman and executive director of FU
JI Food and Catering Services Holdings Limited (stock
Code: 1175) (retired on 24 September 2014). He is also
the general manager of Guangzhou Circle Energy
Company Ltd.

Mr. Bao Jun

Mr. Bao, aged 47, has over 20 years of experience in
project investment, construction and operation
management. He obtained his bachelor degree in
Engineering from Jiangnan University (;T 7 A& (formerly
known as Wuxi Polytechnic University, #E$5$% T 2 22 p57)
in 1989. Mr. Bao joined Guangdong Light Industry Design
Institute (BRAE T2 51FT) as an engineer from 1989
to 2000 and was responsible for the research and
development of the manufacturing technique of various
biological-engineering and chemical engineering projects
such as the design and management of amino acids
production plant and brewery.

Mr. Zhou Jian

Mr. Zhou, age 41, holds a Master’s degree in Economics
from the Central University of Finance and Economics,
the People’s Republic of China.

Mr. Zhou was responsible for the global fuel oil trading
during his service in China National United Oil
Corporation as well as the fuel oil spot and future
markets managing of its branches in Asia and America.
He was also a senior manager of Titan Petrochemicals
Group Limited (stock code: 1192), a company listed on
the Stock Exchange, in the oil storage and distribution
divisions. Mr. Zhou has over 10 years of extensive
working experience in energy field with broad business
network, and is familiar with global energy environment
and market.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Leung Hoi Ming

Dr. Leung Hoi Ming, aged 47, has extensive knowledge
and experience in risk management of financial
instruments, treasury business and financial derivative
products. He has served DBS Bank for eight years and
was Senior Vice President in the Treasury and Markets
Division upon his departure from the bank on 22 May
2009. Dr. Leung started his career in the finance industry
in 1996 with Citibank as quantitative analyst in the Equity
Derivatives Asia Department. He had served a few other
financial institutes before joining DBS Bank Ltd as a
financial product specialist as well and had held various
roles in business development, trading and risk
management.

Dr. Leung, a native Hong Kong citizen with Chinese
nationality, holds a Bachelor (First Class Honours) degree
of Science (1990) from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong, a Master degree of Science in Mathematics (1993)
and a Doctor degree of Philosophy in Mathematics (1996)
from the California Institute of Technology, and a Master
degree of Science in Investment Management (1999)
from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology.

He also has been in the position of independent non-
executive director for FU JI Food and Catering Services
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1175) since 8 July 2013.

Mr. Wong Chi Keung

Mr. Wong Chi Keung, aged 60, holds a Master’'s degree
in Business Administration from the University of Adelaide
in Australia. He is a fellow member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and CPA Australia; an
associate member of The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and The Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants. Mr. Wong is also a
Responsible Officer for asset management, advising on
securities and advising on corporate finance for Greater
China Capital Limited, under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance of Hong Kong.
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Mr. Wong was as an executive director, the deputy
general manager, group financial controller and company
secretary of Yuexiu Property Company Limited (formerly
known as Guangzhou Investment Company Limited) (stock
code: 128), a company listed on the Stock Exchange, for
over ten years. He is currently an independent non-
executive director of Asia Orient Holdings Limited (stock
code: 214), Asia Standard International Group Limited
(stock code: 129), Century City International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 355), China Nickel Resources
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 2889), China
Ting Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 3398), ENM
Holdings Limited (stock code: 128), Golden Eagle Retail
Group Limited (stock code: 3308), Paliburg Holdings
Limited (stock code: 617), Regal Hotels International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 78), TPV Technology
Limited (stock code: 9083), Zhuguang Holdings Group
Company Limited (stock Code: 1176) and Fortunet
e-Commerce Group Limited (stock code: 1039), all of
these companies are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Wong has over 35 years of experience in finance,
accounting and management. Mr. Wong was also an
independent non-executive director of PacMOS
Technologies Holdings Limited (stock code: 1010) (retired
on 1 July 2014) and First Natural Foods Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1076) (resigned on 21 November 2013), both
of these companies are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Tom Xie
Mr. Xie, aged 65, has years of management experience
with a Hong Kong listed company.

Mr. Xie obtained a Master of Science degree and a
Master’s Graduation Certificate in Gemology, both from
China University of Geosciences (Beijing) in 2012.

Mr. Xie is also the Permanent Honorary Chairman of the
Confederacy of Hong Kong Shanwei Clansmen Limited.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The activities of its principal subsidiaries and associate
are set out in note 48 and note 24 respectively to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2015 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and comprehensive income on page 45.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in property, plant
and equipment of the Group are set out in note 20 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s authorised, issued and fully
paid share capital are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

There is no reserve available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 March 2015.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Wang Jianqing

Mr. Bao Jun (appointed on 3 June 2014)

Mr. Zhou Jian (appointed on 24 September 2014)
Mr. Pan Junfeng (retired on 23 September 2014)

Independent non-executive directors:
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming

Mr. Wong Chi Keung

Mr. Tom Xie
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In accordance with Article (87) of the Company’s Bye-
laws, one third of directors for the time being shall retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable
within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

The Company has received from each of its independent
non-executive directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of securities (the “Listing Rules”)
and considers all the independent non-executive directors
to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
CONVERTIBLE BONDS

As at 31 March 2015, the directors and chief executives
of the Company had the following interests and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQO”) which (a) are required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (b) otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange (pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies).
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Number of Shares held

Fit 5 Bk 4 8 B
Long Short Percentage of
Name of Directors Capacity/Nature of interest position position total holding
EEns 54 SNy 3a b FRESE
(Note 3)
(Bt 5£3)
Wang Jianging Interest in controlled 3,292,968,787 — 62.10%
corporation (Notes 1 & 2)
FEBE R E R (1 k2)
Bao Jun Beneficial interest 45,000,000 — 0.85%
RE EmEn
Note: B s
1, Mr. Wang Jianging was deemed interested in, and duplicated, the 1 IREARERBRAREBRBEARAFANEE#EES

2,656,464,436 shares which Champion Ever Limited was
interested, the 636,504,351 shares which Frontier Global Group
Limited was interested, and out of which the 586,486,402 shares
which Galaxy King Limited was deemed interested in. Frontier
Global was wholly owned by Touch Billion Limited. Touch Billion
Limited was wholly owned by Champion Golden Limited, in which
Mr. Wang Jianging has 50% of the voting rights. Both Champion
Ever Limited and Galaxy King Limited are wholly owned by Mr.
Wang Jianging.

2. Mr. Wang is also deemed interested in, and duplicated, the
2,656,464,436 shares Champion Ever Limited is interested.
Champion Ever Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Wang Jianging.

3. The percentage holding is calculated on the issued share capital
of the Company as at 31 March 2015.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, none of
the directors, chief executives of the Company had any
interests and short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which (a) are required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 & 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which he is taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of SFO); or (b) are required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (c) are required, pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

[ =/
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

As at 31 March 2015, none of the directors of the
Company had any interests in respect of options to
subscribe for the shares of the Company under the
Company’s share option scheme approved and adopted
on 23 August 2002.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed under the heading “Directors’
rights to acquire shares”, none of the directors, their
spouses or children under the age of 18 had any right to
subscribe for shares of the Company, or had exercised
any such right during the year, and at no time during the
year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than as set out in note 43 to the consolidated
financial statements and as disclosed under the heading
“Related party transactions and other disclosures”, no
contracts of significance, to which the Company or its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

Significant related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year are disclosed in note 43 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries had
entered into the following transactions which constituted
continuing connected transactions for the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

1. On 4 September 2014, BMTZ MR RAR A F
(Guangzhou Yuanheng Gas Co., Limited®)
(“Yuanheng Gas”), a wholly-owned foreign enterprise
established under the laws of the PRC and an
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indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a supply agreement (‘GG Supply
Agreement) with Guizhou Gas (Group) Co., Ltd* (&
MK T (EB)BRET AR (“Guizhou Gas”) for
supply of LNG to Guizhou Gas, its subsidiaries and
its associates (collectively “GG Group”). Guizhou
Gas holds 50% interests in E/MZEZERREFR
A A) (Guizhou Huaheng Energy Investments Co.,
Ltd*) (“Huaheng Energy”), a company established
under the laws of the PRC and an indirectly non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company where the
Company indirectly holds the remaining 50%
interests in it. Therefore, Guizhou Gas is a
connected person of the Company.

The table below sets out the aggregate of the
annual cap for the GG Supply Agreement:

REERARUTEMRRD HENBRF &
HBBATHHEEMNRRERDHE
B RAREEMRRETL— 00 1B
Z(EMRRHERGZED - EMARTE
BMEZERREERRAR(EFER]
—HERBHEERKILZAT  AR/AR
AlZEEIFEEMBLR  MARREE
FrBEERT60% 2 st ) 50% e » HIt
EMRRBARRR ZBEANL -

TREJEMNMRHREHHZZFE LR
R

Annual cap

FE LR

RMB

AR

From 1 October 2014 to year ended RNZZE—NF+A—BEHZE 230,000,000
31 March 2015 —E-hAF=A=+—HILFE

From 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 RZE—RAFWMA—B= 457,000,000

—E—-RF=ZRA=+—H
From 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017 R-ZE—XR"FNUWA—H=E 466,000,000

[ =/

There was no sales of LNG to members of the GG
Group from 1 October 2014 to 31 March 2015.

On 4 September 2014, Yuanheng Gas entered into
a purchase agreement (“GG Purchase Agreement”)
with Guizhou Gas for purchase of natural gas
products (including both LNG and natural gas) by
members of the Group from members of the GG
Group.
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The table below sets out the aggregate of the TEREWNEMNMABEEHRHEFE LR
annual cap for the GG Purchase Agreement: 1R
Annual cap
F£EER
RMB
AR
From 1 October 2014 to year ended RZZE-—NE+A-—BEHZE 151,000,000
31 March 2015 —hF=RA=+—BILEFE
From 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 RZZE—RFMHA—BZE 518,000,000
—E-RE=HA=+—H
From 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017 RZZE—-REWMA—AZE 567,000,000
—E—+tF=ZA=+—H
The total purchase of natural gas products from RZE—NF+A—HBHE_ZE—HF=A

members of the GG Group from 1 October 2014 to
31 March 2015 was RMB97,310,000.

On 4 September 2014, Yuanheng Gas entered into
a supply agreement (“JR Supply Agreement”) with
Jiangsu Runfu New Energy Development Co., Ltd.*
CIEBEEMERERBMRAA) (YS Runfu’) for
supply of LNG to JS Runfu. JS Runfu is owned as
to 70% by Mr. Wang Jian, a brother of Mr. Wang
Jianging (“Mr Wang”), an executive Director, the
chairman, chief executive officer and controlling
shareholder of the Company and a cousin of Mr.
Bao Jun, an executive Director and therefore Mr.
Wang Jian and JS Runfu are associates of Mr.
Wang and are connected persons of the Company.

_+ EmAMMﬁ%@ﬁEQT%AZ
KARERBTE A ARKI7,310,0007T °

R-ZE—MFENLANB  TEMRMET
HEETERERERAR(NI&ESD
HEREAARBIEHBEE I — D H
EHa(IHBEHERZD IHEE
mz%ﬁ%iﬂzﬁijﬁ$ﬁﬂ%ﬁ
EE XIR THREIEREERBRR)ZHE
%&ﬂﬁ%%%iﬁiZ%%zﬁﬁi
WHETO%E s - AL - TELERTEHHE
EATREZHBEALIRAQNGZBE
AL e

The table below sets out the aggregate of the TREVWIHBEHERBZ2FELR
annual cap for the JR Supply Agreement: FER=E
Annual cap
EE LR
RMB
AR
From 1 October 2014 to year ended R-E—NNFE+A—HEHZE 27,000,000
31 March 2015 —E—RF=-A=+—B1LtFE
From 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 R-E—RFWMNA—HZ 54,000,000
—E—-XF=ZA=+—H
From 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017 RZE—XFWMWA—H=Z 55,000,000
—E—+#=A=+-AH
The total sale of LNG to JS Runfu from 1 October RZE—UF+A—HE2ZFE—HF=H

_+ B mMI#BE=E#EE 2 &ERA
R AazE 5 A REE22 524 0007T °

2014 to 31 March 2015 was RMB22,524,000.
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4. On 4 September 2014, Huaheng Energy entered 4. WZ-ZT—MFNAMNE @ EZRLIER
into an agreement (“GG Construction Agreement”) BEMNBRMTEREREBR AT TEM
with EM B RM A ER FRE B R A F (Guizhou MAER] —BRBEFBEEERILZA
Hongyuan Gas Construction and Development Co., B WAESMNKRR 2B AR AE=
Ltd*) (‘GG Constructor”), a company established RZEABRETEERBREERER
under the laws of the PRC and a subsidiary of HTEEEMARRERT L OHE(E
Guizhou Gas, for retaining GG Constructor to be MRRERERD -
the contractor of Huaheng Energy for construction
of the pipeline networks and the supporting
facilities.

TRHENEMNMARERERAZFE LR

The table below sets out the aggregate of the

annual cap for the GG Construction Agreement: HAEE
Annual cap
FE LR
RMB
AR
From 1 October 2014 to year ended RZZE—NNF+A—HEHZE 6,700,000
31 March 2015 ZE-RF=A=+—HIFE
From 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 RZE—RFMA—ABZE 6,500,000
—E-R"F=HA=+—H
From 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017 RZE—R"FEOA—H= 4,800,000

T+ F=AF=1+—H

/ w/

There were no construction works carried out by
GG Constructor for Huaheng Energy from 1
October 2014 to 31 March 2015.

On 4 September 2014, Huaheng Energy entered
into an agreement (“GG Procurement Agreement”)
with EMAREEYWEE S BRA7A (Guizhou Gas
Group Material Trading Co., Ltd*), (“GG Material”), a
company established under the laws of the PRC
and a subsidiary of Guizhou Gas, for purchase of
materials for construction of the pipeline networks.

for identification only
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The table below sets out the aggregate of the
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TR EMNMRREBRZFELR

annual cap for the GG Procurement Agreement: 4aEE
Annual cap
EE LR
RMB
AR
From 1 October 2014 to year ended RZE—NFE+A—HE&H#HZE 8,600,000
31 March 2015 —E-hAF=-RA=+—HIEFE
From 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 RZE—RAFHA—BZE 10,500,000
—E-XNEZA=1+—8
From 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017 RZE—RFEMA—HZE 5,900,000
—E—t+F=ZA=1+—H
There were no construction materials purchased RZE—NF+A—HEZE-_FE—HF=H
from GG Material from 1 October 2014 to 31 March :+ A IﬁﬁﬁM%ﬁ%é%“@
2015. EME -

The independent non-executive directors have reviewed
and confirmed that the above continued connected
transactions have been entered into by the Group:

(i

(i

(i)

in the ordinary and usual course of its business;

on normal commercial terms or better and which
are no less favorable to the Group than those
available to or from independent third parties; and

in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and

BY R TEECEMUERAEEMI L2

FHiBHERERS:

i) TR —REBTEKBRES:

iy TDETBERAEBHL THRKRABILFE=
22— MBEaEEREEEETFTL: &

iy NDIREBEEBIZHEET MXIER
BATAE THAARAREBRRZ

reasonable and in the interests of the Company B o
and the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions set out above
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an
unqualified letter containing the following findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

(i) the transactions have received the approval of the
Board of Directors of the Company;

(i)  the transactions were in all material respects in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group if
the transactions involve provision of good or
services by the Group;

(i)  the transactions have been entered into in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing
the transactions; and

the transactions have not exceeded the cap
disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 4 September 2014.

There are no other connected transactions which are
required to be disclosed in this report in accordance with
the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The Company confirms that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements prescribed in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules with respect to continuing connected
transactions entered into by the Company and the Group
during the year ended 31 March 2015.

Annual Report %

[ = /

ARBIEZREZBMRRBRELSMAEMR
oz BB EREBERFEI000RFERLE
MBStV BENNERIH Y2REES
A RMZ BB HBEMARIBAREE L
MARB P EEEZ SO B K] B
PRASEFEREIZFELRSE - ZHEE
R ETRUFUAETELEREE R M
ETHAHENRERERG I TIHERER -

() ZERHEEARREFTSHE:

(i) HERFEXZFEALEEREEHRIIRG -

r Qur

AZERGNERMBEANTHRAEH
) TE (B R ETT 5

iy ZEXZNERBEBRZWHRIL R

ZERGUMEBBRBAAFBH AT —
FNANANBZz A EL LR -

ABEWMAMBIE EMRAFUAERTFEE
%ﬁ%ZﬁL X5 o RNBERARNRNGE A

7&$$lm@i:x—£¢fH:+—a
IEFEF U2 HERERSETLMHREE
MAEFE CHTEHE -



Directors' Report
ExeREE

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND SHORT TERFRREMATZROREBROES
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES EXA#HE
OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER

PERSONS

As at 31 March 2015, the following shareholders (other R-ZT—HAF=ZA=+—H ' BRARQRARIEE
than the Directors or chief executives of the Company % & B & 5633616 FE 2 & MATAC &% -
whose interests and short positions in the shares, THRR (MR EXEEREBITHABRES
underlying shares and debentures of the Company are HHEBEROHEREEZF ZEZ L AR —SHRATHE
disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and chief FTERAAR KM - HERGO R EEEPHEE#E
executives’ interests and short positions in the shares, HEKXAEMEBFTXARNTFTBITHABRIN
underlying shares and debentures” above) had interests RARRIRG « HEARMDRERERHEEEZ
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the

Company which were recorded in the register to be kept

by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:

Number of Shares held

Fi ¥ i 13 8 B
Long Short Percentage of
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest position position total holding
BREHE K& S EntE 3a KB BRESH
(Note 5)
(M 7%5)
Frontier Global Group Beneficial interest 636,504,351 — 12.00%
Limited (Notes 1 and 2)
ERBHEEEFRAR Eanfgm(Midi1k2)
Galaxy King Limited Beneficial Interest 586,486,402 — 11.06%
(Notes 2 and 5)
B (M sE2K%5)
Touch Billion Limited Interest in controlled 636,504,351 — 12.00%
Corporation (Note 1)
Ry EE R ()
Champion Golden Limited Interest in controlled 636,504,351 — 12.00%
corporation (Notes 1 and 2)
1A E R (P FE1K%2)
Champion Ever Limited Beneficial interest (Note 3) 2,656,464,436 — 50.10%
BHEARRQR B (M EE3)
Cheng Xu Family interest (Note 4) 3,292,968,787 — 62.10%
Bk K Itk v o (Pt 514)
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Note:

1. Frontier Global Group Limited is wholly owned by Touch Billion
Limited. Touch Billion Limited is as to 75% by Champion Golden
Limited, in which Mr. Wang Jianging has 50% of the voting right.

2. Galaxy King Limited was deemed interested in, and duplicated,
586,486,402 shares out of the 636,504,351 shares which Frontier
Global Group Limited was interested, whereas Champion Golden
Limited was deemed interested in, and duplicated, the remaining
50,017,949 shares out of the 636,504,351 shares which Frontier
Global Group Limited was interested. The transfer from Frontier
Global Group Limited to Galaxy King Limited and Champion
Golden Limited was completed on 1 April 2015.

3. Champion Ever Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Wang Jianging.

4. Ms. Cheng is the spouse of Mr. Wang Jianging and is deemed
interested in, and duplicated, the interests Mr. Wang is interested
in.

5. Galaxy King Limited is wholly owned by Mr Wang Jianging.

6. The percentage holding is calculated on the issued share capital
of the Company as at 31 March 2015.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, no
person had registered an interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company that was
required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year.

[ o/
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of sales and purchases for the year
attributable to the Group’s major customers and suppliers
are as follows:

Directors' Report
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TEEFRHAER
B X EE PR A B R
BEZESLNOT:

Sales SHEH %
— The largest customer — ZAREF 45
— Five largest customers aggregated — AREP A& 75
Purchases HEHE %
— The largest suppliers — BAMERN 44
— Five largest customers aggregated — ARMHE®AR 82

None of the directors, their associate or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the directors own more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in
the Group’s five largest suppliers or customers during
the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on pro-
rata basis to existing shareholders.

COMPLIANCE WITH CODE FOR SECURITIES

TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own
code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions (the “Code”). Having made specific enquiry
of all directors of the Company, the directors of the
Company have complied with the required standard as
set out in the Code throughout the year ended 31 March
2015.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float of not
less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as
required under the Listing Rules throughout the year
ended 31 March 2015.
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A resolution will be submitted to the annual general AARFHBEEFAE LIZEE —HRER
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu /B EHeM =R H €M7 A AR R 2%

as auditor of the Company. HAD o

On behalf of the Board REEES

WANG JIANQING TEBE

CHAIRMAN FE

Hong Kong, 30 June 2015 BB ZE-—RFEANA=TH
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

Deloitte.
=E)

TO THE MEMBERS OF
YUAN HENG GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
RFRRERARAT

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 45 to 166, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and
to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform

BYZHBMBES
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the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’'s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
as at 31 March 2015, and of its profits and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 June 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
MEBEEREMEEVRARR

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_ZT-—RAF=A=T—HILFE

2015 2014
—¥-1f —T—-F
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E ARETR AR T
(restated)
(& &E5)
Turnover BEH 8 6,440,317 9,991,396
Operating costs FEE DN 9 (6,250,090) (9,594,785)
Gross profit EF 190,227 396,611
Other income Hmh g A 1 22,719 16,781
Other gains and losses Hip 25 N B8 12 400 (995)
Distribution and selling expenses 7 #8 & $4 & F X (26,128) (58,805)
Administrative expenses THRAX (87,700) (80,086)
Share of results of associates JEIG B & RRIEE 462 -
Finance costs [EE=p N 13 (70,562) (46,029)
Profit before tax B B Al & 29,418 227,477
Income tax credit (expense) FrisBi s % () 14 3,127 (59,290)
Profit for the year FEmA 15 32,545 168,187
Other comprehensive income FANEMEEBA
for the year
ltems that may be reclassified Rz @B 82
subsequently to profit or loss: BamayIEE
Exchange differences arising on MEMES 2
translation e X =% (658) (1,490)
Total comprehensive income for  F A2 K A B 58
the year 31,887 166,697
Profit for the year attributable to: £ R &1 % ) :
Owners of the Company ZA/NIE RSN 19,251 129,359
Non-controlling interests JE % 4 2 13,294 38,828
32,545 168,187
Total comprehensive income FEAE 2T A 4B %R
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZIN/NETE PN 18,593 127,869
Non-controlling interests JEVE IR B = 13,294 38,828
31,887 166,697
Earnings per share (RMB Cents) & & Al (A BE 5)
— Basic — X 19 0.36 2.44
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B B AR R R &

At 31 March 2015
R-ZZE-—RF=RA=+—H

2015 2014
—E—RF —T—NF
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
fizx ARETRT AR®TT
(restated)
(&E75))
(note 2)
(Bt 5E2)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERHEE
Property, plant and equipment Y- BEREHE 20 882,441 884,630
Prepaid lease payments ERNHEER 21 40,033 40,860
Goodwill kS 22 56,740 56,740
Intangible asset mEEE 23 8,952 9,345
Interests in associates REE a2 ER 24 30,462 30,000
Amount due from a non-controlling equity &I B A 7] — & FEE
owner of subsidiaries % #E 5 5 A SR8 25 39,222 36,393
Long-term receivable & B E WL FIR 26 54,359 75,148
Deferred tax assets EEFIAE E 27 1,301 537
Deposits for property, plant and equipment FEHREIB TWE - K
under finance lease BEhkXHEzZE 4,924 4,969
1,118,434 1,138,622
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories Ta 28 45,768 29,038
Trade and other receivables B 5 N H b e U BR 3R 29 1,017,628 1,935,383
Prepaid lease payments TR HEER 21 1,362 1,286
Amount due from a non-controlling equity EXR—RMH B AR —%&
owner of a subsidiary FIEREREEA
IR 25 1,214 4,959
Amounts due from related parties FEUL 7 B3 A T 5KIB 30 2,923 33,808
Tax recoverable Al Uk [B] 18 2,944 —
Short-term investments RHIKE 31 19,500 28,500
Pledged bank deposits BEHEMIEITHER 32 383,405 263,177
Cash and cash equivalents ReReFEER 32 26,064 321,890
1,500,808 2,618,041
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BB AR | R

At 31 March 2015
R-ZZE-—HEF=RA=+—H

2015 2014
—E—AHF —T-MF
NOTES RMB’000  RMB’000
fisx AREBTFRT ARETTT
(restated)
(&L &E5)
(note 2)
(Fff 5£2)
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Trade and other payables Bo & EMEMARER 33 1,101,324 2,168,672
Amount due to an associate JE — R B & R E) FUB 34 22,310 338
Amount due to a shareholder e — B R A 35 6,105 6,155
Tax payable AN 52,311 72,349
Bank borrowings due within one year RITEE - —FREH 36 648,895 758,589
Obligations under finance leases & A 4 AR 37 5,535 5,333
1,836,480 3,011,436
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEEFE (335,672)  (393,395)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERTDHER
LIABILITIES 782,762 745,227
CAPITAL AND RESERVES ARG E
Share capital fi% 72 38 443,282 102,767
Reserves Gk 129,398 451,320
Equity attributable to owners RARIER ANEILERE
of the Company 572,680 554,087
Non-controlling interests FEAE AR HE o 141,802 130,508
TOTAL EQUITY R 714,482 684,595
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e MR R R R

At 31 March 2015

RZE—RAF=A=+—8H
2015 2014
—E—RF —T—NF
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
s ARETT ARBTT
(restated)
(&E75))
(note 2)
(Bt 5E2)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREBER 27 15,882 16,047
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHIEAE
Bank borrowings due after one year RITEE - —FREE 36 51,000 37,000
Obligations under finance leases & A 37 1,398 7,585
68,280 60,632
782,762 745,227
The consolidated financial statements on pages 45 to FASE EF10E IR AWM BHRERERZZE—H
166 were approved and authorised for issue by the FRA-ZtHEESeHAREENE HT
Board of Directors on 30 June 2015 and are signed on NNEEREKESE:
its behalf by:

WANG JIANQING BAO JUN
I@AE RE

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
5= =
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MERRBBRE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_ZT-—RAF=A=T—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

A E PN
(Accumulated
Statutory losses) Non-
Share Share Other Other surplus Designated Translation retained controlling
capital  premium capital reserve reserve safety fund reserve earnings Total interests Total
EERH EERZ2 (Rt ER)

k% RHEE EbEX  EBEE #E & BEGE REEH i FEHER ait

RMB'000  RVMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARETFT ARETT AREBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETRT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR
(note a) (note b) (note c) (note d)

(Wa)  (Wib) (W)  (HEd)

At 1 April 2013 (restated) RZF-=%NA-A

(note 1 to the consolidated (g =31)

financial statements) (FRBBREMET) 102,767 160816 362,377 (44,751) - - 4,350 (118,239) 467,320 93680 561,000
Profit for the year (restated) FEEEH(BET]) - - - - - - - 129,359 129,359 38,828 168,187
Other comprehensive income for ~ AFEEE {2 ERA

the year (restated) (g =31) - - - - - - (1,490) - (1,490) - (1,490)

Total comprehensive income for the A £ 2 E M A BE

year (restated) (mE5)) - - - - - - (1,490) 129,359 127,869 38,828 166,697
Dividend ) - - - - - - - - - 2000 (2000
Shareholder’s contribution REEE - - 14,493 - - - - - 14,493 - 14,493
Deemed distribution to shareholder R {ERIR R 2 7 ik (M ite)

(note &) - - - (5559 - - - ~ (555%) - 6559
Transfer to statutory surplus reserve & Z % F R A - - - - 12,255 - - (12,255) - - -
Transfer to designated safety fund ~EBZEEL2ESE - - - - - 3,538 - (3,538) - - -
At 31 March 2014 (restated) RZE-RmE=f=1-8

(g %75 102,767 160,816 376,870 (100,346) 12,265 3,538 2,860 (4,673) 554,087 130,508 684,595
Profit for the year RERER - - - - - - - 19,251 19,251 13,204 32,545
Other comprehensive income for ~ AFE A 2EHRA

the year - - - - - - (658) - (658) = (658)
Total comprehensive income R ON

for the year - - - - - - (658) 19,251 18,593 13,294 31,887
Issue of Consideration Shares BIRERR

(note 2 to the consolidated (FREBHRRM )

financial statements) 340515 3711615 (376,870  (3,675,260) - - - - - - -
Dividend RE - - - = - - - - - (2,000) (2,000)
Transfer to statutory surplus reserve EBZ AT RS EE - - - - 4,894 - - (4,894) - - -
Transfer to designated safety fund BB ZEBEL2ES - - - - - 7,822 - (7.822) - - -
At 31 March 2015 RZZ-RE=A=1+-H 443,282 3,872,431 - (3,775,606 17,149 11,360 2,202 1,862 572,680 141,802 714,482
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RMEREZBHHRR

For the year ended 31 March 2015

BHE-_ZT—AF=A=+—RHLFE
Notes:
(a) Other capital of RMB362,377,000 and RMB376,870,000

/

represents the capital of the target group, Union Honour Limited
(“UHL") before the completion of the acquisition of UHL (see note
2 to the consolidated financial statements) as at 1 April 2013 and
31 March 2014, respectively.

Other reserve of the Group as at 1 April 2013 mainly represents
the financial
acquisition of UHL and its subsidiaries.

impact of adopting merger accounting for the

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and the Articles of
Association of certain subsidiaries of the Company, they are
required to provide for PRC statutory
appropriations from their respective statutory net profit (based on
their PRC statutory financial statements) but before dividend
distributions. They are required to transfer 10% of the profit after
taxation to the statutory reserves. The appropriation to the

reserves, by way of

statutory surplus reserve may cease if the balance of the
statutory surplus reserve has reached 50% of the registered
capital of the relevant companies. The statutory surplus reserve
can be used to make up prior year losses, if any, and can be
applied in conversion into capital by means of a capitalisation
issue. However, when converting the statutory surplus reserve
into capital, the remaining balance of such reserve must not be

less than 25% of the registered capital of the relevant companies.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC regulation, certain subsidiaries are
required to transfer a certain percentage based on a progressive
rate on revenue generated from manufacturing and transportation
of gas or other dangerous chemical into a designated fund. The
fund will be used for installation and repair and maintenance of
safety facilities. The movement during the year represents the
difference between the amounts provided based on the relevant
PRC regulation and the amount utilised during the year.

A debit arising from the deemed distribution to shareholder which
represents the cash consideration of the acquisition of UHL of
HKD70,000,000 (equivalent to RMB55,595,000) paid to the
vendor during the year ended 31 March 2014 (see note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements).

50 //

Annual Report %

)

,H\ 1‘@ &N A R #362,377,0007T & A R 376,870,000
ERUBEBER(RRAMBRENFDMEESE

@Eﬁ?éﬁﬁl@@j(fﬂﬁ%ﬁ FRIR T —=FWA—H

FZZ—NEF=ZA=+—RH2ZKAE-

AEER_F-=ZFHA-RAzHEMFEEETEE]
Hﬁlﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁ%&ﬁmﬁ’&ﬂﬁ%mé\ﬁg R MR
@,

REPEARKMBE(HEDAEEEREZR AR
FRAETHERAAZABEIZME  RERABB
BHREEaMEE R8N (RERSHTEEEH
i%i&%?r”)?fﬂxg"/)fw ZHBDEFEREHEL B -
BERGBRBIREFO10%EREEZTERHEE - BE
EBBEBHRECEMRQFEME KR MN50% 8 7]
FLEATAESRERR ZATRKERTRRE
U FREERNA) LAIRERETZHAR
ARESERT - A BEEERRFERERES
FARETSONEERREMEAR225% -

REMBATEER ETHBRARAASHERESR
AARIEMERCEREENRERSR—FA
PTHEBREZERESD ZETBARLERBEZL
RRgEMgE FRNEDERBEEBETEERR
BzeHBEFNECDAEHIEH -

BRIERARBEZ D REEZEEBERNEE-2—N1
FEZA=+-BLEERBHEROCINTFERZ
&R {E70,000,0007% 7T (HHE 1 A R#55,595,0007T)
(RizEMBHREMTE2) -



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_ZT-—RAF=A=T—HILFE

2015 2014
—E-A1f —T-mE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFT
(restated)
(& E5)
Operating activities R
Profit before tax B 5% /i 29,418 207,477
Adjustments for: BT EEELAE:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME BMERSEINE 63,191 61,717
Amortisation of intangible asset BYEEHE 393 393
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments ENEER 2 HEH 1,403 1,439
Finance costs MENA 70,562 46,029
Interest income HESON (20,092) (12,766)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEW %  BELRZREZ
B 164 11
Share of results of associates EREENR 2 EE (462) —
Operating cash flows before movements in L EESBPR KR
working capital Reng 144,577 324,300
(Increase) decrease in inventories FEGEM D (16,730) 5,301
Decrease (increase) in trade and other receivables B 5 K H fiy i Uit B FOR 4
(3 1n) 817,165 (1,080,436)
(Decrease) increase in trade and other payables Bk EMEMERCLD)
#m (1,024,867) 1,086,954
Decrease in amounts due from related parties JRE g A Bl A R IE R A 30,885 2,238
Decrease in amounts due to related parties BN AREATRERD - (76,172)
Increase in amount due to an associate JE AT — Rl B & R B FRIR S N 21,972 307
Decrease (increase) in amount due from a non- U — R B AE — R IEE
controlling equity owner of a subsidiary BiEREBARERD
(4 m) 3,745 (3,860)
Cash (used in) generated from operations wE (MR mERe (23,253) 258,632
Income tax paid BRER (20,784) (50,759)
Net cash (used in) from operating activities BEEB(FEMGEL
BeFHE (44,037) 207,873
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERETRER

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE_T—AF=A=1+—HLFE

2015 2014
—E-If —E-mE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFTT
(restated)
(l&E7)
Investing activities BREEY
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BENE BEREE (48,836) (61,141)
Purchase of land use right BE L RE (652) —
Purchase of short-term investments BERHEE (101,000) (71,000)
Proceeds from redemption of short-term investments & 0142 Hi4% & 2 Ff 15 %78 110,000 42,500
Proceeds of disposal of property, HEWE BEREHEZM
plant and equipment BRE 112 233
Repayment from a related party —RBBEANTZER - 29,550
Advance to a former equity owner of subsidiaries BRTHBAR —RA R
EBEA (275) -
Advance to a non-controlling equity owner of BRTHB AR —BIEFR
subsidiaries EREAA (218) -
Capital contribution to an associate m—fAEE R EEE - (30,000)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits EWMEERRITER 1,033,233 169,790
Placement of pledged bank deposits FABEBETER (1,153,461) (337,967)
Interest received B2 UF B 13,545 6,509
Net cash used in investing activities BEEHMAERSIFE (147,552) (251,526)
Financing activities MEES
Dividend paid to a non-controlling equity owner ST E AR — &I
of a subsidiary FIRER A 2R A (2,000) (2,000)
Deemed distribution to shareholder BIEMR R 29Ik = (55,599)
Acquisition of additional equity interests W B — R KT B A B 2 B Sh
of a subsidiary i 2 - (6,432)
Repayments of obligations under finance leases EERERYAE (7,277) (6,351)
Repayments of bank and other borrowings EERTREMEE (1,043,450) (592,488)
New bank borrowings raised BERMERAEE 1,019,345 821,589
Shareholder’s contribution REFE - 14,493
Repayment to related parties MBEBEATER - (60,957)
Interest paid B FE (70,147) (47,806)
Net cash (used in) from financing activities BEERH(FAEMECHE
HER (103,529) 64,453
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash HeRhBFeFEERZ
equivalents (D) HEiEeE (295,118) 20,800
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning RENZREREL%E
of the year IHH 321,890 302,250
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes Exggnrue (708) (1,160)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end REXZBEERREEE
of the year IHH 26,064 321,890
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL

Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited (the “Company”),
together with it subsidiaries, collectively referred to
as the “Group”) is a public limited company
incorporated in Bermuda and its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The
addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the corporate information section in the annual
report.

Upon the completion of the mandatory
unconditional cash offer on 3 January 2011, Frontier
Global Group Limited (“Frontier Global”) which is
ultimately controlled by Mr. Wang Jianging (“Mr.
Wang”), acquired 71.5% of the aggregate issued
share capital of the Company, and Frontier Global
and Champion Golden Limited then became the
immediate holding company and ultimate holding
company of the Company, respectively. Both
Frontier Global and Champion Golden Limited are
limited liability companies incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands (the “BVI”).

Upon the completion of the acquisition of a
subsidiary and the issue of new shares on 16 May
2014 as set out in note 2 (the “Acquisition”), the
immediate holding company and ultimate holding
company of the Company were changed to
Champion Ever Limited, which a limited liability
company incorporated in the BVI and is wholly-
owned by Mr. Wang.

The Group is principally engaged in the entering
into oil and gas sales and purchase contracts with
a number of counterparties. Starting from 16 May
2014, upon the completion of the Acquisition, the
Group is also engaged in the production and sale
of liquefied natural gas (“LNG”), operating vehicle
gas refueling station, sales of piped gas, LNG
transportation and construction of gas pipeline
infrastructure.

e R KM

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_ZT-—HF=A=1+—-HILFE

—-RER
TFRREBRERARBDTARR] EF
EHMBRABASBEAIAEED —BRA
REAMRIZARERLAA - HRMH
REEBBMEXSMERAR LD - KA
ZEMMEE R ERERME 2 U RN
FHRADNEH —HWE -

M-T——F—F=HA%REH M &GN
ReZBHE mIgBFtE(EhED®
mEH 2 EBRREESR AR (L
BENDBEBTAQABRTRARE 2
71.5% - H 1& % # IR ¥ K& Champion
Golden Limited % 5l X /& A2 &) 2 4 @ 4%
AR REEERAR - LHRIKK
Champion Golden Limited3 &7 % B &
ZHE(RBRZESDEMK T 2BR

NG

R-F—MFRAA+NBZKKEH B
A R EITH AR (AP SE2P & - (W iBE 1R )
% ARz PEERRAR R&ERERA
AIZ2EAEEEARAR  ZAR A/ AR
RERABEEAMKIEAELELERER
BEZARRAR -

AREFBXEREFHELEZHFHET LA M
MEAARAREBEAHN AT NFRAT
ANER - WEEETKE  NEBETKSE
FERBEERERARORIERAR]D
KERENR - HEBERAR R
ftRAREBIHERRAREEBERSE
it o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-$-AF=A=t+-ALFE

GENERAL (Continued)

Upon the completion of the Acquisition, the
functional currency of the Company has changed
from Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”) to Renminbi
(“BRMB”) as the primary economic environment of
the Company changed to a PRC business
environment. Following the change of functional
currency of the Company, the Company changed
the presentation currency of its consolidated
financial statements from HKD to RMB. The
directors of the Company are of the opinion that
this could simplify the financial reporting process
and it could provide users with more comparable
information with other companies in similar
industries. Comparative figures have been restated
in RMB.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Acquisition of Union Honor Limited (“UHL’) and the adoption
of merger accounting

On 28 October 2013, the Group entered into an
agreement with Ying Hui Limited (“Vendor”) and
Vendor’s shareholders, pursuant to which the
Group conditionally agreed to acquire and the
Vendor conditionally agreed to dispose of the sales
shares, representing the entire issued share of
UHL, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Vendor, at
the total consideration of HKD2,861,775,000. Both
the Vendor and UHL are limited liability companies
incorporated in the BVI.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

Acquisition of Union Honor Limited (“UHL") and the adoption
of merger accounting (Continued)

Mr. Wang, the ultimate shareholder of the Company,
has equity interest of 62.89% of the Vendor and
has control over the Vendor. On 17 March 2014,
the Group entered into a supplemental agreement
(“Supplemental SPA”) with the Vendor and the
Vendor’s shareholders pursuant to which the
consideration of the Acquisition has been revised to
approximately HKD3,068,246,000. According to the
Supplemental SPA, the total consideration of the
Acquisition is satisfied by (i) cash consideration of
HKD70,000,000 (equivalent to RMB55,595,000); (i)
HKD2,998,246,000 by procuring the Company to
issue and allot to the Vendor’s shareholders of a
total 4,283,209,057 shares (“Consideration Shares”)
at an issue price of HKDO.70 per Consideration
Share. During the year ended 31 March 2014, cash
consideration of HKD70,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB55,595,000) has been paid, which is deemed
to be a distribution to shareholders.

The Acquisition was approved by the shareholders
of the Company in a special general meeting held
on 8 May 2014 and was completed on 16 May
2014.

Mr. Wang has obtained the control of the Company
since the completion of mandatory unconditional
cash offer on 3 January 2011 as stated in note 1,
and on 11 January 2013, Mr Wang obtained the
control of the Vendor and UHL. As such, the Group
and UHL are under common control of Mr. Wang.
The Acquisition of UHL has been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements using the principle
of merger accounting, taking into consideration of
the requirements under Accounting Guideline 5
“Merger Accounting for Common Control
Combinations”, as if they had been combined from
the date when the combining entities first came
under control of Mr. Wang.

mEVMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_ZT-—HF=A=1+—-HILFE

GERBRR 2 EHRER(H)

BEBRERAT(BRDREAEHEEEH)

ARRIZEBRBRILEBEEE T Z
62.80% M HE  WHE S HEAZHIE - B
—T-NFEZA+tRH AEBHFHIR
BEAFRRIT I —rBR(HREER
WD Bt WEEEZREBI ALY
3,068,246,000/8 7T - IRIBH A E B 1% -
WHEE 2 BREDBBUATARNIA:
()70,000,000% LA & K A R &
55,595,0007T) MW 3B & X fF:
(i1)2,998,246,0007%8 7T /5 15 @ (2 fF AR 5 LA
BRARERMOTOE TZEITERE K
OB 1T M B B A $£4,283,209,057 8% % {5
(REBRODZNN -BE2ZF—NF=A
=+ —H1FE B2 R E70,000,000%
7T (B & K A R #55,595,0007T) E X 1+
WHE R BRREELZ DK

WBEHEER - ZT-—OFAANBETZ
BRIRFRIRG L EARBRERMAE - BEE
MRZT—MFERA+TRETK

WM TRER-FT——F—A
“HEREAEEEERSRBENR
EEARRzZb#E IRN_F—=F—
A+ —BESE T MR Z ZEH#E o it -
AEBERBEHT ELRELRZES - B
RZUWBEEOCRNEAMBERRPRB
IR EE & =13 FoW LR 2 H X755
BHzAEMEERIZRERBAM G
RAIGIER - B EEHERBEMY
WMEREZEFECE B -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-2-AF=A=t—ALFE

i

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

Acquisition of Union Honor Limited (“UHL") and the adoption
of merger accounting (Continued)

The effects of the combination of the acquired
companies on the financial position as at 31 March
2014 and the results and the cash flow of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2014 have
been reflected in the consolidated statement of
financial position, the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of cash flows, respectively
by restatement.

Going concerns

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
the directors of the Company have given careful
considerations to the future liquidity of the Group in
light of the fact that as at 31 March 2015, its current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by
approximately RMB335,672,000. Taking into account
of (i) the internally generated funds, (i) the available
long-term loan facilities of RMB500,000,000 with
maturity up to June 2017; and (i) RMB446,900,000
of the RMB500,000,000 facilities, which was utilised
as at 31 March 2015 and included under the bank
borrowings due within one year, can be extended to
June 2017 pursuant to the relevant facilities
documents, the directors of the Company are
confident that the Group will be able to meet its
financial obligations when they fall due in the
foreseeable future and be able to operate on a
going concern basis.
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GERBRR 2 EHRER(H)

BEBRERAT(BRDREAEHEEEH)

WERARZAHEAKEEEZ T
FZAZ+-HLEFEZHBMRAAR
AEEHE_T-—NF=A=1+—HIF
BZRERERFEZITZEEDHIRE
BUBRARRE  HEBREREMEE
WABKRLRGEHERERANED -

RIFRIFEMBRER ARAFEEFDH
RAREER - ZE—RAF=ZA=+—HZHK
HDEAEEBBHERDEEN AR
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_ZT-—RAF=A=T—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3. H#AHIRSBIEBHBHREER
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (EEBBREER])
(“HKFRSs”)
The Group has applied the following new and AEEBRAFEEREAATE RS
revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute MAg((EESMAg)BH TR
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the RIEFRTB BB HMEER
first time in current year:
Amendments to HKFRS Investment Entities ARV B HREER KEER
10, HKFRS 12 and 109 - BEMB R
Hong Kong HAEBIE1298 &
Accounting Standard B FFER
(‘HKAS") 27 (IB#EgT£ER])
F2THR 2 AER]
Amendments to Offsetting Financial Assets and BB ERERFr KiHeMmEE
HKAS 32 Financial Liabilities CH ke@as
Amendments to Recoverable Amount Disclosures BB GFTEREIR 2 FEREED
HKAS 36 for Non-Financial Assets 185 AT e & B
=
Amendments to Novation of Derivatives and BB GFEREIR TETANE
HKAS 39 Continuation of Hedge B3] ERE RS
Accounting B RE &
HK(FRIC) — Int 21 Levies BE BB BERE BE
ZEZESE
— BEE2%R
The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in RAFEEABFTREETESHB®
the current year has had no material impact on the HEHAEBRAFERBAFE Z
Group’s financial performance and positions for the MBRARMKRIR XZEGRETBR
current and prior years and or on the disclosure KIS v HBEHNUBEERTE -
set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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HE-$-AF=A=t+-ALFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective:
HKFRS 9
HKFRS 14
HKFRS 15

Amendments to
HKFRS 11
Amendments to
HKAS 1
Amendments to
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38
Amendments to
HKAS 19
Amendments to
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41
Amendments to
HKAS 27
Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to

HKFRS 10, HKFRS
12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Amendments to
HKFRSs

[ =/

Financial Instruments'
Regulatory Deferral Accounts?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers®

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations®

Disclosure Initiative®

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation®

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions*

Agriculture: Bearer Plants®

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements®

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consideration Exceptions®

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle®

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle*

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle®
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_ZT-—RAF=A=T—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3. H#AHIRSBIEBHBHREER

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (AR KHEED])(E)

(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective BEAEMARERNTTREBITERNBRESE

(Continued) Al (&)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 i RZFE-N\F-A—BXEERBZFEHRE
January 2018 A

2 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements 2 RZT—R"F-A—BE#RABZEMAER
beginning on or after 1 January 2016 ERFBREENRENFEHBERRER

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 8 REZE—+tF R —AXEERBZFES
January 2017 A R

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July ¢ RZZE—NFLtA—BEERBZFES
2014 GEX:

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 5 R-ZE—ARF—A— A HEMBZEES
January 2016 DR

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 6 REZE—NFLA—HXERFABZFES
2014, with limited exceptions FAER - BRAERIMESR

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments ERNEREENFIREMIA

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new RZZETNFRMG2E BT B RELER

requirements for the classification and measurement FOWClEEHeREEDBRFTEZH

of financial assets. HKFRS 9 was subsequently HE - BERZE—ZTFBIT2EBY

amended in 2010 to include requirements for the HHREEA B BRBEHERBEIER

classification and measurement of financial liabilities FFTEHEFUERR AT TERZZE—=

and for derecognition, and further amended in 2013 FE-SEIINBREHREFERFE

to include the new requirements for general hedge ZHBRE RZZE—NERMH2BEANH

accounting. Another revised version of HKFRS 9 HEEAFEIR S —ELBRIRAEZE N

was issued in 2014 mainly to include a) impairment ANa)BHeRMEEZRERERDER

requirements for financial assets and b) limited ETHEEKIASIAEBAMEEEK

amendments to the classification and measurement AERAFEIEREI(EEEME2ERAR

requirements by introducing a ‘fair value through NEEVERDFF =R o BERTE

other comprehensive income’ (FVTOCI) REELBRISE °

measurement category for certain simple debt

instruments.
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HE-2-AF=A=t—ALFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)
Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

° All recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement are
subsequently measured at amortised cost or
fair value. Specifically, debt investments that
are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt
instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and that have contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, are measured
at FVTOCI. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair
value at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities
may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading)
in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

. With regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through
profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the
amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to
changes in the financial liabilities’ credit risk
are not subsequently reclassified to profit or
loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of
the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit
or loss was presented in profit or loss.

° In relation to the impairment of financial
assets, HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit
loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit
loss model under HKAS 39. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to
account for expected credit losses and
changes in those expected credit losses at
each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit
event to have occurred before credit losses
are recognised.

mEVMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_ZT-—HF=A=1+—-HILFE
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-2-AF=A=t—ALFE

i

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

° The new general hedge accounting
requirements retain the three types of hedge
accounting. However, greater flexibility has
been introduced to the types of transactions
eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that
qualify for hedging instruments and the types
of risk components of non-financial items that
are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition,
the effectiveness test has been overhauled
and replaced with the principle of an
‘economic relationship’. Retrospective
assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no
longer required. Enhanced disclosure
requirements about an entity’s risk
management activities have also been
introduced.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 9 in the future may have a
material impact on the amounts reported and
disclosures made in the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities. However, it is not practicable
to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of
HKFRS 9 until the Group performs a detailed
review.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012
Cycle include a number of amendments to various
HKFRSs, which are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 2 (i) change the
definitions of ‘vesting condition’ and ‘market
condition’; and (i) add definitions for ‘performance
condition” and ‘service condition’ which were
previously included within the definition of ‘vesting
condition’. The amendments to HKFRS 2 are
effective for share-based payment transactions for
which the grant date is on or after 1 July 2014.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_ZT-—HF=A=1+—-HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3. H#AHIRSBIEBHBHREER
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (ERHBREER)E)
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle (Continued) H_Z-ZEE_Z-_FRNEANEREE]
ZEEWE ()

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that BBV BRELENES R 2B EEDE
contingent consideration that is classified as an REEIBBEZIAREBERSE®RER
asset or a liability should be measured at fair value BzAVEFEZE THIARERES
at each reporting date, irrespective of whether the REBMBREERFIR N E BT E
contingent consideration is a financial instrument AR EE v M I ASEMEE
within the scope of HKFRS 9 or HKAS 39 or a gBfE - ATFEZEHGrE2HEARKIN
non-financial asset or liability. Changes in fair value ARBEETRER BB BEMELERES
(other than measurement period adjustments) 2B KERRAEA-_ZT—NF £ A
should be recognised in profit and loss. The —HA 2B EBEHER -
amendments to HKFRS 3 are effective for business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on
or after 1 July 2014.
The amendments to HKFRS 8 (i) require an entity BEAVBREENESFE ZETORTEE
to disclose the judgements made by management BRaEsodEARAEAREZEERE
in applying the aggregation criteria to operating ERRHE  BEMGEEED BN
segments, including a description of the operating MARREELEDBERARIELUL
segments aggregated and the economic indicators BRI M EBEERE REFA
assessed in determining whether the operating WMENDHEELRTHEREE CYHERE
segments have ’similar economic characteristics’; BEROHEERTHREH-LEFEER
and (i) clarify that a reconciliation of the total of the REZBERT T TR -
reportable segments’ assets to the entity’s assets
should only be provided if the segment assets are
regularly provided to the chief operating decision-
maker.
The amendments to the basis for conclusions of ZEBIHBERBYERELERE13R4E
HKFRS 13 clarify that the issue of HKFRS 13 and L EREBTROEEN B REENE
consequential amendments to HKAS 39 and 1R EAEGTEAEIRREAY
HKFRS 9 did not remove the ability to measure BHELERFOH RIS |BR AR
short-term receivables and payables with no stated HERZESHWAEREEEMNERZEMIA
interest rate at their invoice amounts without (NBRIR B R) 2 BB R IE & &
discounting, if the effect of discounting is NREZEN - ARZFETCERLS
immaterial. As the amendments do not contain any BHEH WEWREBEEK -
effective date, they are considered to be
immediately effective.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle (Continued)

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
remove perceived inconsistencies in the accounting
for accumulated depreciation/amortisation when an
item of property, plant and equipment or an
intangible asset is revalued. The amended
standards clarify that the gross carrying amount is
adjusted in a manner consistent with the revaluation
of the carrying amount of the asset and that
accumulated depreciation/amortisation is the
difference between the gross carrying amount and
the carrying amount after taking into account
accumulated impairment losses.

The amendments to HKAS 24 clarify that a
management entity providing key management
personnel services to a reporting entity is a related
party of the reporting entity. Consequently, the
reporting entity should disclose as related party
transactions the amounts incurred for the service
paid or payable to the management entity for the
provision of key management personnel services.
However, disclosure of the components of such
compensation is not required.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of these amendments will have
a material effect on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013
Cycle include a number of amendments to various
HKFRSs, which are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that the
standard does not apply to the accounting for the
formation of all types of joint arrangement in the
financial statements of the joint arrangement itself.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_ZT-—HF=A=1+—-HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3. H#AHIRSBIEBHBHREER
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (AR KHEED])(E)
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle (Continued) H_ZE-——FE_E--FRHEEMEREER
ZEEYE(E)
The amendments to HKFRS 13 clarify that the BEREMBERMEERFIZR BT EE
scope of the portfolio exception for measuring the KEHE BB (RIZFEEEFE=—48
fair value of a group of financial assets and CREERSBABGEZATENBIESB
financial liabilities on a net basis includes all REB ST ERNFIR XA EBH B RS
contracts that are within the scope of, and LRIFER 2 EHEWBREARZFAEEEL
accounted for in accordance with, HKAS 39 or MEZEENTHEE A EAEI
HKFRS 9, even if those contracts do not meet the RETEHEESIZRBECES °
definitions of financial assets or financial liabilities
within HKAS 32,
The amendments to HKAS 40 clarify that HKAS 40 BB G ERFBIE 2B EE BB
and HKFRS 3 are not mutually exclusive and EETERF405: B H BB % &5 LR ES
application of both standards may be required. SRAWIEE TR - ek ERFERMIE
Consequently, an entity acquiring investment AR - At WHIREMENETRB VA
property must determine whether: R
(@) the property meets the definition of @ VEEREFEHBGILEAFEI0R
investment property in terms of HKAS 40; HTREWEZEE R
and
(o) the transaction meets the definition of a b) RIREFEEAYBHREENE
business combination under HKFRS 3. SHRBTEBEHLZESE °
The directors of the Company do not anticipate AAREESEY ERZSBIBTE
that the application of these amendments will have HAEB 2 HREGVBRREEFWERK
a material effect on the Group’s consolidated e
financial statements.
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle H_E-—FE-_Z-NEANEBMERSEER
ZEEYE
The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 HWoFE——F 2 - F—FHEEYH
Cycle include a number of amendments to various HEER 2 FEHNEBTEHSEB B
HKFRSs, which are summarised below. B ELER 2 ZIBIEE] - BT o
The amendments to HKFRS 5 introduce specific BB R EERFEL58 2B T R A X3
guidance in HKFRS 5 for when an entity reclassifies ATHERRBEE GHEER) ERIEH
an asset (or disposal group) from held for sale to EETHOEABEMBEBAHEE (R2TFR)
held for distribution to owners (or vice versa), or NIFEHERIEARMNEEIES - Al 8
when held-for-distribution accounting is ERZEEE -
discontinued. The amendments apply prospectively.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle (Continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 7 provide additional
guidance to clarify whether a servicing contract is
continuing involvement in a transferred asset for the
purpose of the disclosures required in relation to
transferred assets and clarify that the offsetting
disclosures (introduced in the amendments to
HKFRS 7 Disclosure — Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities issued in December 2011
and effective for periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013) are not explicitly required for all
interim periods. However, the disclosures may need
to be included in condensed interim financial
statements to comply with HKAS 34 Interim
Financial Reporting.

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the high
quality corporate bonds used to estimate the
discount rate for post-employment benefits should
be issued in the same currency as the benefits to
be paid. These amendments would result in the
depth of the market for high quality corporate
bonds being assessed at currency level. The
amendments apply from the beginning of the
earliest comparative period presented in the
financial statements in which the amendments are
first applied. Any initial adjustment arising should
be recognised in retained earnings at the beginning
of that period.

The amendments to HKAS 34 clarify the
requirements relating to information required by
HKAS 34 that is presented elsewhere within the
interim financial report but outside the interim
financial statements. The amendments require that
such information be incorporated by way of a
cross-reference from the interim financial statements
to the other part of the interim financial report that
is available to users on the same terms and at the
same time as the interim financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3. H@AHARLEITEBHKEREEA
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (ERHBREER)E)
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle (Continued) H_E-—FE-_Z-NEANEBMERSEER
ZEEWE ()
The directors of the Company do not anticipate AABEEEY ERZSBIIBTE
that the application of these will have a material HAEBEGEEMBRREEAMERX
effect on the Group’s consolidated financial E
statements.
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers ERMEREENFSREFAANS
In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which ERVBRELENFSRRN T —HF
establishes a single comprehensive model for L A%M  EflE—HE—2EENHE
entities to use in accounting for revenue arising BAEBKEEFPANMEE ZBEAR -
from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will REBHBREEREIRERE - &
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance BRRRER B RBRES  BREES
including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction SETERIE18 R E - BB LRI
Contracts and the related Interpretations when it WEEALHNMA@ERE -
becomes effective.
The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity BBV BRELENEGR 2ZLERERA
should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of ERTRARNZTPFEEAmEmI RS
promised goods or services to customers in an it o Wm 8 ARERMZERE
amount that reflects the consideration to which the XM zEEnd B ERES 2 RE -
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those BERmE  ZEANSIARAERERKZE 2
goods or services. Specifically, the Standard A B
introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:
Step 1:  Identify the contract(s) with a customer E—#F: BHEEFPZEH
Step 2:  Identify the performance obligations in FE-L: BAESHTIHNEHNET
the contract
Step 3:  Determine the transaction price F=H: BEEXHER
Step 4:  Allocate the transaction price to the B : BREBRIEZENRZE
performance obligations in the contract HEE
Step 5:  Recognise revenue when (or as) the FHE: REBTKBOEEE(EH
entity satisfies a performance obligation i) 7 3R U =
Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue BIEEAST B HREENFE155%  BER
when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, TERBEABTER R BRI E - /D
i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services RETEROBETEBE 2 Ems %2
underlying the particular performance obligation is HlEIEZTEPRK BAEAVB®REER
transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive FREREFRNBRAZERREZNAR
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal BMEES| o tho BEAT B REELNE
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive SRBMEREELEFEZ RS -
disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Continued)
The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may have a
material impact on the amounts reported and
disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. However, it is not practicable
to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of
HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed
review.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by
the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments that are measured at
fair values, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value

of the consideration given in exchange for goods
and services.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based payment, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17
Leases, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in
use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2
or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements are observable and
the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FTEGHHRE(E)

(Continued)

Basis of consolidation GREE

The consolidated financial statements incorporate RETBHRRBIEARDR KA B EH

the financial statements of the Company and BRABFEHERB ZHBRE - E4XD

entities controlled by the Company and its A A BT REF G - BVES 2 &6 4

subsidiaries. Control is achieved where the

Company:

. has power over the investes; . AW E FITERES

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns . 2 /\%E&ﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%??@@
from its involvement with the investee; and #FIZI_L Tl

. has the ability to use its power to affect its . BRENERAEENFZEERBR -
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an WMEEERBRAE R LM —IBIEGES

investee if facts and circumstances indicate that EE-HINLLHBREH AEEegs

there are changes to one or more of the three A EERTHBERETER ZHI# -

elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the MAEBMPRREHEZ 2 RERRENK

voting rights of an investee, it has power over the ZH BREXZEEUNBETAEEE

investee when the voting rights are sufficient to B hrlE 7 EEREREH R 2B E

give it the practical ability to direct the relevant HhEAEERNEHREH R BEEE 77

activites of the investee unilaterally. The Group EHFHETAEERKEHR I BRERER

considers all relevant facts and circumstances in BN TERENE  AEEZEMEE Eg
assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights EERBER  EFaiE:

in an investee are sufficient to give it power,

including:

e the size of the Group’s holding of voting . REBREREECRBRBENE
rights relative to the size and dispersion of HWEERREARAREEZCRAER
holdings of the other vote holders; B

. potential voting rights held by the Group, . AEBE - EERBFEAEASNEMA
other vote holders or other parties; TRHENEBETRER:

. rights arising from other contractual . HMEHNLZHEE 2R &

arrangements; and
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, TEETBER(E)
(Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued) SEEE(H)
. any additional facts and circumstances that . REEERAT(BELARERS
indicate that the Group has, or does not L2 HRERX)BGRAREEE A
have, the current ability to direct the relevant BESIWEREEERTEBED 28
activities at the time that decisions need to NZEMEINEERIER -
be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.
Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the M@ Qa2 e ANBRNA S B S %M
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and BRARzEZERIERAR YRAEBEKX
ceases when the Group loses control of the EZWBATR 2SR - BEBmE -
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a FRMKBIEENB AR 2 A R
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year T ThEAEEIRGE S EEBETAL
are included in the consolidated statement of profit tEaREMEARAREKE  EELE
or loss and other comprehensive income from the B TEESZMB AR ZABAL -
date the Group gains control until the date when
the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive BahkEta2EBRANSEEBEE NGRS
income are attributed to the owners of the RARBHEEARFEREZ - WEBRQ
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total A2 ERABESBRNARAIEEA
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed MIEE R - BF RS BRI R
to the owners of the Company and to the non- EmELBMER -
controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the WHE - WBRRZHBHRERBIELHAE -
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their NS BRENEHTRFEALAER 2S5 K
accounting policies into line with Group’s FIRFF— B o
accounting policies.
All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, FREAEERBERRIZARZNMEEE
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions NRARIBZEERBE #m WA X
between members of the Group are eliminated in LEREERERGAEBEME -
full on consolidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using
the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs
are generally recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised
at their fair value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes
and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to
share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in accordance
with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the
acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below); and
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified
as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in
the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation may be initially measured either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling
interests are measured at their fair value or another
measurement basis required by another standard.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Merger accounting for business combinations involving entities
under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements items of the combining
entities or businesses in which the common control
combination occurs as if they had been combined
from the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the control of the
controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or
businesses are consolidated using the existing
book values from the controlling party’s perspective.
No amount is recognised in respect of goodwill or
excess of acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over cost at the time of
common control combination, to the extent of the
continuation of the controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income includes the results of
each of the combining entities or businesses from
the earliest date presented or since the date when
the combining entities or businesses first came
under the common control, where this is a shorter
period, regardless of the date of the common
control combination. The comparative amounts in
the consolidated financial statements are presented
as if the entities or businesses had been combined
at the end of the previous reporting period or when
they first came under common control, whichever
is shorter.

Goodwill
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the cash-generating units (or
groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit
may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets
of the unit pro rata basis base on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or
loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is
not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control
or joint control over those policies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, an investment in an
associate is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associates. When the Group’s share of losses
of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that
associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for
using the equity method from the date on which
the investee becomes an associate. On acquisition
of the investment in an associate, any excess of
the cost of the investment over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill,
which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to
determine whether it is necessary to recognise any
impairment loss with respect to the Group’s
investment in an associate. When necessary, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 /mpairment of Assets as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss
is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with its associate,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent
of interests in the associate that are not related to
the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods which included
wholesale of LNG, vehicle gas refueling stations
and sales of piped gas are recognised when goods
are delivered and titles have passed, at which time
all the following conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods;

. the Group retains neither continuing
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
° the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to
the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in
respect of the transaction can be measured
reliably.

Revenue from provision of services, which includes
construction of gas pipeline infrastructure and LNG
transportation, are recognised when services are
provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can
be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on
a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Turnover of the Group includes the gross proceeds
from oil and gas sales contracts, revenue from
sales of goods and revenue from provision of
services.

Operating costs includes the gross amounts of oil
and gas purchase contracts, cost of sales of goods
and cost of provision of services.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold
land and buildings held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purpose other than construction in progress are
stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Properties in the course of construction for
production, supply or administrative purposes are
carried at cost, less any recognised impairment
loss. Costs include professional fees and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of assets other than construction in progress
less their residual value over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated
over their expected useful lives on the same basis
as owned assets. However, when there is no
reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained
by the end of the lease term, assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and
their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance lease whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially
recognised as assets of the Group at their fair
value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at
the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included
in the consolidated statement of financial position
as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so
as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in
which case they are capitalised in accordance with
the Group’s general policy on borrowing costs (see
the accounting policy below). Contingent rentals are
recognised as expenses in the periods in which
they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to
enter into operating leases, such incentives are
recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight-line basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification of
each element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred
to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land
and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the
land element and building element of the lease at
the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented
as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a straight-line basis. When
the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire
lease is generally classified as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowing pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from ’profit before
tax’ as reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except when they relates to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax
arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. RMB) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the
year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statements of
financial position when a group entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities measured at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately to profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one
of the two categories, including financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL’) and loans
and receivables. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective
interest basis for debt instruments other than those
financial assets classified as at FVTPL.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset designated as at FVTPL upon
initial recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

° the financial asset forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and
information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or
more embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39
permits the entire combined contract (asset
or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value arising from
remeasurement recognised directly in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss excluded any
dividend or interest earned on the financial assets
and is included in the “other gains” line item in the
consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. The dividend or interest
earned on the financial assets is included in the
“other income” line item in the consolidated
statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. Fair value is determined in
the manner described in note 7.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, long-term receivable
amounts due from non-controlling equity owners of
subsidiaries, amounts due from related parties,
pledged bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents)
are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss
on financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest and principal
payments; or
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Loans and receivables (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continuea)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as
trade receivable, assets that are assessed not to
be impaired individually are subsequently assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of
delayed payments in the portfolio and observable
changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets with the exception of trade
receivable, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against the allowance account.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if,
in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment losses was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by
a group entity are classified either as financial
liabilities or as equity according to the substance of
the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other
payables, amount due to an associate, amount due
to a shareholder, bank and other borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BHE-_ZT—AF=A=+—RHLFE

[~/

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other
than gooduwill (see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above) (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation as a result of a past event, and
it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions
are measured at the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. Where a provision is measured using
the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value
of those cash flows (where the effect of the time
value of money is material).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BHE-_ZT—AF=A=+—RHLFE
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
The estimated useful life and amortisation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment losses
on tangible and intangible assets below).

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are recognised separately from
goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite
useful lives are reported at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that
are acquired separately (see the accounting policy
in respect of impairment losses on tangible and
intangible assets below).

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset are measured
at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
are recognised in profit or loss in the period when
the asset is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined
on weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”)
Scheme and state-managed retirement benefit
schemes are recognised as expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
In the application of the Group’s accounting
policies, which are described in note 4, the
management of the Group has made various
estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on past
experience, expectation and other information that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

The carrying value of property, plant and equipment
at 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014 amounted to
RMB882,441,000 and RMB884,630,000,
respectively. Property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives, after taking into account the
estimated residual value. The Group assesses
annually the residual value and the useful life of the
property, plant and equipment and if the
expectation differs from the original estimates, such
differences from the original estimates will impact
the depreciation charges in the year in which the
estimates change.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The carrying value of goodwill at 31 March 2015
and 31 March 2014 amounted to RMB56,740,000
and RMB56,740,000, respectively. Determining
whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which goodwill has been allocated. The value in
use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise. Details of the
calculation of the recoverable amount are set out in
note 22.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Estimated impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group makes impairment of trade and other
receivables based on an assessment of the
recoverability of receivables. Impairment loss are
applied to trade and other receivables where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be collectible or when the net
present value of the receivable is less than the
carrying amount of the receivable. The identification
of impairment loss requires the use of judgment
and estimates. Where the expectation on the
recoverability of trade and other receivables is
different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying value of trade and other
receivables and the impairment in the reporting
periods in which such estimate has been changed.
As at 31 March 2015 and 2014, the carrying
amount of trade and other receivables is amounted
to RMB1,017,628,000 and RMB1,935,383,000,
respectively.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as a
going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts
(which include amount due to a shareholder, bank
and other borrowings, and obligations under
finance leases disclosed in notes 35, 36 and 37
respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents) and
equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure periodically. As a part of this review, the
directors consider the cost of capital and the risks
associates with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through new
share issue, the issue of new debts or the
redemption of existing debt.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7 &®WIA
(@)  Categories of financial instruments @ <SWIASE
2015 2014
—¥—-1F T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR T T
(restated)
(&E5)
Financial assets SRMEE
Loans and receivables B3 pE R BR 5R
(including cash and cash (BEE:s Rk
equivalents) ReEMHEEH) 1,035,550 2,390,121
Financial assets designated EEZAFEGTARE
as at fair value through HIZEREE
profit or loss 19,500 28,500
Financial liabilities of =R
Amortised cost 85 B A 1,721,503 2,903,513

b)) HEERREEEERIER

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments are
trade and other receivables, amount due from
a non-controlling equity owner of subsidiaries,
long-term receivable, amounts due from
related parties, short-term investments,
pledged bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalent, trade and other payables, amount
due to an associate, amount due to a
shareholder, bank and other borrowings.
Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)
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7. EMIAE)

Financial risk management objectives and policies b)) HERREEEERIE(E)
(Continued)
The management monitors and manages the EREEFBNIEREDNTER
financial risks relating to the operations of the e BERKNEZEREERHER
Group through internal risk assessment which SEEERECYBRR - ZER
analyses exposures by degree and magnitude EmEREREEINNERR) 8
of risks. These risks include market risk B RnEE R R o i aR(EZ
(including interest rate risk), credit risk, and LR cBEERNTIX - EEEE
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate BREZEZSRARBURBKREE 2
these risks are sets out below. The W15 LA R B 0 B R 14T o
management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.
Save as the short-term investments disclosed br EAlfy 1B B R E T ERE
in note 31, which is invested for the purpose HEEREMmMETZCEIEN
of better utilisation of temporary idle cash, the AEBUWHEIILTMEZERMITE
Group does not enter into any trade financial PREPHBEEN ZITESRT
instruments, including derivative financial BE-AEEEHRz2ZFRABIAET
instruments, for hedging or speculative BREEZEFRR 2 FANEEKX
purpose. There has been no significant #ga) o
change to the Group’s exposure to these
kinds of risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures.
Market risk TS EE
The Group’s activities expose primarily to the AEBEZEBRBREIEAHERE S
market risks of changes in interest rates. ZHMBRER RZEFE Z&5H
There has been no significant change to the HiacmESRARBIHEERBEZ
Group’s exposure to market risks or the Bz EWEERNED o
manner in which it manages and measures
the risk over the years.
Foreign currency risk management SMEE B EFE
Certain subsidiaries of the Company have AREBLZHEWMBAREBRI LA T
entered into certain foreign currency INEEZZ 5 BUE A & B ER AN E R
transactions, which expose the Group to % o
foreign currency risk.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

/

7. EMIAE)

Financial risk management objectives and policies b)) HERREEEERIE(E)
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) LA AC )
Foreign currency risk management (Continued) SERREE(E)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign RBEBRR  AEBIINEHE
currency denominated monetary assets and EMEEREEEEZRABNAT
monetary liabilities at the end of reporting
period are as follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE =R
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E—-hAF —FT—NF ZFT—RE —FT—WNF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARBTIT ARETRT AREBTET
(restated) (restated)
(seE75) (seE75)
United States dollars ETT
(*UsD”) 154,260 1,136 152,895 —
Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”) 7 7T 1,083 739 — —

The following table details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 5% (2014: 5%) increase and
decrease in RMB against relevant foreign
currencies. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation
at the end of the reporting period for a 5%
(2014: 5%) change in foreign currency rates.
5% (2014: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used
when reporting foreign currency risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. A
positive (negative) number below indicates an
increase (decrease) in profit for the year
where RMB weakening 5% against the
relevant currencies. For a 5% strengthens of
RMB against the relevant currency, there
would be an equal and opposite impact on
the profit for the year.

/ 2075 Annual Report # %

TR AEEHARB L H @I
B E TR N %5% (ZZE— 0 F : 5%)
CHEEHB BBERESWERRE
MBS EZ M AN EEIER -
A AR B R A NS TE R 8)5% (—
i—ﬂiﬂ%)f’ﬂi}%%ﬂ*&‘ 5% (=
T—[0F 5% HAETEEEAER
%fﬁ%MHP%h%ZKWFm
CWREREREEINEE R B
%ﬁ%@zsﬂéoTYE(E)%@
AR S H R 5N BZ (E5% FT B
REFBMZBMORT D) e AREER
BRAINEFHESW%E - WARFEHF
BEREEZERYE -



7.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

7.
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EMIA(H)
6 HEAREEAEREK(E

Market risk (Continued) LA AC )
Foreign currency risk management (Continued) INERRERE(E)
The Group’s operating cost includes: & B PR AR IE
2015 2014
—E—-AfF —E—mF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR T T
(restated)
(&)
usD E7T
Impact on the profit for the year #AFEFEHN 2 £ (51) 43)
HKD BT
Impact on the profit for the year ¥ N F & 5 5l 2 & & (45) (31)
Interest rate risk VBTN

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk due to the fluctuation of the
prevailing market interest rate on bank
balances and the variable rate on bank
borrowings which carry at prevailing deposit
interest rates and variable rate based on the
interest rates quoted by the People’s Bank of
China.

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates
primarily to its fixed rate pledged bank
deposits, long-term receivable, amount due
from a non-controlling equity owner of
subsidiaries and fixed rate bank borrowings.
The Group currently does not use any
derivative contracts to hedge its exposure to
interest rate risk. However, the management
will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity
risk management section of this note.

AEERETEFRRTEEZR
(BBITFEARMERFEARRITAH
BHERFEZFRFAEIZRTNS
) R B T B 2 32 R B A K
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analyses below have been
prepared based on the exposure to interest
rates for variable-rate bank balance and bank
borrowings at the end of each reporting
period which was assumed to be outstanding
for the whole year and the stipulated change
taking place at the beginning of the financial
year and held constant throughout the year in
the case of instruments that have floating
rates. A 50 basis points increase or decrease
for variable rate bank borrowings is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to
key management personnel and represent
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rate.

If interest rates had been increased/decreased
by 50 basis points in respect of bank
borrowings and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s profit would decrease/
increase by approximately RMB434,000 (2014:
RMBG676,000) for the year.

If interest rates had been increased/decreased
by 50 basis points in respect of bank balance
and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s profit would increase/decrease by
approximately RMB78,000 (2014:
RMB1,295,000) for the year.

The Group’s exposure to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to bank balances at the
end of the reporting period is considered as
insignificant.

The Group does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Commodity price risk

The Group is exposed to the risk of
fluctuations in prevailing market commodity
prices of oil and gas products as the Group
entered into oil and gas purchase and sales
contracts with its customers and suppliers.
The Group manages these commodity price
risks through entering into oil and gas
purchase and sales contracts within a short
period of time. Accordingly, the Group
minimises its exposure to such risk and is
subject to short term price fluctuations in the
prevailing market commodity prices in the
intervening periods between entering into the
oil and gas purchase and sales contracts.

The Group does not exposed to commodity
price risk as all sales and purchase oil
contracts entered with counterparties during
the year ended 31 March 2015 are completed
before the year end date. However, the Group
had one sales and one purchase oil contracts
which were entered into with the
counterparties closed to 31 March 2014 and
the delivery was made in early April 2014, the
commodity price risk is considered as
minimal.

mEVMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_ZT-—RAF=A=T—HILFE
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mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2015
—E-—RAF=ZA=+—HILFE
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/ o /

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to perform an obligation by the
counterparties arises from the carrying
amounts of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated
statements of financial position.

The management closely monitors its credit
exposure by implementation of policies for
necessary follow-up actions to minimise its
credit risk throughout the year. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amounts
of amounts due from each counterparty at
the end of each reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited
because the counterparties are banks in the
PRC with high credit rankings.

The credit risk on bills receivable are
insignificant because all bills receivable are
bank acceptance bills issued by state-owned
banks and aged within 180 days at the end
of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

mEVMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_ZT-—HF=A=1+—-HILFE

7. EMIAE)

Financial risk management objectives and policies b)) HERREEEERIE(E)
(Continued)
Credit risk (Continued) EEERE(E)
The Group is exposed to significant REBEAZABRRAIZZSME
concentration of credit risk on trade ErBIRERBERCEREESER
receivables arisen from oil and gas Bk #EREAEZ2ETHFAILE
transactions, with exposure spread over F - AKBEBRARG=—H2EMN
certain counterparties and customers. The BRAGIUZHABRERAARREE
Group, through the Company’s three wholly- EH e —MARFHRERAEE 2
owned subsidiaries, entered into a number of NEEEHR SEBEXS2HERE
contracts to purchase and sell oil and gas. In SHHR - Ll AARAF=HEE
general and as part of the Group’s prudent WEBARMAI L 2 BERKARE
measures, a short duration is kept between HWHPREBHEEFCCE—NF: +
each buy and sell transaction. Such oil and —RB)RNBEFP(ZE—NF:+=
gas contracts entered into by three wholly- B) AR REHER(CE—HE:
owned subsidiaries of the Company involve hBa)Et&(ZE—NF: LA A
seven (2014: eleven) suppliers and eight (2014: BUYRAEBRNEFR HEZZT—
twelve) customers, six (2014: nine) suppliers AEZA=Z+—HILFE HAR
and seven (2014: nine) customers of which #£2,920,220,0007T (5 A i & KA R/
are independent from the Group. For the year HEANBEOI%)(ZE—UF 4
ended 31 March 2015, approximately A R #3,485,346,0007T ({5 A S0 & &
RMB2,920,220,000 (61% of total gross NRIEE S RETELA%) 2 & H Th
amount of oil and gas sales contracts) (2014: —RE—RFP(BBIE=F)FIL
approximate RMB3,485,346,000 (44% of total WIRBHEENRGEE - &HEZ
gross amount of oil and gas sales contracts)) E—NF=ZA=+—BLEFE &
of contracts that are settled in cash on a AME-—REFAEMNTZHRERR
gross basis are entered into with one single AT RD(ZRARAR—ER
customer which is a third party. For the year FERRI 2EBEAT  MANS
ended 31 March 2014, the largest single RAEIRFTNE REEKL) - BAR
customer is EMITFEREAMR AT (Guangzhou AERRITHBHERASERKR
Circle Energy Company Limited) (“Circle REXERTTRHERBEE - 5
Energy”), a related party established in the AWEBBETFERRZIRE - R
PRC and its subsidiaries established in T—hF=ZHA=1T—B WEHX
Singapore and Hong Kong, which Mr. Wang, THOER T REEMNB AR
the chairman and chief executive officer of ZHBEBCZCE —HOF:ARE
the Company and the ultimate shareholder of 1,078,764,0007T) ©
the Group, is a general manager of Circle
Energy. Mr. Wang has no shareholding in
Circle Energy. At 31 March 2015, there is no
outstanding amount (2014: RMB1,078,764,000)
due from Circle Energy and its subsidiaries.
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mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BHE-_ZT—AF=A=+—RHLFE
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

As part of the measures to mitigate the credit
concentration risk, each individual debtor has
been monitored closely and on an ongoing
basis. In addition, gross amounts of oil and
gas sales contracts are settled either by letter
of credit or bills issued by the customers’
banks with high credit-ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies and are
receivable with an average credit period
ranging from seven days to six months after
the bills of lading date of delivery.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited
because the counterparties are banks with
high credit-ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies.

Liguidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a
balance between continuity of funding and
the flexibility through the use of borrowings.
The management closely monitors the liquidity
position of each company within the Group
and expects to have adequate sources of
funding to finance the Group’s operations.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

mEVMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_ZT-—RAF=A=T—HILFE

7. EMIAE)

Financial risk management objectives and policies b)) HERREEEERIE(E)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REHEZEE(E)
In preparing the consolidated financial RZE—HE=HA=+—H *&
statements, the directors of the Company BrrnpaEBRAEnEEEY
have given careful considerations to the future A R %335,672,0007T © E R % =
liquidity of the Group in light of the fact that B ARAZEERREEETHR
as at 31 March 2015, its current liabilities REEDREZEAEE ZARARRD
exceeded its current assets by approximately Bd o K RHABEEZESD « (i)
RMB335,672,000. Taking into account of (i) BR-ZZE—+tFXNARNBZAEA
the internally generated funds, (i) available EHEH&#E AR 500,000,000
long term loan facilities of RMB500,000,000 T RHER-E—EF=ZA=T
with maturity up to June 2017, and (iii) —HHARGFAR —FARE R
RMB446,900,000 of the RMB500,000,000 1118 B A R #500,000,0007T & &
facilities, which was utilised as at 31 March A R #446,900,0007T 7] 18 1% #8 B8 &t
2015 and included under bank borrowings BEXHBEHRERE_Z—+F A
due within one year, expected can be RARESMEE AEBEeMmRT
extended to June 2017 pursuant to the TER AR A B AR B/ T H BT -
relevant facilities documents, the directors of WHES R B BT -
the Company are confident that the Group
will be able to meet its financial obligations
when they fall due in the foreseeable future
and be able to operate on a going concern
basis.
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mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HEZE-_ZT-—RAF=A=1T—RHILFHE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 1.

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)
The following tables detail the Group’s
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities.
The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. The table
includes both interest and principal cash
flows.

Weighted ~ On demand

average or within 61-180
interest rate 60 days days

mi RERE
FHHE R60XA  61E180XK
% RMB'000  RMB'000

% ARBTR ARETR

EMIA(H)
6 HEAREEAEREEE

HBEZERE(E)
TRFIAKEEEHEBEZAHND
HBER - ZRIBRBEAEEAEER
ZEFPAMMBEEZEMBEZR
BB REMBE - TREREF
BRAGZHERE °

Total
181-365 Over 5 undiscounted Carrying
days 1-2 years  2-5 years years cash flows amount
KEREE

181E365% 1228 2F58 SELLE REREE WREE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR AR%TR ARETR ARETR

As at 31 March 2015 R-B-1%

=ZR=+-H
Non-derivative financial ~ T4 &MERK
liabilities
Trade and other payables &5 R At JE B - 993,193 - - - - - 993,193 993,193
Amount due to an ER BB RRARE
associate - 22,310 - - - - - 22,310 22,310
Amount due to a ER—2REHE
shareholder - 6,105 - - - - - 6,105 6,105
Obligations under finance B ER L& E
leases 5.76-7.56 - - 6,104 1,462 - - 7,566 6,933
Bank borrowings RITEE
~ fixed rate - BEfE 2.5-7.84 5,290 396,727 210,162 - - - 612,179 597,895
— variable rate - % 6.00-6.78 24,757 28,322 4,625 12,691 34,953 11,873 117,221 102,000
1,051,655 425049 220,801 14,153 34,953 11,873 1,758,574 1,728,436
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mEeEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_ZT-—RAF=A=T—HILFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7. SWIAGE
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies b)) HERREEEERIE(E)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REHEZEE(E)
Weighted On demand Total
average or within 61-180 181-365 Over  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 60 days days days 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years cash flows amount
g HELES KERRS
FHAE WOOXM  61Z180%  1815365% 1525 2E5E  BENL REME EEE
% RMBOO0  AMBOOO  AMBOOO  RMBOOO  AMBOOD  RMBOOO AMBOOO  RAMBO0O
% AEBTR ARMTR ARETL AB%TL ARETR AEETR  ABKTR ARETR
As at 31 March 2014 R-F-NEZR
(restated) =+-H(EET)
Non-derivative financial ~ #{T£2MEE
liabilities
Trade and other payables & 5 R fto fE 1 B 0 - 2,101,431 - - - - - 2101431 2,101,431
Amounts due to a EN—2REHE
shareholder - 6,155 - - - - - 6,155 6,155
Amount due to an BB ANRE
assoclate - 338 - - - - - 338 338
Obligations under finance B &M 41 E
leases 5.76-756 - - 6,670 6,756 1,462 - 14,888 12,918
Bank borrowings ROEE
— fixed rate - BEf% 6.50-7.84 105,192 407,150 141,903 - - - 654,245 636,589
— variable rate - FEAE 6.15-8.10 1,841 4,665 123,990 6,097 23,014 16,650 176,257 159,000
2,214,957 411,815 272,563 12,853 24,476 16,650 2,953,314 2,916,431
The amounts included above for variable fis F B F) R 2 E BT RN F 0w EH
interest rate instruments for non-derivative RETE 2N EME - EXRFAH 2 IE
financial liabilities is subject to change if MESMBEZYINETASSE
changes in variable interest rates differ to e RE -
those estimates of interest rates determined
at the end of each reporting period.
(c)  Fair values © 2¥HE
The short-term investments (see note 31) are RARERM AN IR & HwED
measured at fair value at the end of each RKIEAFEFE RZE—HF=
reporting period. The fair value of short-term A=+—BkZ=ZZF—WF=A=+
investments were RMB19,500,000 as at 31 —HEHEELAFESAARE
March 2015 and RMB28,500,000 as at 31 19,500,0007T & A R 28,500,000
March 2014 which are determined with TR EENEBET R CER
reference to discounted cash flow model, = s WRBREREENETF -
which is based on the expected return of the
structured deposits.
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mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BHE-_ZT—AF=A=+—RHLFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

/ o /

()

Fair values (Continued)

The directors of the Company consider that
the carrying amount of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost
in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the statements of
financial position

Financial instruments that are measured
subsequent to initial recognition at fair value,
are grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the
degree to which the fair value is observable.

° Level 1 fair value measurements are
those derived from quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active market for
identical assets or liabilities.

° Level 2 fair value measurements are
those derived from inputs other than
quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the assets or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

° Level 3 fair value measurements are
those derived from valuation techniques
that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

The short-term investments (see note 31)
which are classified as financial assets
designated as at FVTPL is grouped into Level
2.
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mEeEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_ZT-—RAF=A=T—HILFE

8. TURNOVER 8. EXH¥
2015 2014
—T-AF —E-mEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR T T
(restated)
(F&E7)
The Group’s turnover includes: REBZEEBERE:
Gross proceeds from oil and gas sales AH R XKARIEEEL
contracts (note) Z TS RIA B R
(Bt &E) 4,820,390 7,895,071
Revenue from sales of goods: HEEmWE:
— Wholesale of LNG — HEBRICRAR 1,339,685 1,843,309
— Vehicle gas refuelling stations — A BRI, 23,001 41,709
— Sales of piped gas — HEBBRAR 215,900 159,587
Revenue from provision of services: REIRS 2 Y
— LNG transportation — RIERXRARES 39,086 48,290
— Construction of gas pipeline — BRRAREBE
infrastructure i 2,255 3,430
6,440,317 9,991,396
Note: The net income from oil and gas contracts for the year is Met: FNABMERRARAHNZRANFEAARE
RMBS8,789,000 (2014: RMB6,648,000) which Is derived 8,789,0007T (= & — M 4 : A R #6,648,000
from the gross proceeds from oil and gas sales contracts ) AR RAREGHMERELABAR
of RMBA4,830,390,000 (2014: RMB7,895,071,000) minus #4,830,390,000T(= & — 0 F: A R #
the gross amounts of oil and gas purchase contracts of 7,895,071,00070) B A M R RARBEE S H 2
RMB4,811,601,000 (2014: RMB7,888,423,000). # A R #4,811,601,00070 (2 — P04 : A B

#7,888,423,0007T) ©
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GEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-$-AF=A=t+-ALFE

9. OPERATING COSTS 9. RKERA
2015 2014
=k - —E-lEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR T T
(restated)
(E5)
The Group’s operating costs include: AN B 7 48 & B K
B
Gross amounts of oil and gas purchase AM R XARBEES L
contracts 4 xE 4,811,601 7,888,423
Cost of sales of goods EEmZKA 1,397,167 1,656,551
Cost of provision of services R RS 2 B 41,322 49,811
6,250,090 9,594,785
10. SEGMENT INFORMATION 10. 2 &R
The Group is organised into business units based AEBEREEFPEARSHERARRE
on the types of customers and methods used to HRBOFXE D EBENC HEAEH
distribute their products and provide their services, CRUERIMALARAESEZ FEE
based on which information is prepared and BEAREWREUNDEERRTHERR -
reported to the chief operating decision maker, the ATEMHO BT BKRELAEER 28
directors of the Company, for the purposes of FTEBCRIER - RIBR S B R E LR ES
resource allocation and assessment of performance. RALE S REBEZEERBTERSD
The accounting policies of the reportable segments BT
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies.
The Group’s operating and reportable segments
under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments are as follows:
Production and Wholesale of LNG HEEREE HEBLERAR
sales of LNG BIERAR
Oil and gas Entering into oil and gas BRRRARRS FLABRRARE
transactions sales and purchase contracts EAH
Other operations Vehicle gas refuelling H A %71 REMRY - HEE
stations, sales of piped gas, BRAR - BRILKA
LNG transportation and REGH LEZXA
construction of gas pipeline FEEEWRRSE
infrastructure
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mEeEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_ZT-—RAF=A=T—HILFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. 2 BEN(E)
Segment turnover and results PHEEEREE
Year ended 31 March 2015 BE-F-hF=H=1+—HIFE
Production
and sales of Oil and gas Other
LNG transactions operations Total
EEREE Bl R
BILXRAR XARKXS Hib @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBETFR AR®TR ARBTR

Segment turnover from external TEINBEFZ D E

customers BERE 1,339,685 4,820,390 280,242 6,440,317
Intra-segment turnover o EPE A R 486,543 - - 486,543
Segment turnover DENEERE 1,826,228 4,820,390 280,242 6,926,860
Elimination 8 (486,543)
Total turnover FER ] 6,440,317
Segment results DEBHELE 66,515 9,353 14,805 90,673
Interest income F B WA 20,092
Share of result of associates E(hEE AR 2 ¥ & 462
Finance costs FE KA (70,562)
Unallocated corporate expenses RAOMEERE (11,247)
Profit before tax B B4 A1 8 29,418

Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited TZMRIERERLD T 111



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HEZE-_ZT-—RAF=A=1T—RHILFHE

Information of the operating segments of the Group
reported to the chief operating decision maker for

the purposes of

assets and liabilities.

assets and liabilities information are presented.
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. 2 HEHN(E)
Segment turnover and results (Continued) PHEEEREE(E)
Year ended 31 March 2014 (restated) BE-_F-WME=H=+—HI FE(HFEF)
Production
and sales of Oil and gas Other
LNG transactions operations Total
FERIFEE A&k
BAE RAR RARRS Hith %75 #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AR¥EFTT AREFTT AREFTT
Segment turnover from external TEINBEFZ D E
customers BER 1,843,309 7,895,071 253,016 9,991,396
Intra-segment turnover o EBE & X 303,010 - - 303,010
Segment turnover DEEERE 2,146,319 7,895,071 253,016 10,294,406
Elimination 8 (303,010)
Total turnover meExE 9,991,396
Segment results DEBHELE 260,627 6,584 5,763 272,974
Interest income FEWA 12,766
Finance costs b & B A (46,029)
Unallocated corporate expenses KOBEERAL (12,234)
Profit before tax B 350 A1 227,477
Segment assets and liabilities PHEERER

ERUTELERREFERIE LK

D& FH I 4
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mEVMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_ZT-—RAF=A=T—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. 2 BEN(E)
Other segment information Hittp BEHR
Other segment information included in the ESHEERSBEEMSH 2 LMD
measurement of segment results and segment B ERMT:
assets are as follow:
Production
and sales of Oil and gas Other
LNG transactions operations Total
EEREE Bilk
BILXAR XARXS Hin % @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFT AREFTTT ARBFT
For the year ended BE_T-H1E
31 March 2015 =RA=+-—H
Bl ;4
Additions to non-current assets ANEERBDEE 16,368 - 45,562 61,930
Depreciation of property, plant and #% « iE M &EZ
equipment Ein-1 49,731 103 13,357 63,191
Amortisation of intangible asset EmIVEEZEH - - 393 393
Amortisation of prepaid lease TEH &R 2
payments 1,131 - 272 1,403
Loss on disposal of property, plant HE&EWE - FE K&
and equipment REZEE 164 - - 164
For the year ended BE-T-Nf
31 March 2014 (restated) =A=+-—H2
SR (EET)
Additions to non-current assets REFRBEE 19,221 163 47,186 66,570
Depreciation of property, plant and 9% - B E & &E 2
equipment e 49,263 88 12,366 61,717
Amortisation of intangible asset EREAEZEH — - 393 393
Amortisation of prepaid lease TE T E R B
payments 1,047 — 392 1,439
Loss on disposal of property, plant H&EWE « B&E &
and equipment REZEE 11 — — 11
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
HEZE-_ZT-—RAF=A=1T—RHILFHE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. 2 BEN(E)
Geographical information BEEHR
The following table provides an analysis of the TREBAEBREPHE M TR
Group’s segment turnover by geographical location NEmE R ERS 2 KRME D2 5D
of customers irrespective of the origin of the goods HEXxBRAEBKREEFRTHWE D2
delivered or services rendered and the Group’s ERBEEZOMN:
non-current assets by geographical location of the
assets:
Turnover
B
Production and sales Oil and gas
of LNG transactions Other operations Non-current assets*
EERBERLEAR GHRKARRS b FREEE
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

—T-iF —TNF ZF—AHE “T—NF Z¥-RE —T-NF ZFT-HF —T-QNOF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTT ARBTRE AR T ARBTR ARBTT ARETRT ARETT

(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
(gE7)) (E) (gE7)) (EH)

The PRC, other than PR (F AR
Hong Kong 1,339,685 1,843,309 333,069 633,858 280,242 253,016 1,023,237 1,026,125
Singapore o3 - — 3,244,960 4,530,290 - - - -
Hong Kong BE - — 906,516 112,220 - — 315 419
Korea [ - — 335,845 — - — - —
Malaysia B - - — 2,179,727 - — - —
Philippines FREE - — - 438,976 - — - —

1,339,685 1,843,309 4,820,390 7,895,071 280,242 253,016 1,023,552 1,026,544

* Non-current assets exclude amount due from a non- * FRBDEETEERKINB AR 2 — &R
controlling equity owner of subsidiaries, long-term [RIEZEBARIE  REABWKKIEBRIELTH
receivable and deferred tax assets. HERE -
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Information about major customers
Production and sales of LNG and Other operations
Turnover arose from customers represents more
than 10% of the total segment turnover from

REMBHRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_ZT-—RAF=A=T—HILFE

10. 2 HER(E)
IBEFEHR
LERBERNARTUREMEH
G E R E R R RE R H 2% 5
EAEZBOMLEEIORL B

production and sales of LNG and other operations Wl
are as follows:
2015 2014
—¥—-1fF —T—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREF T
(restated)
C=))
Customer A BEFEA 489,434 240,988
Customer B ®FB 222,906 N/A (note)
T~ A (T &)
Customer C ®PC 202,814 208,536
Customer D ZFED N/A (note) 295,628
& (Mt sE)
Customer E ®PE N/A (note) 210,834
A A (Mt aE)
915,154 955,986
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mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HEZE-_ZT-—RAF=A=1T—RHILFHE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10.
Information about major customers (Continued)
Ol and gas transactions
Turnover arose from customers represents more
than 10% of the total segment turnover from oil
and gas transactions are as follows:

7 WER(8)
TEEFER(H)
BHREARALS

ERBMMRARRGREE 2B D #E
EBI0%A L2 EFPEXBMT

2015 2014

—E—AF —ZE-mF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AR T T

(restated)

(& E5)

Customer F ®FF 2,920,220 871,524

Customer G PG 633,705 N/A (note)

T3 (M #E)

Customer H EFPH 540,147 N/A (note)

T3 (M &E)

Customer | EPI N/A (note) 2,205,980
A~ iE F (Pt aE)

Circle Energy (as defined in note 30) TTZ&ER(EER N/A (note) 3,485,346
and its subsidiaries B 5530) & 7~ FH (B aF)

HIE QR
4,094,072 6,562,850

Note: The corresponding turnover did not contribute over 10%
of the total segment turnover of the relevant segment.
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HEMBHRRMET

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_ZT-—RAF=A=T—HILFE

11. OTHER INCOME 1. Httl A
2015 2014
—E—-AF —E—mF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREBEF T
(restated)
(&=E75)
Interest income from RKEUTELZ
A B A

— banks — #R1T 11,241 6,509

— a non-controlling equity owner of — HIEBARZ2—%
subsidiaries IR A 2,611 2,611
— long-term receivable — EHIEWERR 3,936 3,646
— a related party — —ZEBEAL 2,304 —
20,092 12,766
Others — Hith 2,627 4,015
22,719 16,781

12.  OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 2. Htth&uEREE

2015 2014
—F—-hF —T—-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREEF T
(restated)
(&&:75)

Loss on disposal of property, plant LEWE  BEK
and equipment HE EE (164) 1)
Net foreign exchange gain (loss) SNEE U 2 (B 1B ) R RE 564 (984)
400 (995)

Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited T RRIZERER AT
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mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HEZE-_ZT-—RAF=A=1T—RHILFHE

13.  FINANCE COSTS 13. MERAK
2015 2014
—F-1F —Z-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR T T
(restated)
(&)
Interest on bank and other borrowings $R1T R EMEE 2 58
— wholly repayable within five years — BARAFNA
BEEE 67,365 43,606
— not wholly repayable within five — BERAEFA
years THEER 2,782 2,072
Interest on amount due ER—2B@EEAT
to a related party KRIBZFE - 2,128
Finance leases MEHEE 1,337 1,956
Total interest charges MEXHEE 71,484 49,762
Less: Amount capitalised in W ERIED
construction in progress (note) B & & (K EE) 922 3,733
70,562 46,029

Note: The borrowing costs have been capitalised at rate of 6.6%
and 6.0% for the year ended 31 March 2015 and 2014,

respectively.
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mEVMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_ZT-—RAF=A=T—HILFE

14.  INCOME TAX CREDIT (EXPENSE)

14 REHER(XH)

2015 2014
—T-AF —Z-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR T T
(restated)
(&)
The credit (charge) comprises: B o (ZH) B
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBNER
— Current year — REFEE (155) (184)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) FETEMEHR
(T ZEmEED
— Current year — KEE (10,823) (54,288)
— Overprovision in prior years — BAFEBEEG 13,176 -
2,353 (54,288)
Deferred taxation (note 27) i AE % 78 (B 7E27)
— Current year — KXFE (2,418) (4,818)
— Effect of change in tax rate — BEEH B 3,347 —
929 (4,818)
3,127 (59,290)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of
the estimated assessable profit for both years.

PRC EIT has been provided at the applicable
income tax rate of 25% on the assessable profits
of the companies comprising the Group during the
years, except for certain subsidiaries of the Group,
namely SEREZHETMEZ8RER AT (“Xingxing
Energy”), & M M JE & 82 )R B BB 2 A (“Huixin
Energy”) and EMEZERIEEBR AT (“Huaheng
Energy”) which are taxed at concessionary rate in
certain years.

BAENSERIDBREMESFE 2 [T ER
5 0 F1216.5% < B R 5T & -

AEEBETAR(RNETFREREEERE
RN ZANEBETHERR - SFRZH
MEERRBERATDIEZRLIR]  ZIM
MEZERERAR (EZERD)REM
ESRRREARAB(EZERDEIN
REBEFAZERVENCRERAE
T R 25% 51 P B (bR PSR AF h B4 -
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GEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BHE-_ZT—AF=A=+—RHLFE

14.

/ w /

INCOME TAX CREDIT (EXPENSE) (Continued)
During certain years as set out below, the
applicable PRC EIT concessionary rate for Xingxing
Energy, Huixin Energy and Huaheng Energy is 15%,
which are under the preferential tax treatment that
given to companies established in the western
regions in the PRC and derived at least 70% of
their total income from their main business in oil
and gas industry which falling within the list of
encouraged industries specified by the PRC
government.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the
applicable income tax rate of Xingxing Energy was
25%. During the year ended 31 March 2015,
Xingxing Energy obtained the approval from the
local tax authority and is eligible to the reduced
15% enterprise income tax rate on its assessable
profits earned from 2013 to 2020. As such, an
overprovision of PRC EIT of RMB13,176,000 arisen
from the effect of difference between concessionary
rate of 15% and statutory rate of 25% applied on
assessable profits for the year ended 31 March
2014 was credited to profit or loss.

Huixin Energy was registered with the local tax
authority to be eligible to the reduced 15%
enterprise income tax rate from 2012 to 2020.
Accordingly, Huixin Energy is eligible for the EIT of
15% (2014: 15%).

Huaheng Energy was entitled to a 15% preferential
rate from since its establishment on 24 June 2011
with no definite period and subject to annual review
and approval of local tax authority.
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mEeEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_ZT-—RAF=A=T—HILFE

14. INCOME TAX CREDIT (EXPENSE) (Continued)  14. FiBHE & (X H)(#)

The income tax credit (expense) for the years can BiEEGFEGEaREM2EHKARE  F
be reconciled to the profit before tax per M2 BT 5 B8 e (2 ) AT B Bk B4 AT 4
consolidated statements of profits or loss and other HIRWT

comprehensive income as follows:

2015 2014
—¥—-1fF —T-MEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
(restated)
(&)
Profit before tax B B¢ A 29,418 227,477
PRC EIT at 25% 1R25% B T 2 S iy 7 B
EMEH (7,355) (56,869)
Tax effects of share of profit of FEMRER L RNEHE T 2B
associates BRE 116 —
Tax effects of expenses not deductible 7~ 8] 154 5 52 2 Fi 75
for tax purpose ga (8,209) (6,983)
Tax effects of income not taxable for — #EFHE R/ WK A 2 5 7%
tax purpose wE 200 199
Overprovision of PRC EIT in prior years BEFEERE M ¥ 15
T R R 7 13,176 —
Tax effects of tax losses not RERZBBBEZ
recognised Uik 32 (2,989) (1,417)
Effect of concessionary tax rates ETHEHEA ﬂ &
granted to certain PRC subsidiaries BEBRER ZE
at 15% (1215%) 4,989 6,184
Decrease in opening deferred tax i AR TR M
liabilities resulting from a decrease in ~ F¥IRIEFHEIBBAE
applicable tax rate L 3,347 —
Effect of different tax rates of REMBEDEEREE 2
subsidiaries operating in other NN DA N e
jurisdictions -2 (148) (404)
Tax credit (charge) for the year REFHREE R (EH) 3,127 (59,290)
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
HEZE-_ZT-—RAF=A=1T—RHILFHE

15.  PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

15. REERF

2015 2014
—¥-1f —Z-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR T T
(restated)
(&)
Profit for the year has been arrived REERMNSHER :
at after charging:
Auditors’ remuneration 2 G 2,129 1,031
Amortisation of intangible asset WA E 28 393 393
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments &1 f & 3 2 # $5 1,403 1,439
Cost of inventories recognised as an MR ARSI Z2HEE
expense BN 1,397,167 1,656,551
Depreciation of property, plant and M- - BELR&EZ
equipment e 63,191 61,717
Directors’ emoluments (note 16) BEE50 2 (KisE1e) 3,265 1,568
Operating lease payment in respect of AR AW E 2 K&
office premises HER R 2,035 1,324
Salaries and other benefits T& Kk HAMEF 47,997 45,437
Retirement benefits contributions RRAE FI L R 4,829 4,473
Total staff costs (excluding directors’ BT AN4REE
emoluments) (TRIEEEH) 52,826 49,910
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME  BEREE
and equipment ZEE 164 11
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_ZT-—RAF=A=T—HILFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EERTHARZHE

EMOLUMENTS
Details of the emoluments paid or payable to the
directors and the chief executive of the Company
were as follows:

16. 16.

BN ARTEERTRERZH
SHEMT

Year ended 31 March 2015 BZ-_Z-IE=RA=+-RALEE

Mr. Wang  Mr. Bao Mr. Zhou Dr. Leung Mr. Wong Mr. Tom  Mr. Pan
Jianging Jun Jian Hoi Feng Chi Keung Xie  Junfeng Total
IBE RE A RBH  HEZE  HHEE  EBRE
K& & K& Bt K& K& K& @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® AR®  AR%® AR® AR AR® AR¥  AR%
T F R T F R T F
(note)
(FiH )
Fees we 553 353 62 142 190 142 119 1,561
Other emoluments HipW e
Basic salaries and allowance BERFe RN 672 375 502 - - - - 1,549
Contributions to retirement RIRAE TG &I
benefits schemes 82 39 34 - - - - 155
Total emoluments B @ 1,307 767 598 142 190 142 119 3,265
Year ended 31 March 2014 (restated) BECET-ME=A=t-HLFE(REZ)
Mr. Wang Mr. Pan  Dr. Leung  Mr. Wong Mr. Tom
Jianging Junfeng Hoi Ming  Chi Keung Xie Total
E = BRI REH 2R R
Vit i HL Vit i #at
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTIT ARBTT ARBTIT ARBTT ARKTR
Fees e 238 238 143 190 143 952
Other emoluments Hibt &
Basic salaries and EAFeREM
allowance 509 — — — — 509
Contributions to RRAE A
retirement benefits T4
schemes 107 — — — — 107
Total emoluments & @58 854 238 143 190 143 1,568

Notes: Mr. Pan Junfeng was resigned on 23 September 2014. Misk: BEEXEER-T—NFAAZT=AFIE -
FTEBEENARRARZITHAE - X
BrEFMOEEERTRARMRBHERYE
Z B o

Mr. Wang Jianging is also the chief executive of the
Company and his emoluments disclosed above include
those of services rendered by him as the chief executive.

RBE-Z-—AFR-_Z-—NF=A=+—H
IFMESE BETRASAENEEHE
ERIHFE

Neither that chief executive nor any of the directors
waived any emoluments in both years ended 31 March
2015 and 2014.
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17.

18.

19.

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 7. EEMS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments EFRREEB 2 AR EsHMALZS
working for the Group, three (2014: two) were the EF=F2(CZE—HNF - MB)ATAEER
directors and the chief executive of the Company AIEERITHAH  mMESEz2MEEA
whose emoluments are included in the disclosures EXHIFI6cHBEER  c EBEMA(ZE
in note 16 above. The emoluments of remaining —OFE=F)EMALTZHME N F T
two (2014: three) individuals are fall within the band 381,000,000 7L (B E WA R#787,7907T)
of not more than HKD1,000,000 (equivalent to ZEHE BT
RMB787,790) and details were as follows:
2015 2014
—E—-hF —T—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREET T
(restated)
(&5
Basic salaries and allowance AEARF & RER 1,198 1,369
Contributions to retirement benefits R RAR ) FT &4 50
schemes 70 103
1,268 1,472
DIVIDENDS 18. KRE

No dividends were paid, declared or proposed by
the Company during both years, nor has any
dividend been proposed since the end of the
reporting period.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The weighted average number of shares used for
the purpose of calculating basic earnings per share
for the both years has been adjusted as if the
Consideration Shares (as defined in note 2) was
issued at 1 April 2013, on the basis that the
consolidated financial statements are prepared as if
the UHL and its subsidiaries (“UHL Group”) had
been combined from the date when UHL Group
first came under the control of the common
controlling party of the Company and UHL Group
(note 2).
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_ZT-—RAF=A=T—HILFE

19. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 19. BREF(E)
The calculation of the basic earnings per share for REEBRERBMNEARARFE=FE
the year is based on the profit attributable to equity A FEAG & B 89 A R #19,251,0007T (= &
holders of the Company of approximately —WEEET)) - A K #129,359,0007T)
RMB19,251,000 (2014 (restated): RMB129,359,000) NFARNBDETEBRKRMEFH R
and the weighted average number of 5,302,801,915 5,302,801,915f% (Z T — W F (K =) :
(2014 (restated): 5,302,801,915) ordinary shares in 5,302,801,915/% )5t & ©

issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is not presented as the HRAARRREBEE_ZE—AFE T
Company does not have any potential ordinary FZA-t+—HEFEYETANBLY
shares during the years ended 31 March 2015 and B MU EZYNGREERAN o
2014.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
HEZE-_ZT-—RAF=A=1T—RHILFHE

20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 20. % BERRE
Furniture,
Plant and fixture and Construction
machinery  Buildings Pipeline Vehicles equipment in progress Total
BER R KB HE
W ®¥ il ) R Iz @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTE ARBTI ARBTIT ARE®TRH

COST AR
At 1 April 2013 (restated) RZZT—=5MA—A8

(&%) 817,024 161,378 23,620 64,989 4,298 12,011 1,073,320
Additions NE 8,948 1,086 - 4,570 788 51,178 66,570
Transfer R 18,764 4,824 18,265 — — (41,853) —
Disposals & - (210) - (985) (18) - (1,213)
At 31 March 2014 (restated) RZF-NF=A=1+—H

(lEE5) 844,736 157,078 41,885 68,574 5,068 21,336 1,138,677
Additions NE 511 587 - 692 594 58,894 61,278
Transfer R 19,716 5175 36,746 — — (61,637) —
Disposals HE (10) - - (1,573) (10) - (1,593)
At 31 March 2015 R-_Z-A%=A=+—H 864,953 162,840 78,631 67,693 5,652 18,593 1,198,362

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION — Z5H# &

At 1 April 2013 (restated) RZF—=5MA—R

(&%) 136,837 21,864 855 31,279 2,464 - 193,299
Provided for the year FERE 43,386 6,428 1,518 9,583 802 - 61,717
Eliminated on disposals RS - - - (969) - - (969)
At 31 March 2014 (restated) RZZT-NF=A=1+—H

(B E3) 180,223 28,292 2,373 39,893 3,266 - 254,047
Provided for the year FERE 44,525 7,268 1,607 9,221 570 - 63,191
Eliminated on disposals W R 8 (5) - - (1,306) ©) - (1,317)
At 31 March 2015 W-ZE-RE=A=+—H 204,743 35,560 3,980 47,808 3,830 - 316,921
CARRYING VALUES EEME
At 31 March 2015 R-E-RFZA=+-8 640,210 127,280 74,651 19,885 1,822 18,503 882,441
At 31 March 2014 (restated) RZZ-NFE=A=1+—H

(BE7) 664,513 128,786 39,512 28,681 1,802 21,336 884,630
The above items of property, plant and equipment, FiimE - MEMKZEEE (EEIEK/RIN
except for construction in progress, are depreciated DEANFHREEREEMGAIFERSE
on a straight-line basis, taking into account residual HANEGREERE:

value, over their estimated useful lives:

Plant and machinery 10-20 years = N e 28 102204
Buildings 20 years g 20%F
Pipeline 20 years & 204
Vehicles 4-8 years =] 4585
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-5 years FHR - EBENEE 3&E54F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)
The buildings are situated in the PRC and held
under medium-term lease.

Vehicles with carrying value of RMB12,101,000 and
RMB17,672,000 are held under finance lease as at
31 March 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Buildings with carrying value of RMB59,721,000
and RMB57,006,000 as at 31 March 2015 and
2014, respectively, located in the PRC are in the
process of obtaining the building certificates.

mEVMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_ZT-—RAF=A=T—HILFE

20. % BERRHE R

BFURNTELZPHBEORS -

WoF-RER-F-ME=A=+—A
RRARNEE L EREEEDFAA
R #12,101,0007T & A R #17,672,0007T °

RZE—RAFE-_ZE—NWF=ZA=+—H"
NRPBEZEFEEEINAARKE
59,721,0007T & A K #57,006,0007T ' #%
EEFNFEBLEALRAEES -

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 2. AAHEEN
Prepaid lease payments represent land use rights ENEEFREAEBEZPHENESR
in the PRC obtained by the Group under medium- HFEl THFEARE - M EM s T
term lease and are analysed for reporting purposes
as:
2015 2014
—¥-1f —Z-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR T T
(restated)
(E5)
Current assets MEEE 1,362 1,286
Non-current assets EMEBEE 40,033 40,860
41,395 42,146
At 31 March 2015 and 2014, the Group is in the RZE—RAFR_ZT—NF=A=1+—H0"
process of applying for the land use right certificate AEBERMAPHY — B LIRS
for a piece of land located in the PRC amounting M AEE HEEIDINRARK
to approximately RMB3,538,000 and 3,538,000 & A & #2,994,0007T °© & A
RMB2,994,000, respectively. In the opinion of the AESERE AEETERIREMRF
directors of the Company, the Group is not required WMZELy THFEREFBRERKR
to incur significant additional cost in obtaining the BEANBCAS o
land use right certificates for such piece of land in
the PRC.
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22.  GOODWILL 22. BB
Amount
&
RMB’000
ARETF T
COST A&
At 1 April 2013 (restated), 31 March 2014 R-Z—=FHWA—H (K =%) -
(restated) and 31 March 2015 —mWE=ZA=+—RHEE)
r—E2—AF=H=+—H 56,740
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT it E
At 1 April 2013 (restated), 31 March 2014 RZ-ZE—=FmMA—H(KE7])
(restated) and 31 March 2015 —E-ME=ZA=1t—B(KE)
rEZE—RF=AR=+—H —
CARRYING AMOUNT BREE
At 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014 R-E—RF=A=1+—8B~
(restated) —E-NFE=A=1+—BEEFY) 56,740

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
has been allocated to UHL and its subsidiaries
which represent the production and sales of LNG
segment, together as one group of cash generating
units (“CGUs”"), which represents the lowest level
within the Group at which goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes and is not larger
than the operating segment of production and sales
of LNG, that are expected to benefit from the
business combination. As at 31 March 2015, the
directors of the Company determined that there is
no impairment of its goodwill.
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GOODWILL (Continued) 22. BE(E)
The recoverable amount of the group of CGUs is ReEEBEMMAR AT KE 2B HRE
determined from value in use calculations. The key FREEFEHZET - FHEAME
assumptions for the value in use calculations are FEZ EERBFZFIETEREA 2 AR E
those regarding the discount rates, growth rates EREUREBREEXANTEREEHFEH -
and expected changes to selling price and direct RRARESHARBATL R IR = -
costs during the projection period. The directors of ZHRBALEERRRIREEABEMERZ
the Company estimate discount rates using pre-tax EENERETRR 2AKETHTME -
rates that reflect current market assessments of the BEEDENTELREN -EBRE
time value of money and the risks specific to the ERAGEHDERBEBARTISEE
group of CGUs. The growth rates are based on TEH o
industry growth forecasts. Changes in selling prices
and direct costs are based on past practices and
expectations of future changes in the market.
The calculation uses cash flow projections based ZEEAEERRERBRALDERER
on financial budgets approved by management B ENRAFHUBBEELEZE -2 —1
covering a 5-year period, and discount rate of FZA=-+—HIEFEZBRE16.27% (=
16.27% (2014: 16.27%) for the year ended 31 T—HF1627%) c BB AFH RS
March 2015. The cash flows projections beyond the MIER T F IS REI% MR - ZIERXK
5-year period are extrapolated using a steady 3% TERBEBITEERENAETHEBIER
growth rates. This growth rate is based on the TEZTFHARMAERX - FHAEEMEHE
relevant industry growth forecasts and does not FEZEMEFERZDEFEANRBERE
exceed the average long-term growth rate for the HEREMzBE R AR E M - 8
relevant industry. Other key assumptions for the AT D ERABENZBERBRE
value in use calculations relate to the estimation of BEHMSER AR - ARFESRE -
cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales ZEBRICENAEEEEH T EEY
and gross margin, such estimation is based on the ReELENUBANEE BREEBRB
unit’s past performance and management’s ReEASMMARNEE 2 AIKREBSEE -
expectations for the market development. The
directors of the Company believes that any
reasonably possible change in any of these
assumptions would not cause the aggregate
carrying amount of the assets of the group of the
CGUs to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount
of the assets of the group of the CGUs.
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23.

/

INTANGIBLE ASSET

The intangible asset of the Group represents a
subsidiary’s exclusive operating right of sales of
piped gas to white wine distillery factories located
in Huairen City of Guizhou Provinces in the PRC
under a supplementary agreement entered into
among the subsidiary, another subsidiary of the
Company and E MM R(EE)BR & £ A A
(Guizhou Gas (Group) Co., Ltd) (“Guizhou Gas”),
where Guizhou Gas, which obtained an exclusive
operating licences from local government for the
operation of sales of piped gas in designated areas
in Huairen City of Guizhou Provinces in the PRC
(“Designated Area”) over a period from the year
2007 to 20837, granted exclusive right to a
subsidiary of the Group to operate in the
Designated Area. The intangible asset has finite
useful lives, and is amortised on a straight-line
basis over the remaining operating period of 22
years.

23.

BYEE
AEBECEREERESTHREREAR
AZMBRAR  Z—HEBRARAREMRR
(EE)EREE2ATEMNRRDEFTZ
mRABZALRTEEMNERCTZAH
BREEMEHEEERARZIBREEHE
ETEMARCRELBRTESETE
BMEECHEE R (EEBE)EZ
HEEEARRAZBAREERR  F1
RIEELFE_TLF)ERTAE
BB ARERE R 2 BREEHE -
BVEERERERFY HEKRER
BT EB2F N EH -

Operating right

RMB’000
ARBFT
COST B &
At 1 April 2013 (restated), 31 March 2014 R-Z—=FHHA—H(K=%|) -
(restated) and 31 March 2015 —E-MFE=ZA=+—HEEY)
rM—_Z-FEF=ZA=1+—H 9,837
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION RET#E
At 1 April 2013 (restated) RZTE—=FHWA—B(KET) 99
Provided for the year FREE 393
At 31 March 2014 (restated) RZE—NF=HA=1T—HEEY]) 492
Provided for the year FREAE 393
At 31 March 2015 RZZE—RF=A=+—H 885
CARRYING AMOUNT RHEE
At 31 March 2015 RZE—RF=A=+—H 8,952
At 31 March 2014 (restated) R-E—NFZA=Z+—HEEEY]) 9,345
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24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 24, RBERRIZER
2015 2014
—¥-I4F —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR T T
(restated)
(g &%)
Cost of unlisted investment in Rt A a2 IEL™
associates B N 30,000 30,000
Share of post-acquisition results eI UL 18 4R 462 —
30,462 30,000
The Group’s principal associates accounted for AEEZ ETBEE NG JHERESEAR -
using the equity method and their details are as HEFBOT:
follows:
Place and date of Paid in capital/ Effective equity interest
incorporation/ registered attributable to
Name of associate establishment capital the Group Principal activities
SRR S B R EHEE
BEATEE B # HMEEX FEEEGESEBRE EEER
At 31 March
R=ZA=+—8H
2015 2014
—E—REFE —T—mNUF
BRI T AL EIBDR PRC 8 January 2007  RMB10,000,000 20.0% 20.0% Provision of logistic
BRATE services
(Jiu An Xi Shun Logistic”)
SRZEHMNAREIEY R FRE-TTLF AR R TR
BRARTAEREIEY R —ANH 10,000,0007T
EMRE(EE)RARTIZLEE PRC 25 July 2013 RMB150,000,000 20.0% 20.0% Investment in LNG
BBRAF] (“Guiran Pipeline pipeline
Company”) infrastructure
EMNRR(EE)RXARXBREE PE_Z—=F+A AR BEBRERAREE
ERAR(EREBARD —+HAH 150,000,0007T EWR
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24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s associates is set out below. Aggregated
information of associates are presented as the
Group’s associates are not individually material.

24, RBELEzER(R)
AMALEREARN U BENEER
FIINT o A B — RS A A
BEA - REBEARZE/MBRS] -

2015 2014

—E—-1f —ZT-F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AR T T

(restated)

(£ E7))

Current assets mEE E 205,175 260,434
Non-current assets JEMBE E 313,240 34,122
Current liabilities mE B & (86,735) (56,785)
Non-current liabilities SEME AR (300,000) (100,000)
2015 2014

—¥—-1f —ZT-F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AR T T

(restated)

(&)

Total revenue U 124,667 53,221
Total loss for the year AEEEIEBRE (6,091) (5,139)

The Group’s share of results of REBEEEE QT2

associates E 462 —
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24, INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

mEVMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_ZT-—RAF=A=T—HILFE

24, RBERRzER ()

2015 2014
—F—-4E —mE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
(restated)
(L&)
Net assets of associates BeENAZ FEE 131,680 137,771
Proportion of the Group’s ownership 7 £ B A B & A &)
interest in associates HEEEEZR 2O 20% 20%
Unrecognised share of net liabilities of fE{5 8 & A F 2
an associate FERFEE 4,126 2,446
The Group’s share of net assets of AEFELBEE AT Z
associates FEE 30,462 30,000

During the year ended 31 March 2015, a profit of
RMB462,000 of Guiran Pipeline Company has been
shared by the Group. No results of Guiran Pipeline
Company have been shared by the Group during
the year ended 31 March 2014 as Guiran Pipeline
Company has only been established on 25 July
2013 with no operation commenced during the year
ended 31 March 2014 since its establishment.

The Group has discontinued recognition of the
share of losses of Jiu An Xi Shun Logistic as of the
fact that Jiu An Shi Shun Logistic’s total liabilities
exceeded its total assets.

The amounts of unrecognised share of Jiu An Xi

HEZZ—RAF=-A=+—HLEFE &
EELHERETERAZEZMNAARE
462,000 c HEZT—WE ==+ —
HIEFE - $Eljtﬂﬁf£f%%aLAﬂ
ZEE FABENREBERARAIR-_ZT—=F
+tA-t+RBAKY BBERYEEHZE

T-MMFEZA=Z+—BHILFERLEH

MK
éa@"

AEBEERIEREENLLEIRY R Z

BEE AR/RNLEIBEYMRzZEBERB
HBEE -

FBENZEIRYMRZ RERER(FHEEA

Shun Logistic, extracted from its relevant HiBEEEERWT
management account, is as follows:
2015 2014
et = — g
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR T
(restated)
(& &E5)
Unrecognised share of loss of the RIEREGEHE AT
associate for the year KFEEEE (1,680) (1,028)
Accumulated unrecognised share of RETREREAGE 2
losses of the associate ~alEE (6,568) (4,888)
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25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM NON-CONTROLLING 25. EWHBLAGFERESEEARE
EQUITY OWNERS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Amounts due from non-controlling equity owners of BUMBLAAFZREZEBARE
subsidiaries

2015 2014
—E-1f —ZE-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREBFT
(restated)
(e E5))

Non-controlling equity owner of P A RIIE PR IR R 2
subsidiaries (note a) B A(Ktita) 39,222 36,393

Non-controlling equity owner a — KB A E JEIE AR
subsidiary (note b) @A A D) 1,214 4,959
40,436 41,352

Analyses as: oA

— Current assets — RBEE 1,214 4,959

— Non-current assets (note a) — ERBEE M ta) 39,222 36,393

40,436 41,352

Note a:  The amount is unsecured, interest bearing at 9.6% per Mizta: MESEEER RFEXI6%IAE - AR
annum. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, REEAR HESEEHESREDLE
the amount is not expected to be recovered within RZARBTZEAREAYE - AitH 58
twelve months from end of each reporting period and RIERBDEE -
accordingly is classified as non-current asset.

Note b: The amount represents prepayment for purchase of Mab: HESEARBEEREXARMIFZE
liquefied natural gas and trade receivable, which aged NREREFEWRER BXNELAHRE
within 30 days based on the date of delivery of goods S0KAM AR AR = 2 BB EAEE -
approximated the respective dates on which revenues
was recognised.

*h

26. LONG-TERM RECEIVABLE 2. REEUREA

2015 2014
—E—Ah%F —F—mF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREBFT
(restated)
(e E5))
Long-term receivable £ HA e Uy 3k08 54,359 75,148
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26. LONG-TERM RECEIVABLE (Continued) 26. REEWHEE)
The amount represents an amount due from a HESEBEWRK B AR —BA =%
former equity owner of subsidiaries which is BAZIE)HEEE - 1ZEEFF%E9.6%
unsecured and interest bearing at a fixed rate of AR CARFEERR  MHESHEEHE
9.6% per annum. In the opinion of the directors of EHMERLER AR @ ARE KD -
the Company, the amount is not expected to be AW DERERDEE -

recovered within twelve months from the end of
each reporting period and accordingly is classified
as non-current asset.

27. DEFERRED TAXATION 27, EEHE
The following are the major deferred tax assets LNTAASERSFERRBZCEERE
(liabilities) recognised by the Group and movements MBEEEBEUAREZES -

thereon during the years.

Fair value

adjustment of

properties and
Accelerated intangible asset Temporary
tax upon business  difference on

depreciation combination accruals Tax losses Total
EBatE
MER
MEHRE EREEZ fEtERZ
Fil- ATEEE EREH BEER @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTT ARBFT ARETR ARETR ARBFT
At 1 April 2013 (restated) RZZ—=FMWA—A
(&E35) (11,534) (3,449 720 3,571 (10,692)
(Charge) credit to profit or loss BB (1K) FHA (1,239) 175 (183) (3,571) (4,818)
At 31 March 2014 (restated) RZZ-MF=A=+—-H
(mE751) (12,779) (3,274) 537 - (15,510)
(Charge) credit to profit or loss 182 (3B HA (3,356) 174 764 - (2,418)
Effect of change in tax rate MEGH 22 (ME 14)
(note 14) 3,347 - - - 3,347
At 31 March 2015 RZZT-hF=A=1+—-H (12,782) (3,100 1,301 - (14,581)
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21.

/ o/

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statements of financial position, certain deferred
taxation assets and liabilities has been offset. The
following is the analysis of the deferred taxation
balance for financial reporting purposes:

217.

I 3E % E (1R)

RRINGEAMBERRBRME - & TE
EREAERBECHESY  UTAR
BIT5 2 3R E MM EH MR BB 45 85 DI

2015 2014

—E—-AF —E—mF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AR T T

(restated)

(E5)

Deferred tax assets EERIEE E 1,301 537
Deferred tax liabilities BT IEBE (15,882) (16,047)
(14,581) (15,510)

Under the EIT law of PRC, withholding tax is
imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits
earned by the PRC subsidiaries from 1 January
2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of temporary differences attributable to
the profits earned by the PRC subsidiary amounting
to RMB78,676,000 (2014: RMB77,113,000) as the
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
unutilised tax losses of approximately
RMB28,921,000 (2014: RMB16,964,000), available
for offset against the future profits. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the tax
losses due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. Included in the tax losses are losses of
approximately RMB15,790,000 (2014: RMB7,443,000)
that will expire within five years from the end of the
reporting period. Other tax losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.

Annual Report %

BIERBECEMGH L AZTENF—
A—H  mPBEHEAR RS ZEF AT
ER2IRE S BHRAXENG - GRE8H%
R IR AR BB A B BT R EUR F e
il /) BS B = 58 A R 78,676,000 (= &
— P4 A R¥77,113,0007T) 1E H K IE
E e RS i Sp e s
MEHE Bt EB B TEg R TR &
RO o

RBEHR AEEHEEARSAHEE
B A R#28921,0007T (ZF —M4F : A
R #16,964,0007T) » AJ# 4K 85 K 2 m ) o
W ERHBAEEERECHBEE
BARK EFRKREEBR - HEBER
FEERREBARERAFARE R ZEEBLY
A R#15,790,000 L (ZF —HF : AR
7,443,0007T) c H A BB E 18 0] AR 12
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_ZT-—RAF=A=T—HILFE

28. INVENTORIES 28. RFE§
2015 2014
TR —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR F T ARBEFIT
(restated)
(=&=5)
Raw materials R 7,993 6,365
Spare parts and consumable 1 ROB R m 10,125 8,880
Finished goods B BK o 27,650 13,793
45,768 29,038
S
29. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 29. BHREMERRR
2015 2014
—E—AR%F —E—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARET T
(restated)
(&= &E:7)
Trade receivables B RBAEER 510,477 1,482,908
Bills receivables e = & 6,747 138,951
Other receivables E A fE UG BR 3R 20,892 14,250
Prepayments TER K 479,512 277,274
Short-term advances (note) ISEEEZENC D) - 22,000
1,017,628 1,935,383

Note: The balance as at 31 Mar 2014 represented the short-
term advances to a former equity owner of subsidiaries
which was unsecured and interest-free. The amount was
settled during the year and details of which are described
in note 33.

The Group generally requires prepayments made by

Mid: RZE-—WOF=ZA=+—BZ&EHELKTH

BRARA - A REEAANZERRR
HEAREERARLE -
B BRFBENMESS -

HE

FZERRENFRLE

AEEBEREREHRRB AT —REFER

EFEMNFE AKEETIFHEE
HIB0EQORZE TEPKIN - AEE T A
HAEPREEHNERMEEE SRR
RENERREAAREEHTRMN R -

customers before delivery of goods or provision of
services, except for certain customers to which the
Group allows an average credit period of 30 to 90
days. The Group also allow customers to settle the
trade receivables before the end of credit period or
to make prepayments to the Group by bills
receivables.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015

HE_T—AF=A=1+—HLFE
29. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 29. EZ R HEEWER (&)
Trade receivables arisen from oil and gas sales BERRRARRBECHNZESREKER
contracts which are settled either by letter of credit DUEBREETIARERE TREET
or bills issued by banks with high credit-ratings JzRTBEHZERRKKEE S % $
assigned by international credit- rating agencies HEEHENEREEHHERSE
and are receivable with an average credit period BEFtAZ2ANXEATE -
ranging from seven days to six months after the
date of delivery of commodity to customers or by
telegraphic transfer.
The following is an aged analysis of trade LAT% RE MR B H (R =
receivables net of allowance for doubtful debts RZBBHEA) 2V 2B ZERERG0R
presented based on the date of delivery of goods %ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ)zﬁﬁﬁl‘\ AT
or rendering of services which approximated the
revenue recognition date:
2015 2014
—¥—-1fF — M F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥TF T
(restated)
(&5
Within 30 days 30HA 55,578 121,726
31-90 days 31290H 249,857 1,361,131
91-180 days 912180H 201,104 —
Over 180 days 180H A + 3,938 51
510,477 1,482,908
The following is an aged analysis of bills receivables D/{Tj% = 75/\1451 BB EREE Y
based on the date of receipt of bills:
2015 2014
—¥-1f — M F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR T T
(restated)
(&E5)
Within three months Z@AR 6,747 136,651
Three months to six months Z@AzEEA - 2,300
6,747 138,951
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
Before accepting any new customer, the Group
assesses the potential customer’s credit quality and
defines credit limits by customer. The directors of
the Company are of the opinion that the credit
quality of the trade receivable balances that are
neither past due nor impaired as at the end of the
reporting period is good as the repayment history
of the debtors is satisfactory.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balances
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
approximately RMB197,873,000 (2014: RMB250,000)
which are past due at 31 March 2015 and 2014,
respectively, for which the Group has not provided
for impairment loss as the management considered
the amounts are still recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances. The
amounts were subsequently settled.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables which are
past due but not impaired are as follows:

29.

mEVMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_ZT-—HF=A=1+—-HILFE

B 5 & Hth B WS AR 7R ()
EERE@MAES 2N AEBRTG
EBEEFPZEREERREEEFPNEHN
RE - AAREERA  REEHRER
B R 2 B 5 MR B A B 2 AR
HEZBRIT AAMEKAZEREH
RAF o

AN EEE S E WG B RIEE
RZE—RAFRERZTE—NF=ZA=+—H
ERHBHEBELEEESNNAARE
197,873,0007T & A R #250,0007T 2 fE UK
B AEBEVESZERETRBAE
E5iE - BATEERAMBAENAIKE -
AEBEWERZEEBITBEMERR -
ZEREEBELES -

BERPHERREZEIRERERZER
DWW

2015 2014

—E-EF —E—IF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREEFIT

(restated)

(&)

31-180 days 312180H 197,691 199
Over 180 days 180H A + 182 51
197,873 250

All trade receivables are assessed not to be B8 S KRS T rERE R FHERE -

impaired individually and they are further assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. No impairment
has been recognised on trade receivables during
the year. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited T RRIZERER AT
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29.

/o /

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
No impairment has been recognised on other
receivables during the year. The directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the other
receivables are not impaired as the amounts mainly
represent value-added tax recoverable and
advances to staff which were fully utilised and
settled respectively subsequent to the end of the
reporting period.

Transfer of financial assets

The followings were the Group’s financial assets as
at the end of each reporting period that were
transferred to banks or suppliers by discounting or
endorsing those bills receivables on a full recourse
basis. As the Group has not transferred the
significant risks and rewards relating to these bills
receivables, it continues to recognise the full
carrying amount of the bills receivables and the
corresponding liabilities included in secured
borrowings or trade payables respectively. These
financial assets are carried at amortised cost in the
Group’s consolidated statements of financial
position.

Bills receivable discounted or endorsed

29.

EZRHMRW RN (R)

£ P9 3 1% B EL fth 18 U BR SRR SRORLMEL o K
DEEERA - H U BRI M
P 4 18 0 #KOF 3 B 45 7 e B 48 B B R 3R
EHMRECHBRIFAL EREE
BTET 28R -

EECRmEE

ATRAEEREREHRREBLRMEA
PHEREEEFAXSEZSTRER
BEMEETROTIXMEDZ2EMEE -
HRARETEERZTRERECE
RERBREER HESBEREBREER
DRIGANEERBEEXNEZERNERZ
HREEZ2BEREE ZFeREE
TRASEZ G MBMRRBEANIRE
HARAARR

EHBEAEEZENE

2015 2014
—E-1F —E-mF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBT T
(restated)
(g=7))
Carrying amount of bills receivables ITATEEER R
from — external customers HE — IBRF 6,114 95,589
Carrying amount of trade and other B REMEMERZ
payables fRmEE (6,114) (24,000)
Carrying amount of bank borrowings  R{TEE 2 BREE - (71,589)
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30. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES 300 EWEBEALTE

2015 2014
—¥—-4afF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTR ARBF T
(restated)
(& &5)
TEEEMEERERER AR Jiangsu T & EE FeL RERE
Runfu New Energy Development BRAR(NIFRES)
Company Limited) (“JS Runfu®) (Fff 3Fa)
(note a) 1,082 _
EMT=eeRBRAAE (Guangzhou BEMNT=eelRERAA
Circle Energy Company Limited) (=88R DM 7Eb)
(“Circle Energy”) (note b) 1,841 33,808
BERETEHERAMR DA (Guangdong ERETEERER AR
Huaheng Energy Company Limited TEXRZE=] (M)
(“Guangdong Huaheng”) (note c) - —
2,923 33,808
The maximum amounts outstanding during the year REAMKRKE 2 ZRSERT:
are as follow:
2015 2014
—E-EF —E—IF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBEFRT AREBFT
(restated)
(g &E5)
JS Runfu TEHEE 1,082 —
Circle Energy JLF REIR 33,808 36,046
Guangdong Huaheng ERET - 29,550
Note a: A company which Mr. Wang Jian, a brother of Mr. Mta: BEEEZHPBERLERESRELZES
Wang, has equity interests and control over it. The ZATE c ZHIBEER - RERNERE
amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on EE -
demand.
Note b: A company which Mr. Wang is a key management Mab: BMELEEETEBERBABZAR - HEH
personnel. The amount represents prepayment for SHARBERIELRARMIN ZEMAK
purchase of liquefied natural gas and trade receivable, Mz E B (R =ER 2 EE B EBRES)

SHERERAOACE SRR - HE S
HRAEER 2ERNRERKEE -

which aged within 30 days based on the date of
delivery of goods which approximated the respective
dates on which revenues was recognised. Amount is
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
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30.

31.

32.

[ =/

AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES
(Continued)

Note c: A company which Mr. Wang and his brother has 90%
and 10% equity interest respectively and control over it.

SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

As at 31 March 2015 and 2014, the Group’s short-
term investments mainly represent financial
products issued by a bank in the PRC, with an
expected but not guaranteed return of 3.34% (2014:
3.20%) per annum, depending on the market price
of its underlying financial instruments, including
listed debentures. The financial products are
designated at FVTPL on initial recognition as they
contain embedded derivatives that are not closely
related to the host contract. The directors of the
Company consider the fair value of the financial
products approximate to their principal amounts as
at 31 March 2015 and 2014 and the fair value of
the embedded derivatives is insignificant.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity
of three months or less. Bank balances carry
interest at market rates with market rates of 0.35%
(2014: 0.35%) per annum, as at 31 March 2015 and
2014.

The pledged bank deposits carrying interest rates
which range from 2.30% to 3.30% (2014: 2.50% to
3.08%) per annum, amounting to RMB383,405,000
(2014: RMB123,177,000) have been pledged to
secure bills payables repayable within six months
and nil (2014: RMB140,000,000) pledged bank
deposits have been pledged to secure bank
borrowings which were released upon the
settlement as at 31 March 2015.

Bank balances comprise short-term bank deposits
with maturity of three months or less. The short-
term bank deposits carry interest at market rate of
0.35% (2014: 0.35%) per annum.

Annual Report %

30.

31.

32.

EREBREALRE(R)

MsEc: MBELEEREREBDHEEI0% K10% K
IS 2 AR .
RHERE

R_E—RAFR_ZFT—NF=A=1+—8"
AREEBZCHEREFTEHRERAPH—HEIR
TETHEMERNRE  BHUETRE)
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33. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 33. EZRHEMEMGERR
2015 2014
—E—1hfF —T-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREF T
(restated)
(& &E3)
Trade payables B I ENER 334,737 1,362,585
Bills payables FERE & 605,700 392,256
Other payables H b FE T BR 5K 42,314 289,148
Other tax payables H b BT 7 1B 10,840 25,320
Consideration payable (note) AR E () - 47,000
Receipts in advance T8 Uk BR 3% 95,825 40,563
Payroll payables B TE 1,466 1,358
Compensation payable FE B & 10,442 10,442
1,101,324 2,168,672
Note: The amount in prior year represented consideration B 5+ 2% F o% BXCTE 48 B UK BB 52 M B R §139% AR 1
payable to a former equity owner of subsidiaries regarding MEMHMEBAR —ZREIERESZERTAZ
the acquisition of 39% of the equity interest in those RE - ZERBAEERRES - FR K
subsidiaries. The amount was unsecured and interest-free. EEBENBARREEREREAAGLE
During the year, the Group has entered into a settlement B Bt BRAREUNABS R HEAM
agreement with the former equity owner of subsidiaries JE U AR SR (B[ 3529) A Ko £ HA & M 5% 18 (B 7
whereby the consideration payable were set-off against 26) Nz EW B AR IEERIESHEEAZ
the amounts due from the former equity owner of RIFE 8 o
subsidiaries as included in trade and other receivables
(note 29) and long-term receivable (note 26).
Trade payables arisen from oil and gas purchase FHREAAGEEAN B ERER
contracts which are granted by suppliers with an Tt EERAEEEERMA LRSS
average credit period ranging from seven days to ERREY T BT H « £ E R
six months after the bills of lading date of delivery, ERIE ARG TGS EMNER T ER
and trade payables arisen from production and BB S S AR A30EE0RFE YT
sales of LNG which are granted by suppliers with BB EE D o
an average credit period ranging from 30 days to
90 days after the bills of lading date of delivery.
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33. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 33. BESRHMEMRN(E)

Besides, certain suppliers will also require to have oh - BETHEBITEERLKRHERM
prepayments received before the supply of BEIREBENR AN EEB LTS NES
materials. The Group will arrange for certain of its THENRIUNENEZEREEESEMNE
prepayments or settlement of trade payable by bills Ko

payables.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables INTEEFEMNERERRREHRIZE
presented, based on the invoice date, at the end of FHEETZRER DI

the reporting period:

2015 2014
—E-1fF —T-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
(restated)
(e &E5)
Within 90 days 90H K 315,504 1,342,855
91-180 days 912180H 9,418 8,844
181-365 days 181£365H 711 1,107
Over 1 year HBiE—F 9,104 9,779
334,737 1,362,585

The following is an aged analysis of bills payables WTAEBEEZAHETZENEERR

based on the date of issue of bills: SaRNIEE

2015 2014
—E—-A%F —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFIT
(restated)
(&E5)
Within three months =®AR 371,500 253,556
Three months to six months —@®A=~MEA 234,200 138,700
605,700 392,256
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34. AMOUNT DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE 3. BN-BBERTNE
2015 2014
—¥-4LfF —T—mEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥FT
(restated)
(& &E3)
Amount due to an associate B — ML AR KA 22,310 338
The amount represents payables for purchase of ZREERBERERXAREY TR
liquefied natural gas and logistic service, which is 2 RER BB ZENRIE - ZERIEAR
aged within 30 days. The amount is unsecured, mEA RERARERER-
interest-free and repayable on demand.
35. AMOUNT DUE TO A SHAREHOLDER 3. Ef—BRERE
2015 2014
—¥-4LfF —T-mEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥EFT
(restated)
(L &E5)
Amount due to a shareholder e — 2 MR K8 6,105 6,155
The amount is unsecured, interest-free and FZHBREER  RERBIREREE -
repayable on demand.
The amount represents amount due to Frontier R IBIEFERT S8R IR IR -
Global.
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36. BANK BORROWINGS

3. ®ITFEE

2015 2014
=Rk - —ZT-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AREEF T
(restated)
(&&E5)
Bank borrowings repayable: fEEE ZIRITEE:
— Within 1 year — 1F R 648,895 758,589
— More than 1 year, but not — HB1FETHIB2F
exceeding 2 years 10,000 4,000
— More than 2 years, but not — HiB2FETHIBsF
exceeding 5 years 30,000 18,000
— More than 5 years — 5 F 11,000 15,000
699,895 795,589
Less: Amount due within one W R —FREE RS AR
year and shown under BBE A
current liabilities (648,895) (758,589)
Amount repayable after one year ZBR—FEEE NI AIE
and shown under non-current MEAB A
liabilities 51,000 37,000
Analysed as: DT
Secured BEA 674,895 724,000
Unsecured Eg 25,000 71,589
699,895 795,589

The bank borrowings due for

classified based on the scheduled repayment dates
as set out in the relevant loan agreements, where
applicable. The secured bank loans as at end of
each reporting period were secured by the Group’s

repayment are

assets and guaranteed by related parties as set out

in notes 41 and 43, respectively.
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mEVMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_ZT-—HF=A=1+—-HILFE

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 36. RITEE(E)
The ranges of effective interest rates per annum REBZRITEEZEBRFMNER(IES
(which are also equal to contractual interest rates) WAMERE) 2 HEMNT
on the Group’s bank borrowings are as follows:
2015 2014

—E—AfF —ZE-mF
Fixed-rate bank borrowings EERITEE 2.50%-7.84% 6.50%-7.84%
Floating-rate bank borrowings FERBITEE 6.00%-6.78% 6.15%-8.10%
Floating-rate borrowings amounted to RZEBE-—hFR-_ZFT-—HNF=H=1+—8"
RMB102,000,000 and RMB159,000,000 at 31 ¥ REE DB A AR %102,000,0007T &
March 2015, and 2014, respectively. The borrowings A R #159,000,0007C °» sZ S B E 2 Fl =
are arranged at the interest rate based on THEAF B A RIRT M 2 FHEFR ([ X
benchmark interest rate from the People’s Bank of EFENINEFGER) RSB AER - F4
China (“Benchmark Rate”) plus, if applicable, a SEABRBASRENERR -
premium and expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk.
As at the end of each reporting periods, the REFEHER GHRFRITEERERE
secured bank borrowings included bills receivables WEE ZERWEBRCRE2EERE
transferred to banks and third parties by HEFFVAEEZFAEBETEREIRL
discounting or endorsing those bills receivables on E-F BRAEEREZZTRKE
a full recourse basis. As the Group has not BoHEBERRRKREER  WHEED
transferred the significant risks and rewards relating BREHRz2E2BEEERAEEERR
to these bills receivables, it continues to recognise BEEBETEERGHE RN E29) -
the full carrying amount of the bills receivables and
the corresponding liabilities included in secured
bank borrowings (see note 29 for details).
Most of the bank borrowings of the Group are REBZ KBHRITEEANARKEEE -
denominated in RMB. The carrying amount of the RZE—RAF=ZA=+—8 TEEBLI
Group’s foreign currency denominated bank METE 2 R1TEE A R1152,895,0007T
borrowings of RMB152,895,000 (2014: nil) is (ZZ -4 - |) 2 REE T AETTEE -
denominated in USD as at 31 March 2015.
OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 37. MEHNEE

The Group leased certain of its vehicles under
finance leases. The lease term is ranging from
three years to five years. Interest rates underlying
all obligations under finance leases are fixed at
respective contract dates ranging from 5.76% to
7.56% per annum. These leases have terms of
renewal or purchase options that the Group has
the ability to continue the lease for a secondary
period at a rent or purchase at a consideration that
is substantially lower than the market value.

Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited T RRIZERER AT
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37.  OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 37. WMEHEAREGE)
(Continued)

The Group’s obligations under finance leases are
secured by the lessor’'s charge over the

abovementioned leased assets (see notes 20 and 41).

AEBBEROREDALAAY Lt
MEEEZWLIEEM (R M E20R4)

Minimum Present value of
lease minimum lease
payments payments
REKEL RiEHEZHE
As at 31 March As at 31 March
W=A=+—H W=H=+—H
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E—AF —T—NF ZFE—HEFE —T—NmFE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARBTIT ARETRT ARBTT
(restated) (restated)
(=7)) (&E5)
Amount payable under BEMEETZ
finance leases FE T 5K IE
Within one year —F R 6,104 6,670 5,635 5,333
Later than one year and  — & BT BB
not later than two years  Mj4F 1,462 6,756 1,398 6,187
Later than two year and N F & B B
not later than five years hEF = 1,462 = 1,398
7,566 14,888 6,933 12,918
Less: future finance B ARRBE X
charges (633) (1,970) N/A N/A
EA i A
Present value of minimum HEHE & 2R E
lease payments 6,933 12,918 6,933 12,918
Less: Amounts due for  JF: ER+ @A
settlement within W18 2 258 (5]
twelve months AmE&aE)
(shown under
current liabilities) (5,535) (5,333)
Amounts due for AR+ E A%
settlement after twelve BEZEHE
months 1,398 7,585
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SHARE CAPITAL
THE COMPANY

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEeEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_ZT-—RAF=A=T—HILFE

38. BRA
NN

per Number of Nominal

share shares value Amount

Bk BRHHE REESH

HKD HKD’000

BT FET

Authorised:
As at 1 April 2013 and
31 March 2014 and

EE
R-ZE—=FmWA—HBHEK
—E-mE=A=+—-AK

31 March 2015 —E-—RFE=ZA=+—H 0.1 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITERHE:
As at 1 April 2013 and 31 RZ-ZE—=FWA—ABXK

March 2014 —E—UF=A=+—H 0.1 1,019,592,858 101,959

Issue of Consideration

BHITRER D (T2

Shares (note 2) 01  4,283,209,057 428,321
At 31 March 2015 R-E—RFE=ZA=+—H 0.1 5,302,801,915 530,280
Analysed for reporting MEFRAEMEL 22

purposes as:

RMB’000
AREF T
At 31 March 2015 R-ZE—RF=ZA=+—H 443,282
At 31 March 2014 RZE—NFE=A=+—H
(restated) (& &E751) 102,767
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39. INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material
non-controlling interests

39. WELAREHR

Proportion of equity

interest held by

non-

controlling equity

BEEAFEREZEZF2ENBLRAFE

Profit (loss)
allocated to Accumulated

non-controlling non-controlling

Name of subsidiary owners interests interests
MEBASEE FERESEAARSE SEFHERERZ Rt =R
ZHE LB i F (B 18) i
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-hfE —T-WFE ZT-AE —_TNF ZT-HE —ZT-WOF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARETT ARETET AR®BTT
(restated) (restated)
(=) (&7
Xingxing Energy EEHR 31.0% 31.0% 12,337 22,884 96,773 84,436
Huixin Energy fE &R 31.0% 31.0% (3,612) 13,419 2,329 5,941
Huaheng Energy ETHR 50.3% 50.3% 6,027 3,965 32,062 28,035
Individually immaterial BESBETIEKX
subsidiaries with non- B I R
controlling interests w2 MEAR N/A N/A (1,458) (1,440) 10,638 12,096
ER i@ B
13,294 38,828 141,802 130,508
Summarised financial information represents TXHINEBEAFEEREZE 2 E

amounts before intra-group eliminations in respect
of each of the Group’s subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests are set out below.

EMBRAAZHBENBE HEER
IR 2 288 -

2015 2014

—E—AF —E—mF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFTT ARBEF T

(restated)

(&£ &E5)

Current assets BB E 348,105 315,830

Non-current assets ERBEE 297,291 319,043

Current liabilities mEAE (330,798) (350,856)

Non-current liabilities ERBEE (2,426) (11,642)
Equity attributable to owners of ~ ANEE A A EEEZE

the Group 215,399 187,939

Non-controlling interests FE ¥ iR B = 96,773 84,436
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39. INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)  39. HIBARER (&)
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material BEEAHEREZEZF2ENBARFE (H)
non-controlling interests (Continued)

2015 2014
—ET—AF —E-mF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AREFT
(restated)
(&=E5)
Revenue Wz 647,345 737,435
Finance costs ELEY DN (9,847) (34,712)
Other expenses and other income H b 5 3z & H th Ug A 5,344 5,035
Profit and total comprehensive FERBMR 2B A B
income for the year 39,797 73,824
Profit attributable to: AT A T AL & F
Owners of the Group KEBEAE A 27,460 50,940
Non-controlling interests FE1E IR 7 5 12,337 22,884
Net cash from operating activities 4% %15 23R & F58 143,577 69,439
Net cash (used in) from investing & E/E8 (FT#E)FTER &
activities e (91,125) 74,650
Net cash used in financing BEEB MR ©F5E
activities (56,152) (154,537)
Net cash outflow Re M FRE (3,700) (10,448)
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39. INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material

non-controlling interests (Continued)

39.

M B 2R &R (R

BREXAHEREZ K2 ENBLARFE (R

2015 2014
—E—AF —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFR AREF T
(restated)
(E5)
Current assets mENEE 98,733 356,967
Non-current assets FEMEEE 421,293 434,950
Current liabilities mMEEE (499,725) (768,351)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (12,782) (4,404)
Equity attributable to owners of the AEERHEEA
Group FE(L = 5,190 13,221
Non-controlling interests IR E S 2,329 5,941
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39.

INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39.

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material

non-controlling interests (Continued)

WELRER (F)

BREXAHEREZ K2 ENBLARFE (R

2015 2014
—E—AF —E—mF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTR AR¥ET T
(restated)
(e &E5)
Revenue W g 397,710 622,574
Finance costs B & B AR (42,711) (57,763)
Other expenses and other income  Eth 5 2 K E 4th g A 1,132 6,587
(Loss) profit and total FE(EE) RN R2MEUK
comprehensive income for Az
the year (11,643) 43,289
(Loss) profit attributable to: LATRA L FEME (B518) & F
Owners of the Group rEBEHEBA (8,031) 29,870
Non-controlling interests I #2° B% 4 2 (3,612) 13,419
Net cash from operating activities 4&&¥£EHE 2
ReFHE 214,169 (41,637)
Net cash from (used in) investing & & E AT (FTFE)
activities H e Fam 153,502 46,608
Net cash (used in) from financing Bt & EE) (Fr ) Fr 12
activities e FE (404,535) 9,147
Net cash (outflow) inflow BWe ORd)mAFE (36,864) 14,118
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39. INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39.

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material

non-controlling interests (Continued)

WELRER (F)

BREXAHEREZ K2 ENBLARFE (R

2015 2014

—T-1f —T-F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETTT ARET T

(restated)

(&£ &E5)

Current assets RBEE 69,357 81,989

Non-current assets EMEEE 152,867 110,728

Current liabilities mBEaE (107,497) (99,993)

Non-current liabilities ERBERE (51,000) (37,000)
Equity attributable to owners of the AEEHESAEN

Group Eam 31,665 27,689

Non-controlling interests JE ¥ % 2= 32,062 28,035

/ 154 / 2075 Annual Report # %




39.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEVMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_ZT-—RAF=A=T—HILFE

INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)  39. HIBARER (&)
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material BEEAHEREZEZF2ENBARFE (H)

non-controlling interests (Continued)

2015 2014
—T-1f —T-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTR ARET T
(restated)
(& &E5)
Revenue Wz 233,653 174,692
Finance costs Bl & AR (5,261) (1,743)
Other expenses and other income HAb B2 R H MU A 798 1,155
Profit and total comprehensive income 4 Z % F| & & B U A
for the year 4= 11,979 7,882
Dividend f% 2 4,000 4,000
Profit attributable to: ATA LS RT
Owners of the Group KEBHEAR A 5,952 3,917
Non-controlling interests JEVE R M = 6,027 3,965
Net cash from operating activities REZETIFZ
R FHE (38,752) (38,074)
Net cash used in investing activities KEEZEFE
W& FHE 12,745 (32,360)
Net cash from financing activities BEEB TG
ReFHE 25,931 46,065
Net cash outflow e 7w IFE (76) (24,369)
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40.

/

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a MPF Scheme for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of
the scheme are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of trustee. For
members of the MPF Scheme, the Company
contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the
scheme, which contribution is matched by
employees but subject to a maximum amount of
HKD1,250 (equivalent to RMB992) per person per
month prior to June 2014 and revised to HKD1,500
(equivalent to RMB1,189) per month for each
employee thereafter, which is matched by
employee. In addition, the Group’s contribution to a
state-managed retirement benefit scheme in the
PRC are expensed as fall due while the state
government in the PRC undertakes to assume the
retirement benefit obligations of all existing and
future retirees of the qualified staff in the PRC. The
Group is required to contribute certain percentage
of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to
fund the benefits.

The retirement benefit cost charged to the profit or
loss in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income represents
contributions payable to the schemes by the Group
at the rates specified in the rules of the schemes.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS Y EEEH
The following assets were pledged at end of each THEERSREMERKE THEHA -
reporting period as collaterals for certain banking EAAREBERA TRITHME 2HKER
facilities granted to the Group:
2015 2014
—T—-1f —T-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETF T
(restated)
(=E75)
Property, plant and equipment held REBREROFTEZ
under finance leases ME - MENMKE 12,101 17,672
Other property, plant and equipment — EAb¥ % « = &R E 634,053 667,356
Land use right + b {5 A 23,230 24173
Pledged bank deposits BEHEBIETER 383,405 263,177
Bills receivables FEW R & - 111,589
1,052,789 1,083,967

As at the end of each reporting period, equity

RERSHR ETHWERARZRER

interests in certain subsidiaries were pledged to ERBBTRIT FAXEEERZE
banks to secure loan facilities granted to the A 7
Group.
OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 42. REHERE
The Group as lessee AREBERRBEA
2015 2014
—T-EF —E—IF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTR AREF T
(restated)
(&)
Minimum lease payments paid under ARFED 2 E KL
operating leases for its premises MAREHAS
during the year 2,035 1,324
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42.

43.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (Continued) 42. R&HE&E(E)
The Group as lessee (Continued) AEEEARBAE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RBEBRR  AEBRIETAIEELE
commitment for future minimum lease payment AOEMZARZEBASEEZEHB
under non-cancellable operating leases which fall SEATR
due as follows:
2015 2014
—E—-AfF —E—mF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥EFT
(restated)
(&E5)
Within one year —FN 1,611 1,455
In the second to fifty years inclusive ~ MEZER+F -
BREEEMF 2,636 1,980
Over five years AEMN 300 488
4,547 3,923
Operating lease payments represented rental KEHERBEEAEBRRETHARE
payable by the Group for certain office premises. XEMNzHE MHTKEDER - T
Leases were negotiated for an average term of one HHEBR—EMSF o
to two years.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND OTHER 43. EBEALXRZREMKE

DISCLOSURES
Balances with related parties are stated in the
consolidated statements of financial position and
the related notes.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
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43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND OTHER 43. EEEATXRZREMIFEE(E)
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Save as disclosed in respective notes above, the

RERBBAMEREEN AKEZE

Group had the following transactions with related BEALRZWT:
parties:
2015 2014
“E-EF -—T-HEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
(restated)
(=)
a) Sales of LNG to an a)m—EEE AT HEERIL
associate XAR
— Jiu An Shi Shun Logistics — NEZEEY R 8,332 11,075
b) Sales of LNG to related b)EEFEATHERIL
parties XAR
— Circle Energy — TLFEER 1,088 27,737
— BEEMEM (note a) — B EMEREa) 24,721 —
— JS Runfu — L& HEE 23,824 12,788
c) Sales of oil and gas contract c) $HERME X AREH
— Circle Energy — TLFEER 10,507 8,546
— Circle Energy (Hong Kong) — TFRR(BEB)BRATF
Co., Limited (note a) (M 3Ea) - 333,276
— Circle Energy (Singapore) — TFRERGIME) BR
Co. Pte. (note a) A a) (M Ea) - 3,143,524
d) Purchase of LNG from a dEEFAEALTBEBERILX
related party RE
— Circle Energy — JLF R 5,621 30,297
e) Purchase of LNG from an o) —HEZEATBERIL
associate XAR
— Guiran Pipeline Company — BEMEERT 88,620 91,477
f) Purchase of oil and gas )EERAHRRXAREL
contract
— Circle Energy — LT ER - 2,511,939
— Circle Energy (Hong Kong) — TR EB)BRAT
Co., Limited (note a) (M 5Fa) 1,013,064 23,179
g) Interest expense to a related g)HBEMHAEALTZFZFE
party B
— Circle Energy — TLZEER - 2,128
h) Interest income from a hZREBBHEEALTZFEWKA
related party
— Circle Energy — L EEIR 2,304 —
Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited T MRZERERAT 159




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HEZE-_ZT-—RAF=A=1T—RHILFHE

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND OTHER 43. EREATXRSZREMEE (&)
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Note a: The entities are subsidiaries of Circle Energy, and as at fiiita: ZEBERBATFHRRIMBEBLR RZZT—
31 March 2015, the Group has prepayments of AF=A=+—8" K%lﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ'ﬂ%
RMB217 million (2014: nil) (including in trade and B 7 B 3B A R#217,000,000T (=& —
other receivables) which is unsecured and interest W : @) (RIEES R EAERER) -
free.
2015 2014
—E-1f —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREF T
(restated)
(&E5)
i) Selling expense to a related i) FFPEREALZ
party HERX
— Circle Energy (note b) — L= 2R (M D)
Sales of LNG HERIERAR - 162,645
Repurchase of LNG BERIELRAR - (167,839)
Net selling expense & B ST EE - (5,194)
Note b: During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group b BEZFZ-—NF=A=+—BLFE BX
incurred selling expense paid to Circle Energy in respect M EEENEEZEREEEETF LT
of sales to customers introduced by Circle Energy in BERZBIEXARBEBEE T TLZRHENA
the form of repurchase of LNG sold to Circle Energy at ZRP AEEELAENTTRIRZHER
a markup from the original selling price. For the X o REVNGEER REMEEKRARE -
presentation in the consolidated statement of profits or FHABEERBEMEEEE ZBFADER
loss and other comprehensive income, the sales and HERMX °
purchases has been offset with the difference included
in the distribution and selling expenses.

j) Guarantee given by related party in i) FRAEANITREAREERZRT
respect of bank borrowings and banking EERRITREELHZRKE
facilities granted to the Group

2015 2014

—E—-A%F —E—mF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AREF T

(restated)

(e &E5)

— Mr. Wang — 4% 4E 700,000 700,000
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43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND OTHER 43. EEEATXRZREMIFEE(E)
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

k) Compensation of key management ky ZEEBEASZHHN
personnel
The remuneration of members of key AEBFEEBEENE (KRR
management of the Group other than the EERTRAHBRINZFEM W
directors and chief executive of the Company T

during the year are as follows:

2015 2014
—®-EF —TWF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR F T
(restated)
(& E5)

Compensation of key FEEBRABZEHM
management personnel 2,093 1,757
Basic salaries and allowance AR o KER 161 138

Contributions to retirement BRIRE T8I
benefits schemes 2,254 1,895
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 44. EARHBRRER

COMPANY
Statement of financial position of the Company at RMEPRR XRR 2 HBRAFERMY
the end of the reporting period is summarised as JIg N
follows:
2015 2014
—E—AF —E-mF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR F T
(restated)
CE=2)
Non-current assets IEMEBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIKE 4,057,897 2,775
Amount due from a subsidiary JFE Wi — fiEl B JB 2 &)
EQL| 56,877 62,983
4,114,774 65,758
Current assets mENEE
Other receivables H A fE UK BR R 39 170
Bank balances and cash WITHEGF AR 203 265
242 435
Current liabilities mENaE
Other payables b JE T BR X 355 2,220
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE ST B BB A Rl R IE - 176
355 2,396
Net current liabilities MEBAEFEE (113) (1,961)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERMESEE 4,114,661 63,797
Capital and reserves &% A I 5 45
Share capital [N 443,282 102,767
Reserves (note 45) fi& (M 5 45) 3,671,379 (38,970)
Total equity R 4,114,661 63,797
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45, RESERVES OF THE COMPANY 45. RDFRE
Share Other Translation Accumulated

premium reserve reserve losses Total
BpriE  HtkER BREREE RitE1E @zt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT AR®TT ARBETT ARBTT

(note)

(Bf3E)

At 1 April 2013 (restated) R-ZE—=FmWA—H

(&5 160,816 62,921 (178,113) (75,237) (29,613)
Loss and total AEEEBEEREE
comprehensive expense FZ B
for the year — — — (9,357) (9,357)

At 31 March 2014 (restated) M == —[I4F

ZA=+—8
(&5 160,816 62,921 (178,113) (84,594) (38,970)
Loss and total TEEEBR
comprehensive expense 2HEHAYBE
for the year — — — (1,266) (1,266)
Issue of Consideration BITRER D
Shares (note 2) (fF5E2) 3,711,615 — — — 3,711,615
At 31 March 2015 R-ZT—HF
=A=+-—H 3,872,431 62,921 (178,113) (85,860) 3,671,379
Note: The other reserve represented the credit arising from the e HithBEEERAERAMEE ZHERTE - KA
capital reduction where the par value of each existing BB EBKUAFESREBRND 28 B
share was reduced from RMBO0.10 to RMBO0.01 by the AEEARECOT FRBAERNG z2@EE
cancellation of RMB0.09 of the paid-up capital on each A REOIOTHIRE ARKE.OIT »

existing share in prior years.
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46.

47.

/ o/

EVENT AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE

On 21 April 2015, two subsidiaries of the Company
entered into an agreement with Guizhou Gas and
EMeBAEREBRAA (“Guzhou Jingiao
Zhongxin Investments Limited”) (“Agreement”) to
acquire an aggregate 50% equity interests of
Guizhou Gas (Group) Xishui Jingiao Gas Co.,
Limited (“Guizhou Xishui”). The total consideration
for the acquisition of the Group’s 50% interest in
Guizhou Xishui is RMB36,735,000 which include
cash and share consideration, in which
RMB36,000,000 shall be paid to Guizhou Jingiao
Zhongxin Investments Limited for 49% interest of
Guizhou Xishui and RMB735,000 shall be paid to
Guizhou Gas for 1% interest of Guizhou Xishui. The
considerations shall be payable by stages. A total
of 34,102,724 shares of the Company will be issued
to Guizhou Jingiao Zhongxin Investments Limited at
HKDO0.60 each and in accordance to the term of
the Agreement. The transaction has not yet
completed as at this report date.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 March 2015 and 2014, bills receivables of
nil and RMB71,589,000, respectively, had been
discounted with recourse to banks. During the year
ended 31 March 2015 and 2014, the banks directly
received the contractually entitled cash flows of
RMB71,589,000 and RMB32,490,000, respectively
upon maturity of the discounted bills receivables
from the Group’s debtors as settlement of the
related bank borrowings of the Group.

During the vyear, the Group has entered into a
settlement agreement with the former equity owner
of subsidiaries whereby the consideration payable
(note 33) were set-off against the amounts due
from the former equity owner of subsidiaries as
included in trade and other receivables (note 29)
and long-term receivable (note 26).
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47.

HERREE
R-E—REWMA-—+—8 AAFMH
WEAREEMNMEREMNEBARER
BERAR(EMNSBEEREBRAR])
A —WmE(ZBEDABEEMNRE
(EE)BKG2BRRERAFT(EMSE
KA HB0% 2 BEHE - WS AN BN E M
B OKE0% w2 MR E A AR
36,735,000 (BER & RRER M) - &
A R #36,000,0007T # 2 14 F &M & 18
BAEIREF R AT LA B & N B K49% 1
0 M A R ¥735,0007T # X A F & MK
RAUBE &M B K1%EZR - REKHH
T MBZBBZER  ARFKIES
o060 T MEMEBEEIREER AT
1T A H34102, 724 B 10 - MR B A
wEHBA®ARTHRK o

BEAERERS

RZE—AFE_E—OF=H=+—H "
Y EEARES TR AREET1,589,000
TLE DRI B REMIE TR - RAE
ECE-—RFER-_E—NE=A=+—H
IEFE - RORUBRERKERIHARE
BRRARNSEZEBARDENRTEEEL
HemE» bl A AREET?1,589,0007T & A
R #32,490,0007T * fE R ALK E 2 HEE IR

TREZHEE -

FA-AEEEMNBARAEDEES AR
B B BARE (T EES3) A
SIAE 5 K E e U RR 3R (FT 5E29) JA I
£ B B W AR TR (P 7E26) 3 2 FE W B BB
AR RIS A A 2 RIREH -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEeEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_ZT-—RAF=A=T—HILFE

48. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 48. MBLARHE
Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 March RABIRZE—RAFER-ZT—NF=A=
2015 and 2014 are as follows: +—BZHBARFBWT:

Percentage of nominal
Nominal value of value of issued share

Place of issued ordinary capital/registered
incorporation/  Place of share/registered capital held by the
Name of subsidiary registration operation capital Company Principal activities
B/ BRTLER Zf FATHECRITRES
MEBASEE & i B e AXEE HREFEEZESNLE EEEH
2015 2014

—§-%F —T-NF

Ying Luen International Hong Kong Hong Kong HKD240,000,000 100.0% 100.0% Investment holding and
Investment Limited* 22 oil contracts trading
BREFRARF

BB ERERAR BB BE 240,000,000 7T 100.0% 100.0% REZEBRERAMEHER

Union Honor Limited* BVI BVI HKD464,332,742 100.0% 100.0% Investment holding
i ) NG

HERBR AR R S 464,332,742/ T 100.0% 100.0% R EEK

BEHE BUES

BMTFREERAE" PRC PRC RMB351,597,000 100.0% 100.0% Investment holding and
(note b) sales of liquefied

natural gas

BMTERRERDA" L= i A #351,597,0007T 100.0% 100.0% REZER R
ik BILRAREE

BRLEMEERRER PRC PRC RMB120,000,000 69.0% 69.0% Production and sale of
AR]* Xingxing Energy liquefied natural gas

FREITEERRERLE  FE FE A R #120,000,0007T 69.0% 69.0% LERHEBRIELRAR
AFEE2RR

EMNTESERERAF" PRC PRC RMB70,000,000 69.0% 69.0% Production and sale of
Huixin Energy liquefied natural gas

ENTEZERERAF $H FE AR #70,000,0007T 69.0% 69.0% H£ERBEERILRAR
IE & 82 R

EMEFTRIRKREBRAR PRC PRC RMB40,000,000 49.7% 49.7% Sale of piped gas
Huaheng Energy (note a) (note a)

ENEFTLRREAABAR FE i A B #40,000,0007C 49.7% 497% HEEERAR
ETRR (Bt ska) (Pff ¥ a)

SESOZMABREMAA PRC PRC RMB30,000, 000 51.0% 51.0% Vehicle gas refuelling

stations and sale of
liquefied natural gas

SRZEMARAEREMRF FE HE A R #30,000,0007T 51.0% 51.0% ABMAURFEERIER
AR

ENmESMWRERLQA  PRC PRC RMB10,000,000 69.0% 69.0% Production and sale of
liquefied natural gas

EMNTESYRERRA HE HE A R #10,000,0007C 69.0% 69.0% £EREERIELRAR

EMETREERDA" PRC PRC RMB22,800,000 100.0% 100.0% Investment holding

EMETRERBRAA" HE FE AR #22,800,0007T 100.0% 100.0% & EER
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48. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of

Nominal value of
issued ordinary

48. MBRATFHE(E)

Percentage of nominal
value of issued share
capital/registered

incorporation/  Place of share/registered capital held by the
Name of subsidiary registration operation capital Company Principal activities
B/ BRTLER Zf FATRFERTRES
MEBAS &R it B R BAEE BMEFTEZEDL FEEH
2015 2014
“E-HF —T—NF
Fully World Limited* Hong Kong Hong Kong HKD1 100.0% 100.0% Oil trading
LESRAA
LEFRARA BB Bk BT 100.0% 100.0% AHES
Firmwill Investments Limited ~ BVI BVI Us$1 100.0% 100.0% Investment holding
BRREABARA
BHRREBRAF ERERHE REBRELES 1ETT 100.0% 100.0% RE K
Ngai Lik International Trading Hong Kong Hong Kong RMB1 100.0% 100.0% Under liquidation
Limited* % BB & 5
BRAR
BNBBRESERAA i B ARBIT 100.0% 100.0% BE&H
Techno Sea Limited* BVI BVI Us$1 100.0% 100.0% Investment holding
MEBERAA
REER QA KBRAHE KBRS 1ETT 100.0% 100.0% REZRK
Yigin Investments Limited BVI BVI US$1 100.0% 100.0% Under liquidation
RYIRERT
BRYKRENT RBRUAES RBRELEE 1ETT 100.0% 100.0% BEEH
BINDESLREEFRAR" PRC PRC US$990,000 100.0% 100.0% Oil and gas trading
(note b)
BMEEHREEGRAR REH ke 990,000% 7T 100.0% 100.0% EHEKXAZES
(B D)

* They are subsidiaries indirectly held by the Company. * ZERRAARREERBEZHBAR -

Notes: B 5 -

(@) Pursuant to a supplementary agreement entered between the (@) RERAEER-_T——F+_A=-+/\BEE
Group and a 50% equity owner of Huaheng Energy on 28 THRR—BONEREBEACHITLZH T
December 2012, the equity owner has committed to follow the hE ZRESEEADERBERREAREGRE
voting direction and decision of the Group on shareholders’ FEERLEBRAREZREERLRE
meeting and board of directors’ meeting except for certain BRGNS DEMER . oD F -
special resolution relating to increase or reduction of registered BERAZEETRN - BRIOBEARIEET
capital, merger or spinoff, change of legal form, dismissal or ETRRAMRERMAMAZEFRIRBRERIN ©
liquidation and amendments to memorandum and articles of I ARBEERA AKECERSET
association of Huaheng Energy. As such, the directors of the BERZIEGIE  WHEFTRRERAEE 2K
Company are of the opinion that the Group has obtained BRRIARK -
control over Huaheng Energy and has accounted for Huaheng
Energy as a subsidiary of the Group.

(b) The subsidiaries are set up as wholly-owned foreign (b) ZEMBRAATDNAPEK L EMAIIER
investment enterprise registered in the PRC. BREDRE -

© None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting ©) BENERARBEENR_T—RAF=A=+—H
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Financial Summary of Five Years

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group
changes the presentation currency of its consolidated
financial statements from Hong Kong dollars to Renminbi
(“RMB”).

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted
from the published audited financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2011, 2012, 2013 and 2014 and
being translated and presented in RMB appropriately, as
below. For the ended 31 March 2015 which extracted
from the annual report 2015 and its comparative figures
which was restated as appropriate is set out below.

EFEFMBEME

BE_Z-AF="A=+—BLFE Kx&5EH
BEGEMBRR 2NEEBHBETERSA
RETAR®ED -

UTAAEERTRABAMBRFEZEEURE
EXBEBRE IREHEEE-ZT——F =
T——F T ZFR_FT-NF=ZA=+—
BEFEZEAHEEZMBRE  WiELE
EBREANAREZS - 13 h@EEEES
T-RAFZA=Z+-—HUIEFEZ_ZT—FHFF
BERLZBEINZLEHT -

2015 2014 2014 2013 2012 2011
—T-hfF —T—WF —T-WNF —FT-=F —E——F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFTT ARBTT ARBTRT ARETRT ARETT ARBTR
(restated)
(&)
RESULTS ES |
Turnover ] 6,440,317 9,991,396 7,782,850 5,246,314 1,643,717 582,026
Profit (loss) before tax Bk A% A A1 (5 48) 29,418 227,477 (4,756) 28,220 102,949 (89,726)
Income tax credit (expense) P15 i % (51 s7) 3,127 (59,290) (184) (11,870) (227) (65)
Profit (loss) for the year FEm A (EE) 32,545 168,187 (4,940) 16,350 102,722 (89,791)
2015 2014 2014 2013 2012 2011
—T-hf —T—WNF —T-—WNF —FT-—=F FTB—F ZT——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTRT ARETRT ARKETT ARBTRT
(restated)
(&)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ZEREH
Total assets BEE 2,619,242 3,756,663 1,590,100 2,488,680 273,302 39,196
Total liabilities HAaE (1,904,760) (3,072,068)  (1,524,393)  (1,927,680) (198,737) (150,609)
Net assets (liabilities) FEEAB) 714,482 684,595 65,707 561,000 74,565 (111,413)
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